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GLOSSARY
The following terms are common to the deathcare industry, are used throughout this report, and have the
following meanings:
Atneed — Funeral and cemetery arrangements after a death has occurred.
Burial Vaults — A reinforced container intended to house and protect the casket before it is placed in the
ground.
Cemetery Perpetual Care or Endowment Care Fund — A trust fund established for the purpose of maintaining
cemetery grounds and property into perpetuity.
Cremation — The reduction of human remains to bone fragments by intense heat.
General Agency (GA) Revenues — Commissions we receive from third-party life insurance companies for
life insurance policies or annuities sold to preneed customers for the purpose of funding preneed funeral
arrangements. The commission rate paid is determined based on the product type sold, the length of payment
terms, and the age of the insured/annuitant.
Interment — The burial or final placement of human remains in the ground.
Lawn Crypt — An underground outer burial receptacle constructed of concrete and reinforced steel, which is
usually pre-installed in predetermined designated areas.
Marker — A method of identifying a deceased person in a particular burial space, crypt, or niche. Permanent
burial markers are usually made of bronze, granite, or stone.
Maturity — When the underlying contracted service is performed or merchandise is delivered, typically at
death. This is the point at which preneed contracts are converted to atneed contracts (note — delivery of
certain merchandise and services can occur prior to death).
Mausoleum — An above ground structure that is designed to house caskets and cremation urns.
Preneed — Purchase of products and services prior to use.
Preneed Backlog — Future revenues from unfulfilled preneed funeral and cemetery contractual arrangements.
Production — Sales of preneed funeral and preneed or atneed cemetery contracts.
As used herein, “SCI”, “Company”, “we”, “our”, and “us” refer to Service Corporation International and
companies owned directly or indirectly by Service Corporation International, unless the context requires
otherwise.
3
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PART I
Item 1. Business.
General
We are North America’s largest provider of deathcare products and services, with a network of funeral
homes and cemeteries unequalled in geographic scale and reach. At December 31, 2009, we operated 1,254
funeral service locations and 372 cemeteries (including 212 combination locations) in North America, which
are geographically diversified across 43 states, eight Canadian provinces, the District of Columbia, and Puerto
Rico. Our funeral segment also includes the operations of 12 funeral homes in Germany that we intend to exit
when economic values and conditions are conducive to a sale. Our funeral service and cemetery operations
consist of funeral service locations, cemeteries, funeral service/cemetery combination locations, crematoria,
and related businesses. As part of our Alderwoods Group, Inc. (Alderwoods) acquisition in the fourth quarter
of 2006, we acquired Mayflower National Life Insurance Company (Mayflower), an insurance business that
we sold in July 2007. The operations of this business through the date of sale are presented as discontinued
operations in our consolidated statement of operations.
History
We were incorporated in Texas in July of 1962. Our original business plan was based on efficiencies of
scale, specifically reducing overhead costs by sharing resources such as embalming, accounting,
transportation, and personnel among funeral homes in a business “cluster.” After proving the plan’s
effectiveness in Houston in the early 1960s, SCI set out to apply this operating strategy through the
acquisition of death care businesses in other markets. It was the beginning of a three-decade period of
expansion that would create a North American network of nearly 1,400 funeral homes and cemeteries by the
end of 1992. Beginning in 1993, we expanded beyond North America, acquiring major death care companies
in Australia, the United Kingdom, and France, plus smaller holdings in other European countries and South
America. By the end of 1999, our global network numbered more than 4,500 funeral service locations,
cemeteries, and crematories in 20 countries.
During the mid to late 1990s, acquisitions of deathcare facilities became extremely competitive, resulting
in increased prices for acquisitions and substantially reduced returns on invested capital. In 1999, we
significantly reduced our level of acquisition activity and over the next several years implemented various
initiatives to pay down debt, increase cash flow, reduce overhead costs, and increase efficiency. We divested
most of our international businesses and many North American funeral homes and cemeteries that were either
underperforming or did not fit our long-term strategy. At the same time, we began to capitalize on the strength
of our network by introducing to North America the first transcontinental brand of death care services and
products — Dignity Memorial® (See www.dignitymemorial.com)
In late 2006, having arrived at a position of significant financial strength and improved operating
efficiency, we acquired our biggest competitor, Alderwoods. By combining the two leading companies in the
deathcare industry, we have been able to realize more than $90 million in annual pretax cost synergies,
savings, and revenue enhancement opportunities.
Funeral and Cemetery Operations
Worldwide, we have 1,266 funeral service locations and 372 cemeteries (including 212 combination
locations) covering 43 states, eight Canadian provinces, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, and Germany.
See Note 16 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, for financial information about
our business segments and geographic areas.
Our funeral service and cemetery operations consist of funeral service locations, cemeteries, funeral
service/cemetery combination locations, crematoria, and related businesses. We provide all professional
services relating to funerals and cremations, including the use of funeral facilities and motor vehicles and
preparation and embalming services. Funeral-related merchandise, including caskets, casket memorialization
products, burial vaults, cremation receptacles, cremation memorial products, flowers, and other ancillary
products and services, is sold at funeral service locations. Our cemeteries provide cemetery property
interment rights, including mausoleum spaces, lots,
4
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and lawn crypts, and sell cemetery-related merchandise and services, including stone and bronze memorials,
markers, merchandise installations, and burial openings and closings. We also sell preneed funeral and
cemetery products and services whereby a customer contractually agrees to the terms of certain products and
services to be delivered and performed in the future. As a result of these preneed sales, our backlog of
unfulfilled contracts was $6.4 billion and $6.2 billion at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Funeral service/cemetery combination locations are those businesses in which a funeral service location
is physically located within or adjoining a cemetery that we own. Combination locations allow certain
facility, personnel, and equipment costs to be shared between the funeral service location and cemetery. Such
combination facilities typically can be more cost competitive and have higher gross margins than if the
funeral and cemetery operations were operated separately. Combination locations also create synergies
between funeral and cemetery sales force personnel and give families added convenience to purchase both
funeral and cemetery products and services at a single location. With the acquisition of Alderwoods, we
acquired Rose Hills, which is the largest combination operation in the United States, performing over 4,500
funeral services and 8,000 interments per year.
In 2009 our operations in the United States and Canada were organized into 37 major markets and 43
middle markets (including ten Hispana markets). Each market is led by a market director with responsibility
for funeral and/or cemetery operations and preneed sales. Within each market, the funeral homes and
cemeteries share common resources such as personnel, preparation services, and vehicles. There are four
market support centers in North America to assist market directors with financial, administrative, pricing, and
human resource needs. These support centers are located in Houston, Miami, New York, and Los Angeles.
The primary functions of the support centers are to help facilitate the execution of corporate strategies,
coordinate communication between the field and corporate offices, and serve as liaisons for the
implementation of policies and procedures.
The following table (which includes businesses held-for-sale at December 31, 2009) provides the number
of our funeral homes and cemeteries by country, and by state, territory, or province:
Country, State/Territory/Province

United States
Alabama
Arizona
Arkansas
California
Colorado
Connecticut
District of Columbia
Florida
Georgia
Hawaii
Idaho
Illinois
Indiana
Iowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts

Number of

Number of

Funeral Homes

Cemeteries

31
30
9
117
23
16
1
108
37
2
2
38
27
4
8
12
26
10
12
27

9
11
—
31
11
—
—
52
19
2
1
25
8
2
2
3
5
—
7
—

Total

40
41
9
148
34
16
1
160
56
4
3
63
35
6
10
15
31
10
19
27
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Country, State/Territory/Province

Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri
Montana
Nebraska
Nevada
New Hampshire
New Jersey
New York
North Carolina
Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Puerto Rico
Rhode Island
South Carolina
Tennessee
Texas
Utah
Virginia
Washington
West Virginia
Wisconsin
Canada
Alberta
British Columbia
Manitoba
New Brunswick
Nova Scotia
Ontario
Quebec
Saskatchewan
Germany
Total

Number of

Number of

Funeral Homes

Cemeteries

Total

24
10
20
16
4
2
11
6
20
71
41
18
14
10
17
4
4
3
31
139
3
25
33
3
8

—
2
2
3
—
—
7
—
—
—
11
11
7
3
17
5
—
4
14
55
3
12
12
6
—

24
12
22
19
4
2
18
6
20
71
52
29
21
13
34
9
4
7
45
194
6
37
45
9
8

10
35
4
5
13
44
49
17
12
1,266

—
7
3
—
—
—
—
—
—
372

10
42
7
5
13
44
49
17
12
1,638

We believe we have satisfactory title to the properties owned and used in our business, subject to various liens,
encumbrances, and easements that are incidental to ownership rights and uses and do not materially detract from the value
of the property. We also lease a number of facilities that we use in our business under both capital and operating leases.
At December 31, 2009, we owned approximately 90% of the real estate and buildings used at our facilities, and the
remainder of the facilities were leased. At December 31, 2009, our 372 cemeteries contained a total of approximately
26,273 acres, of which approximately 59% was developed.
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A map of our locations in North America is presented below:

Competition
Although there are several public companies that own funeral homes and cemeteries, the majority of deathcare
businesses are locally-owned, independent operations. We estimate that our funeral and cemetery market share in North
America is approximately 12% based on estimated total industry revenues. The position of a single funeral home or
cemetery in any community is a function of the name, reputation, and location of that funeral home or cemetery, although
competitive pricing, professional service and attention, and well-maintained locations are also important.
We believe we have an unparalleled network of funeral service locations and cemeteries that offer high-quality
products and services at prices that are competitive with local competing funeral homes, cemeteries, and retail locations.
Within this network, the funeral service locations and cemeteries operate under various names as most operations were
acquired as existing businesses. We have branded our funeral operations in North America under the name Dignity
Memorial®. We believe our transcontinental branding strategy gives us a strategic advantage and identity in the industry.
While this branding process is intended to emphasize our seamless national network of funeral service locations and
cemeteries, the original names associated with acquired operations, and their inherent goodwill and heritage, generally
remain the same. For example, Geo. H. Lewis & Sons Funeral Directors is now Geo. H. Lewis & Sons Funeral Directors,
a Dignity Memorial® provider.
Strategies for Growth
Currently, we are relying on our strong competitive position and financial strength to remain a solid leader in our
industry, despite the recessionary state of the overall economy. We remain optimistic that as economic conditions continue
to improve, our principal growth strategies will allow us to resume profitable growth over the long-term. Our strategies are
as follows:
Target Our Customer
During 2009 we continued to build on our extensive consumer research and market to consumers who we believe are
receptive to our message around the importance of pre-planning. Building on lessons learned from our
7
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pilot programs in 2008, we expanded our targeted marketing and sales program into large, important markets in 2009 with
favorable results. The combination of targeted direct mail, select media advertising, and a revitalized team approach from
our sales organization is generating quality leads that our sales team is closing at a high rate. In addition, we began a series
of advertisements for Dignity Memorial®. The results of these advertisements were positive and we plan to expand to
other Dignity Memorial® markets throughout 2010.
During 2008 we launched Dignity Planning®, an end-of-life planning tool available via the web, telephone or in a
paper version. This planning tool reaches customers we might not ordinarily contact, allowing families who are in the
process of estate planning an opportunity to plan a funeral in which they detail the types of services and products they
would like to purchase. The total cost is then used as a basis for the amount of insurance coverage needed. Although use of
the Dignity Planning® tool does not require a potential customer to use a Dignity Memorial® provider, our preliminary
results indicate that most consumers using the tool do choose a Dignity Memorial® provider. We currently have
agreements in place with several insurance companies and insurance marketing organizations to have their sales teams sell
through Dignity Planning®, and we plan to expand that network throughout 2010.
We also spent much of 2009 developing a new Dignity Memorial ® website, designed to capture customers and leads
via the power of the internet. We now have the ability to display obituaries on our location’s web sites that allow friends
and family of the deceased to check the schedule of services, write condolences, post photos or videos and easily share this
information through social media. In addition, those reading the obituaries have the opportunity to learn more about
Dignity Memorial® and begin developing their own funeral plans. Set to launch in early 2010, we believe
DignityMemorial.com is a one-of-a-kind website that will spread our message of planning to consumers that we would
otherwise not meet.
Drive Operating Discipline and Leverage Our Scale
We continue to drive operating discipline and leverage our scale through standardization of processes and the usage of
key performance metrics for staffing and other operational and administrative activities. In 2009 we continued to focus on
location staffing levels to ensure that we are aligning our funeral, cemetery, and personal care center resources
appropriately with our volume of business. In addition, we conducted a major review of our cemetery maintenance
expenses to identify opportunities for improvements, including consolidation of our vendor base for lawn care activities.
We also started vigorous analyses of our purchasing spend to look for ways to better leverage our spend by reducing the
number of suppliers and employing metrics to manage and improve supplier performance.
Manage and Grow the Footprint
We are managing our network of business locations by positioning each business location to support the preferences of
its local customer base while monitoring each market for changing demographics and competitive dynamics. We are also
looking to optimize our portfolio through strategic market reviews. We expect to pursue selective business expansion
through construction or targeted acquisitions of cemeteries and funeral homes with a focus on the highest return customer
categories. Over the long term, our size and scale also allow us the opportunity to pursue a franchise business model,
which could drive incremental revenue at very little cost.
Employees
At December 31, 2009, we employed 13,087 (13,055 in North America) individuals on a full-time basis and 7,089
(7,083 in North America) individuals on a part-time basis. Of the full-time employees, 12,469 were employed in the
funeral and cemetery operations and 618 were employed in corporate or other overhead activities and services. All eligible
employees in the United States who so elect are covered by our group health and life insurance plans. Eligible employees
in the United States are participants in retirement plans of SCI or various subsidiaries, while international employees are
covered by other SCI (or SCI subsidiary) defined or government-mandated benefit plans. Approximately 3.5% of our
employees in North America are represented by unions. Although labor disputes occur from time to time, relations with
employees are generally considered favorable.
8
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Regulation
Our operations are subject to regulations, supervision, and licensing under numerous foreign, federal,
state, and local laws, ordinances, and regulations, including extensive regulations concerning trust funds,
preneed sales of funeral and cemetery products and services, and various other aspects of our business. We
strive to comply in all material respects with the provisions of these laws, ordinances, and regulations. Since
1984, we have operated in the United States under the Federal Trade Commission (FTC) comprehensive trade
regulation rule for the funeral industry. The rule contains requirements for funeral industry practices,
including extensive price and other affirmative disclosures and imposes mandatory itemization of funeral
goods and services.
Other
Our corporate headquarters are located at 1929 Allen Parkway, Houston, Texas 77019. The property
consists of approximately 120,000 square feet of office space and 185,000 square feet of parking space. We
own and utilize an additional building located in Houston, Texas for corporate activities containing a total of
approximately 38,000 square feet of office space. We also lease approximately 29,000 square feet of office
space in Houston, Texas, which we utilize for corporate activities.
We make available free of charge, on or through our website, our annual, quarterly, and current reports
and any amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after electronically filing such reports
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Our website is http://www.sci-corp.com and our
telephone number is (713) 522-5141. The SEC also maintains an internet site at http://www.sec.gov that
contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file
electronically. The public may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. Information on the operation of the Public
Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.
Each of our Board of Directors’ standing committee charters, our Corporate Governance Guidelines, our
Code of Ethics for Board Members, and our Code of Conduct for Officers and Employees are available, free
of charge, through our website or, upon request, in print. We will post on our internet website all waivers to or
amendments of our Code of Conduct for Officers and Employees, which are required to be disclosed by
applicable law and rules of the New York Stock Exchange listing standards. Information contained on our
website is not part of this report.
Item 1A. Risk Factors.
Cautionary Statement on Forward-Looking Statements
The statements in this Form 10-K that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements made in
reliance on the safe harbor protections provided under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
These statements may be accompanied by words such as “believe”, “estimate”, “project”, “expect”,
“anticipate”, or “predict” that convey the uncertainty of future events or outcomes. These statements are
based on assumptions that we believe are reasonable; however, many important factors could cause our actual
consolidated results in the future to differ materially from the forward-looking statements made herein and in
any other documents or oral presentations made by, or on behalf of, the Company. These factors are discussed
below. We assume no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements made herein or
any other forward-looking statements made by the Company, whether as a result of new information, future
events, or otherwise.
Our affiliated funeral and cemetery trust funds own investments in equity securities, fixed income
securities, and mutual funds, which are affected by market conditions that are beyond our control.
Our affiliated funeral and cemetery trust funds own investments in equity securities, fixed income
securities, and mutual funds. Our earnings or gains and losses on these investments are affected by market
conditions that are beyond our control. Our funeral and cemetery merchandise and service and cemetery
perpetual care trusts have been impacted by the volatility in the U.S. and global financial markets. The fair
market value of our trust investments declined sharply in the second half of 2008. Since that time, our trusts
have recovered commensurate with the overall improvement in the financial markets.
9
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The following table summarizes our investment returns (realized and unrealized), excluding certain fees, on our trust
funds for the three years ended December 31:
2009

Preneed funeral merchandise and service trust funds
Preneed cemetery merchandise and service trust funds
Perpetual care trust funds

23.0%
27.3%
22.4%

2008

(23.5)%
(26.9)%
(15.4)%

2007

9.9%
9.8%
3.2%

Generally, earnings or gains and losses on our trust investments are recognized, and we withdraw cash, when the
underlying service is performed, merchandise is delivered, or upon contract cancellation; however, our cemetery perpetual
care trusts recognize earnings, and in certain states, capital gains and losses, and we withdraw cash when we incur
qualifying cemetery maintenance costs.
If our trust funds experience additional volatility in 2010 or subsequent years, there could be insufficient funds in the
trusts to cover the costs of delivering services and merchandise or maintaining cemeteries in the future. We would have to
cover any such shortfall with cash flows from operations, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition, results of operations, or cash flows. For more information related to our trust investments, see Notes 4, 5, and 6
in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
If the fair market value of these trusts, plus any other amount due to us upon delivery of the associated contracts, were
to decline below the estimated costs to deliver the underlying products and services, we would record a charge to earnings
to record a liability for the expected losses on the delivery of the associated contracts. As of December 31, 2009, no such
charge was required. For additional information, see Critical Accounting Policies in Part II, Item 7. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
We may be required to replenish our affiliated funeral and cemetery trust funds in order to meet minimum funding
requirements, which would have a negative affect on our earnings and cash flow.
In certain states and provinces, we have withdrawn allowable distributable earnings including unrealized gains prior to
the maturity or cancellation of the related contract. Additionally, some states have laws that either require replenishment
of investment losses under certain circumstances or impose various restrictions on withdrawals of future earnings when
trust fund values drop below certain prescribed amounts. In the event of market declines, we may be required to deposit
portions or all of these amounts into the respective trusts in some future period. As of December 31, 2009, we had
unrealized losses of $9.1 million in the various trusts in these states. See Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Contractual
Obligations, and Commercial and Contingent Commitments in Part II, Item 7.
Our ability to execute our strategic plan depends on many factors, some of which are beyond our control.
Our strategic plan is focused on cost management and the continued implementation of key revenue initiatives. Many
of the factors necessary for the execution of our strategic plan, such as the number of deaths and general economic
conditions, are beyond our control. Changes in operating conditions, such as supply disruptions and labor disputes, could
negatively impact our operations. Our inability to achieve the levels of cost savings, productivity improvements, or
earnings growth anticipated by management could affect our financial performance. Our inability to complete acquisitions,
divestitures, or strategic alliances as planned or to realize expected synergies and strategic benefits could impact our
financial performance. We cannot give assurance that we will be able to execute any or all of our strategic plan. Failure to
execute any or all of our strategic plan could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of
operations, or cash flows.
Our credit agreements contain covenants that may prevent us from engaging in certain transactions.
Our bank credit facility contains, among other things, various affirmative and negative covenants that may prevent us
from engaging in certain transactions that might otherwise be considered beneficial to us. The covenants limit, among
other things, our and our subsidiaries’ ability to:
• Incur additional indebtedness (including guarantee obligations);
• Create liens on assets;
10
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• Engage in certain transactions with affiliates;
• Enter into sale-leaseback transactions;
• Engage in mergers, liquidations, and dissolutions;
• Sell assets;
• Pay dividends, distributions, and other payments in respect of our capital stock;
• Purchase our capital stock in the open market;
• Make investments, loans, or advances;
• Repay indebtedness or amend the agreements relating thereto;
• Create restrictions on our ability to receive distributions from subsidiaries; and
• Change our lines of business.
Our bank credit facility requires us to maintain certain leverage and interest coverage ratios. These covenants and
coverage ratios may require us to take actions to reduce our indebtedness or act in a manner contrary to our strategic plan
and business objectives. In addition, events beyond our control, including changes in general economic and business
conditions, may affect our ability to satisfy these covenants. A breach of any of these covenants could result in a default
under our indebtedness. If an event of default (if incurred 30 days after we receive notice of such bank credit facility
default) under our bank credit facility occurs, the lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstanding thereunder,
together with accrued interest, immediately due and payable. Any such declaration would also result in an event of default
under our Senior Indenture governing our various senior notes. For additional information, see Liquidity and Capital
Resources in Part II, Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and
Note 10 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
If we lost the ability to use surety bonding to support our preneed funeral and preneed cemetery activities, we may be
required to make material cash payments to fund certain trust funds.
We have entered into arrangements with certain surety companies whereby such companies agree to issue surety bonds
on our behalf as financial assurance or as required by existing state and local regulations. The surety bonds are used for
various business purposes; however, the majority of the surety bonds issued and outstanding have been issued to support
our preneed funeral and cemetery activities. In the event all of the surety companies cancelled or did not renew our surety
bonds, which generally have twelve-month renewal periods, we would be required to either obtain replacement coverage
or fund approximately $224.7 million into state-mandated trust accounts as of December 31, 2009.
The funeral home and cemetery industry continues to be increasingly competitive.
In North America, the funeral home and cemetery industry is characterized by a large number of locally-owned,
independent operations. To compete successfully, our funeral service locations and cemeteries must maintain good
reputations and high professional standards, as well as offer attractive products and services at competitive prices. In
addition, we must market the Company in such a manner as to distinguish us from our competitors. We have historically
experienced price competition from independent funeral home and cemetery operators, monument dealers, casket retailers,
low-cost funeral providers, and other non-traditional providers of services and merchandise. If we are unable to
successfully compete, our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows could be materially adversely affected.
Increasing death benefits related to preneed funeral contracts funded through life insurance or annuity contracts may
not cover future increases in the cost of providing a price-guaranteed funeral service.
We sell price-guaranteed preneed funeral contracts through various programs providing for future funeral services at
prices prevailing when the agreements are signed. For preneed funeral contracts funded through life
11
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insurance or annuity contracts, we receive in cash a general agency commission that typically averages approximately
16% of the total sale from the third party insurance company. Additionally, there is an increasing death benefit associated
with the contract of approximately 1% per year to be received in cash at the time the funeral is performed. There is no
guarantee that the increasing death benefit will cover future increases in the cost of providing a price-guaranteed funeral
service, and any such excess cost could be materially adverse to our future cash flows, revenues, and operating margins.
The financial condition of third-party insurance companies that fund our preneed funeral contracts may impact our
future revenues.
Where permitted, customers may arrange their preneed funeral contract by purchasing a life insurance or annuity
policy from third-party insurance companies. The customer/policy holder assigns the policy benefits to our funeral home
to pay for the preneed funeral contract at the time of need. If the financial condition of the third-party insurance companies
were to deteriorate materially because of market conditions or otherwise, there could be an adverse effect on our ability to
collect all or part of the proceeds of the life insurance policy, including the annual increase in the death benefit, when we
fulfill the preneed contract at the time of need. Failure to collect such proceeds could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.
Unfavorable results of litigation could have a material adverse impact on our financial statements.
As discussed in Note 12 of Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, we are subject to a variety of
claims and lawsuits in the ordinary course of our business. Adverse outcomes in some or all of the pending cases may
result in significant monetary damages or injunctive relief against us. Management currently believes that resolving all of
these matters, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse impact on our financial position, cash
flows, or results of operations; however, litigation and other claims are subject to inherent uncertainties, and
management’s view of these matters may change in the future. There exists the possibility of a material adverse impact on
our financial position, cash flows, and results of operations for the period in which the effect of an unfavorable final
outcome becomes probable and reasonably estimable.
If the number of deaths in our markets declines, our cash flows and revenues may decrease.
If the number of deaths declines, the number of funeral services and interments performed by us could decrease and
our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows could be materially adversely affected.
The continuing upward trend in the number of cremations performed in North America could result in lower
revenues and gross profit.
There is a continuing upward trend in the number of cremations performed in North America as an alternative to
traditional funeral service dispositions. In our North American operations during 2009, 41.0% of the comparable funeral
services we performed were cremation cases compared to 39.5% and 38.4% performed in 2008 and 2007, respectively.
We continue to expand our cremation memorialization products and services, which have resulted in higher average sales
for cremation services. If we are unable to successfully expand our cremation memorialization products and services, and
cremations continue to be a significant percentage of our funeral services, our financial condition, results of operations,
and cash flows could be materially adversely affected.
Our funeral home and cemetery businesses are high fixed-cost businesses.
The majority of our operations are managed in groups called “markets”. Markets are geographical groups of funeral
service locations and cemeteries that share common resources such as operating personnel, preparation services, clerical
staff, motor vehicles, and preneed sales personnel. Personnel costs, the largest component of our operating expenses, are
the cost components most beneficially affected by this grouping. We must incur many of these costs regardless of the
number of funeral services or interments performed. Because we cannot necessarily decrease these costs when we
experience lower sales volumes, a sales decline may cause our margin percentages to decline at a greater rate than the
decline in revenues.
12
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Regulation and compliance could have a material adverse impact on our financial results.
Our operations are subject to regulation, supervision, and licensing under numerous foreign, federal, state, and local
laws, ordinances, and regulations, including extensive regulations concerning trust funds, preneed sales of funeral and
cemetery products and services, and various other aspects of our business. The impact of such regulations varies
depending on the location of our funeral and cemetery operations. Violations of applicable laws could result in fines or
sanctions against us.
In addition, from time to time, governments and agencies propose to amend or add regulations, which could increase
costs and decrease cash flows. For example, foreign, federal, state, local, and other regulatory agencies have considered
and may enact additional legislation or regulations that could affect the deathcare industry. These include regulations that
require more liberal refund and cancellation policies for preneed sales of products and services, limit or eliminate our
ability to use surety bonding, increase trust requirements, require the deposit of funds or collateral to offset unrealized
losses of trusts, and/or prohibit the common ownership of funeral homes and cemeteries in the same market. If adopted by
the regulatory authorities of the jurisdictions in which we operate, these and other possible proposals could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.
Compliance with laws, regulations, industry standards, and customs concerning burial procedures and the handling and
care of human remains is critical to the continued success of our business and any operations we may acquire. Litigation
and regulatory proceedings regarding these issues could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results
of operations, and cash flows. We are continually monitoring and reviewing our operations in an effort to insure that we
are in compliance with these laws, regulations, and standards and, where appropriate, taking appropriate corrective action.
A number of years may elapse before particular tax matters, for which we have established accruals, are audited and
finally resolved.
The number of tax years with open tax audits varies depending on the tax jurisdiction. In the United States, the Internal
Revenue Service is currently examining our tax returns for 1999 through 2005 and various state jurisdictions are auditing
years through 2008. While it is often difficult to predict the final outcome or the timing of resolution of any particular tax
matter, we believe that our accruals reflect the probable outcome of known tax contingencies. Unfavorable settlement of
any particular issue would reduce a deferred tax asset or require the use of cash. Favorable resolution could result in
reduced income tax expense reported in the financial statements in the future.
Declines in overall economic conditions beyond our control could reduce future potential earnings and cash flows
and could result in future goodwill impairments.
In addition to an annual review, we assess the impairment of goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be greater than fair value. Factors that could trigger an interim impairment review
include, but are not limited to, a significant decline in our stock price, significant underperformance relative to historical
or projected future operating results, and significant negative industry or economic trends. If these factors occur, we may
have a triggering event, which could result in impairment to our goodwill. Based on the results of our annual goodwill
impairment test in 2009, we concluded that there was no impairment of our goodwill. However, if economic conditions
worsen causing deterioration in our operating revenues, operating margins and cash flows, we may have a triggering event
that could result in an impairment of our goodwill. Our cemetery segment, which has a goodwill balance of $60.6 million
as of December 31, 2009, is more sensitive to market conditions and goodwill impairments because it is more reliant on
preneed sales, which are impacted by customer discretionary spending. For additional information, see Critical
Accounting Policies in Part II, Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.
We may fail to consummate the acquisition of Keystone.
The consummation of the acquisition of Keystone is subject to certain customary closing conditions. There can be no
assurance that SCI and Keystone will obtain the necessary approvals and satisfy the conditions to consummate the
acquisition. In November 2009, we issued $150 million of unsecured 8.0% Senior Notes due 2021. The net proceeds of
these notes are held in escrow accounts, pending the consummation of the Keystone acquisition
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and related financial transactions. In the event the Keystone acquisition is not consummated on or prior to June 30, 2010,
these notes are subject to special mandatory redemption. These notes may also be redeemed at our option, in whole but not
in part, at any time prior to June 30, 2010 if, in our sole judgment, the Keystone acquisition will not be consummated by
that date. The redemption price in either case will be 101% of the issue price of the notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date.
We may fail to realize the anticipated benefits of the acquisition of Keystone.
If consummated, the success of the Keystone acquisition will depend, in part, on our ability to realize the anticipated
cost savings from shared corporate and administrative areas and the rationalization of duplicative expenses. In order to
realize the anticipated benefits from the acquisition, we must successfully combine the businesses of SCI and Keystone in
a manner that permits those costs savings to be realized. If we are not able to successfully achieve these objectives, the
anticipated benefits of the acquisition may not be realized fully or at all or may take longer or cost more to realize than
expected. SCI and Keystone have operated, and until the completion of the acquisition will continue to operate,
independently. It is possible that the integration process could result in the loss of valuable employees, the disruption of
each company’s ongoing business, or inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures, practices, and policies that could
adversely impact our operations.
The acquisition of Keystone may prove disruptive and could result in the combined business failing to meet our
expectations.
The process of integrating the operations of Keystone may require a disproportionate amount of resources and
management attention. Our future operations and cash flows will depend largely upon our ability to operate Keystone
efficiently, achieve the strategic operating objectives for our business and realize significant cost savings and synergies.
Our management team may encounter unforeseen difficulties in managing the integration. In order to successfully
combine and operate our businesses, our management team will need to focus on realizing anticipated synergies and cost
savings on a timely basis while maintaining the efficiency of our operations. Any substantial diversion of management
attention or difficulties in operating the combined business could affect our revenues and ability to achieve operational,
financial and strategic objectives.
Failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could adversely affect our financial results, our
operations and our stock price, and cause investors to lose confidence in the reliability of our financial statements.
Effective internal control over financial reporting is necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports. When we
identify material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, as has been the case in years prior to 2009,
we are unable to conclude that our internal control over financial reporting is effective. In such event, our financial results,
operations and stock price could be adversely affected, and investors could lose confidence in the reliability of our
financial statements.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.
Item 2. Properties.
Information regarding properties is set forth in Part I, Item 1. Business.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
Information regarding legal proceedings is set forth in Note 12 of Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
None.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY
The following table sets forth as of February 23, 2010 the name and age of each executive officer of the Company, the
office held, and the year first elected an officer.
Year First
Became
Officer Name

R. L. Waltrip
Thomas L.
Ryan
Michael R.
Webb
J. Daniel
Garrison
Philip C.
Jacobs
Stephen M.
Mack
Elisabeth G.
Nash
Gregory T.
Sangalis
Eric D.
Tanzberger
Sumner J.
Waring, III
Joseph A.
Hayes
Jane D. Jones
Albert R.
Lohse
John Del
Mixon, II
Tammy R.
Moore

Age

Position

Officer

79

Chairman of the Board

1962

44

President and Chief Executive Officer

1999

51

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

1998

58

Senior Vice President Sales

1998

55

Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer

2007

58

Senior Vice President Middle Market Operations

1998

47

Senior Vice President Operations Services

2004

54

Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

2007

41

Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

2000

41

Senior Vice President Operations

2002

53
54

Vice President Ethics and Business Conduct and Assistant General Counsel
Vice President Human Resources

2007
2005

49

Vice President Litigation and Risk Management

2004

46

Vice President Information Technology

2010

42

Vice President and Corporate Controller

2010

Mr. Waltrip is the founder, Chairman of the Company, and a licensed funeral director. He grew up in his family’s
funeral business and assumed management of the firm in the 1950s after earning a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Houston. He began buying additional funeral homes in the 1960s, achieving cost
efficiencies by pooling their resources. At the end of 2009, the network he began had grown to include more than 1,600
funeral service locations and cemeteries. Mr. Waltrip took the Company public in 1969. He has provided leadership to the
Company for over 42 years. In 2005, Mr. Waltrip resigned as Chief Executive Officer, but he continues to serve as
Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Ryan was elected Chief Executive Officer of the Company in February 2005 and has served as President of SCI
since July 2002. Mr. Ryan joined the Company in 1996 and served in a variety of financial management roles until
November 2000, when he was asked to serve as Chief Executive Officer of European Operations. In July 2002, Mr. Ryan
was appointed Chief Operating Officer of SCI, a position he held until February 2005. Before joining SCI, Mr. Ryan was a
certified public accountant with Coopers & Lybrand LLP for eight years. He holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from the University of Texas at Austin. Mr. Ryan serves on the Board of Directors of the American
Diabetes Association and on the Board of Trustees of the Texas Gulf Coast United Way. Mr. Ryan is a member and
Chapter Secretary of the Young Presidents Organization. Mr. Ryan also serves on the University of Texas McCombs
Business School Advisory Council.
Mr. Webb joined the Company in 1991 when it acquired Arlington Corporation, a regional funeral and cemetery
consolidator, where he was then Chief Financial Officer. Prior to joining Arlington Corporation, Mr. Webb held various
executive financial and development roles at Days Inns of America and Telemundo Group, Inc. In 1993, Mr. Webb joined
our corporate development group, which he later led on a global basis before accepting operational responsibility for our
Australian and Hispanic businesses. Mr. Webb was promoted to Vice President International Corporate Development in
February 1998 and was named Executive Vice President in July 2002. In February 2005, he was promoted to Chief
Operating Officer. He is a graduate of the University of Georgia, where he earned a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree.
15
Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

Table of Contents

Mr. Garrison joined the Company in 1978 and worked in a series of management positions until he was
promoted to President of the Southeastern Region in 1992. In 1998, Mr. Garrison was promoted to Vice
President International Operations. In 2000, Mr. Garrison became Vice President North American Cemetery
Operations and was promoted to Vice President Operations Services in August 2002. He assumed his current
position as Senior Vice President Operations Support in February 2005. Mr. Garrison has a Bachelor of
Science degree in Administrative Management from Clemson University.
Mr. Jacobs joined SCI in 2007 as Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Jacobs was employed by CompUSA as Chief Marketing Officer. Prior to that he was
employed by Publicis Worldwide as Chief Marketing Officer and prior to that held other management roles
over the past 23 years at several of the nation’s top advertising agencies, as well as client-side positions.
Mr. Jacobs holds a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Tennessee and a Masters degree from
Vanderbilt University.
Mr. Mack joined the Company in 1973 as a resident director after graduating from Farmingdale State
University of New York. He became Vice President of the Eastern Region in 1987 and in February 1998
Mr. Mack was appointed Vice President North American Funeral Operations. Mr. Mack was promoted to
Senior Vice President Eastern Operations in August 2002 and assumed the office of Senior Vice President
Middle Market Operations, his current position, in May 2004.
Ms. Nash joined SCI in 2002 as Managing Director of Strategic Planning and Process Improvement.
Prior to joining SCI, Ms. Nash worked for the Pennzoil Corporation and held various senior management
accounting and financial positions. In 2004, Ms. Nash was promoted to Vice President Process &
Technology. In 2010, Ms. Nash was named Senior Vice President Operations Services. She is a graduate of
Texas A&M University where she received a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in Accounting.
Mr. Sangalis joined the Company in 2007 as Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary. He
previously served as Senior Vice President, Law and Administration for Team Inc., a leading provider of
specialty industrial maintenance and construction services. Prior to that, Mr. Sangalis served as Managing
Director and General Counsel of Main Street Equity Ventures II, a private equity investment firm, and as
Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary for Waste Management, Inc., the leading provider of
waste management services in North America. Mr. Sangalis holds a bachelor’s degree in finance from Indiana
University and an M.B.A. from the University of Minnesota. He earned his juris doctorate from the
University of Minnesota Law School.
Mr. Tanzberger joined the Company in August 1996 as Manager of Budgets & Financial Analysis. He
was promoted to Vice President Investor Relations and Assistant Corporate Controller in January 2000 and to
Corporate Controller in August 2002. In 2006, Mr. Tanzberger was promoted to the position of Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer. In 2007, Mr. Tanzberger was appointed Treasurer. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Tanzberger was Assistant Corporate Controller at Kirby Marine Transportation Corporation,
an inland waterway barge and tanker company, from January through August 1996. Prior thereto, he was a
Certified Public Accountant with Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. for more than five years. Mr. Tanzberger is a
graduate of the University of Notre Dame, where he earned a Bachelor of Business Administration degree.
Mr. Waring, a licensed funeral director, joined the Company as an Area Vice President in 1996 when we
merged with his family’s funeral business. Mr. Waring was appointed Regional President of the Northeast
Region in 1999 and was promoted to Regional President of the Pacific Region in September 2001.
Mr. Waring was promoted to Vice President Western Operations in August 2002 and assumed the office of
Vice President Major Market Operations in November 2003. In February 2006, Mr. Waring was promoted to
Senior Vice President Major Market Operations. In July 2008, Mr. Waring’s responsibilities were expanded
to include business development. Mr. Waring holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration
from Stetson University, a degree in Mortuary Science from Mt. Ida College and a Masters of Business
Administration degree from the University of Massachusetts Dartmouth.
Mr. Hayes was appointed Vice President Ethics and Business Conduct and Assistant General Counsel in
November 2007. Mr. Hayes joined the Company in 1991 as corporate counsel. He was named Managing
Counsel in 1996 and Assistant General Counsel in 2005. Prior to joining SCI, Mr. Hayes practiced law in
Chicago and San Diego, specializing in securities, mergers and acquisitions, and commercial transactions. He
received a
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bachelors degree in commerce from DePaul University and earned his juris doctorate from the University of California at
Berkeley.
Mrs. Jones joined SCI in 2003 from Dynegy, Inc., where she served as Vice President of Total Rewards. She oversees
human resources, training and education, and payroll and commission services — activities that assist approximately
20,000 employees in North America. Mrs. Jones was promoted to Vice President Human Resources in February 2005. She
holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in Accounting with a minor in Finance from Southern Methodist
University. She is a Certified Compensation Professional.
Mr. Lohse joined SCI in 2000 as Managing Director of Litigation and has since been involved in the resolution of
major litigation issues for the Company. Mr. Lohse was promoted to Vice President Corporate Governance in 2004 and to
Vice President Litigation and Risk Management in 2007. Before joining the Company, Mr. Lohse was Managing Partner
at McDade, Fogler, Maines & Lohse where he conducted a general civil trial practice. Prior to that, he practiced tort and
commercial litigation at Fulbright & Jaworski. Mr. Lohse received a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the
University of Texas and a juris doctorate from the University of Houston Law Center.
Mr. Mixon joined SCI in 1995 as a Project Manager in the Information Technology Department. He later served as
Directeur Informatique for OGF, a former subsidiary company based in Paris, France. Most recently, he has led the
Information Technology Department and the Outsourcing Management Office as Managing Director. Prior to SCI,
Mr. Mixon worked for Andersen Consulting (now Accenture PLC) and served on active duty in the United States Army
achieving the rank of Captain. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce from Washington and Lee University
and a Master of Science degree in Systems Management from the University of Southern California.
Mrs. Moore joined the Company in August 2002 as Manager of Financial Reporting. She was promoted to Director of
Financial Reporting in 2004 and Managing Director and Assistant Controller in June 2006. In February 2010, she was
promoted to Vice President and Corporate Controller and oversees all general accounting, internal and external reporting,
customer service and strategic planning and analysis. Prior to joining the Company, Mrs. Moore was a Certified Public
Accountant with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for more than three years. She holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in Accounting from the University of Texas at San Antonio.
Each officer of the Company is elected by the Board of Directors and holds their office until a successor is elected and
qualified or until earlier death, resignation, or removal in the manner prescribed in the Bylaws of the Company. Each
officer of a subsidiary of the Company is elected by the subsidiary’s board of directors and holds their office until a
successor is elected and qualified or until earlier death, resignation, or removal in the manner prescribed in the Bylaws of
the Subsidiary.
PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.
Our common stock has been traded on the New York Stock Exchange since May 14, 1974. On December 31, 2009,
there were 4,635 holders of record of our common stock. In calculating the number of shareholders, we consider clearing
agencies and security position listings as one shareholder for each agency or listing. At December 31, 2009, we had
254,017,384 shares outstanding, net of 10,000 treasury shares.
During 2009, we paid cash dividends totaling $40.2 million and accrued $10.2 million for dividends paid on
January 29, 2010. During 2008, we paid cash dividends totaling $41.5 million. While we intend to pay regular quarterly
cash dividends for the foreseeable future, all subsequent dividends are subject to final determination by our Board of
Directors each quarter after its review of our financial performance.
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The table below shows our quarterly high and low closing common stock prices for the two years ended December 31:
2009

2008

High

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

$
$
$
$

5.28
5.79
7.67
8.25

Low

$
$
$
$

2.74
3.46
5.37
6.66

High

$ 13.88
$ 11.29
$ 10.50
$ 8.26

Low

$
$
$
$

9.48
9.86
8.14
4.31

Options in our common stock are traded on the Philadelphia Stock Exchange. Our common stock is traded on the New
York Stock Exchange under the symbol SCI.
Stock Performance Graph. This graph assumes the total return on $100 invested on December 31, 2004, in SCI
Common Stock, the S&P 500 Index, and a peer group selected by the Company (the “Peer Group”). The Peer Group is
comprised of Alderwoods Group, Inc., Carriage Services, Inc., Hillenbrand Inc., Matthews International Corp., Rock of
Ages Corporation, and Stewart Enterprises, Inc. Hillenbrand Inc. is included in the Peer Group starting March 31, 2008
when it was spun off from Hillenbrand Industries, Inc. Prior to the spin-off, the Peer Group included Hillenbrand
Industries, Inc. Alderwoods Group is included in the Peer Group until November 28, 2006, when it was acquired by SCI.
Total return data assumes reinvestment of dividends.
TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURNS
INDEXED RETURNS
Years Ending

For equity compensation plan information, see Part III of this Form 10-K
On October 30, 2009, we issued 1,157 deferred common stock equivalents or units pursuant to provisions regarding
the receipt of dividends under the Amended and Restated Director Fee Plan to four non-employee directors. These
issuances were unregistered as they did not constitute a “sale” within the meaning of Section 2(3) of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended.
Since 2004, we have repurchased a total of $1.0 billion of common stock at an average cost per share of $9.42. During
the twelve months ended December 31, 2009, we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock. The remaining
dollar value of shares to be purchased under the share repurchase program was $123.4 million at December 31, 2009. As
discussed in Item 1A, our credit agreement contains covenants that restrict our ability to repurchase our common stock.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.
The table below contains selected consolidated financial data as of and for the years ended December 31, 2005 through
December 31, 2009. The statement of operations data includes reclassifications of certain items to conform to current
period presentations with no impact on net income or financial position.
The data set forth below should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and accompanying
notes to these consolidated financial statements. This historical information is not necessarily indicative of future results.
Selected Consolidated Financial Information
Years Ended December 31,
2008
2007(3)
2006
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2009

Selected Consolidated Statements of
Operations Data:
Revenue
Income from continuing operations before
cumulative effect of accounting changes
(Loss) income from discontinued operations,
net of tax(1)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net
of tax(2)
Net income (loss)
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling
interests
Net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders
Earnings (loss) per share:
Income from continuing operations
attributable to common stockholders before
cumulative effect of accounting changes
Basic
Diluted
Net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders
Basic
Diluted
Cash dividends declared per share
Selected Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
(at December 31):
Total assets
Long-term debt (less current maturities),
including capital leases
Equity
Selected Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows Data:
Net cash provided by operating activities

2005

$ 2,053.5

$ 2,155.6

$

2,285.3

$

123.1

$

97.6

$

$

—

$

(0.4)

$

—
123.1

$

—
97.2

$

—

$

(0.1)

$

123.1

$

97.1

$

247.7

$

56.5

$

$
$

.49
.49

$
$

.38
.37

$
$

.85
.83

$
$

.17
.17

$
$

.18
.18

$
$
$

.49
.49
0.16

$
$
$

.38
.37
0.16

$
$
$

.87
.85
0.13

$
$
$

.18
.18
0.105

$
$
$

(.42)
(.42)
0.10

$ 8,891.0

$ 8,110.9

$

8,932.2

$ 9,729.4

$ 7,544.8

$ 1,840.5
$ 1,482.8

$ 1,821.4
$ 1,293.2

$
$

1,820.1
1,492.1

$ 1,912.7
$ 1,594.8

$ 1,186.5
$ 1,581.6

$

$

$

356.2

$

$

372.1

350.3

$ 1,752.9

$ 1,717.0

243.3

$

52.6

$

55.1

$

4.4

$

3.9

$

4.5

$

—
247.7

$

—
56.5

$
$

—

—

324.2

(187.5)
(127.9)
—
(127.9)

312.9

(1) Our operations in Singapore, which were sold in 2006, and our operations in Argentina, Uruguay, and Chile, which
were sold in 2005, have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented. The operations of
Mayflower, which were sold in 2007, have been classified as discontinued operations in 2007 and
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2006 (since our acquisition of Alderwoods). For more information regarding discontinued operations, see Note 19 in
Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
(2) In 2005, we changed our accounting to expense our direct selling costs related to preneed funeral and cemetery sales
in the period in which they were incurred. In connection with this accounting change, we recorded a $187.5 million
charge, net of tax, for the cumulative effect of this change in 2005.
(3) Results for 2007 include a $158.1 million pretax gain on redemption of securities related to our former equity
investment in France.
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
The Company
We are North America’s largest provider of deathcare products and services, with a network of funeral homes and
cemeteries unequalled in geographic scale and reach. Our funeral service and cemetery operations consist of funeral
service locations, cemeteries, funeral service/cemetery combination locations, crematoria, and related businesses. We sell
cemetery property and funeral and cemetery products and services at the time of need and on a preneed basis.
We continue to focus on returning capital to our shareholders. Since 2004, we have invested $1 billion in cumulative
stock repurchases and quarterly dividends. We currently have over $123.4 million authorized to repurchase our common
stock. Our financial stability is further enhanced by our $6.4 billion backlog of future revenues at December 31, 2009,
which is the result of preneed funeral and cemetery sales. We believe we have the financial strength and flexibility to
reward shareholders through dividends while maintaining a prudent capital structure and pursuing new opportunities for
profitable growth.
Recent Events
Acquisition
On October 14, 2009, we entered into a definitive support agreement in which we agreed to offer to acquire all of the
outstanding common shares of Keystone North America, Inc. (Keystone) for Canadian (C$)8.00 per share in cash with
price escalators based on the actual closing date. The total acquisition is valued at approximately $265 million using
exchange rates as of December 31, 2009, including transaction fees and the assumption of Keystone’s outstanding debt.
Keystone operates 199 funeral homes and 15 cemeteries in North America. We have substantial cash on hand, availability
under our bank credit facility, and $150 million of debt proceeds in escrow accounts, which will be used in the acquisition.
The transaction is anticipated to close in the first quarter of 2010, subject to customary closing conditions, including
expiration of the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Act; however, there can be no assurance the
acquisition will be completed by this time or at all.
Bank Credit Facility
In the fourth quarter of 2009, we amended our bank credit facility to increase the availability thereunder from
$300 million to $400 million and extended the maturity date by two years to November 2013. We used the increased
availability under our facility to prepay in full our privately placed $150 million aggregate principal amount of Series B
Senior Notes due November 2011.
Debt Issuance
In November 2009, we issued $150 million of unsecured 8.0% Senior Notes due 2021. The net proceeds of these notes
are held in escrow accounts, pending the consummation of the Keystone acquisition and related financial transactions.
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Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources
Recent Volatility in Financial Markets
Our funeral, cemetery merchandise and service, and cemetery perpetual care trusts have been impacted by the
volatility in the U.S. and global financial markets. The fair market value of our trust investments declined sharply in the
second half of 2008. Since that time, our trusts have recovered commensurate with the overall improvement in the
financial markets. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2009, the value of our combined trust fund assets
increased 24.6%.
As of December 31, 2009, we have cumulative net unrealized losses of $83.0 million in our preneed funeral and
cemetery merchandise and service trusts, and cumulative net unrealized losses of $42.7 million in our cemetery perpetual
care trusts, as discussed in Notes 4, 5, and 6 in Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. At
December 31, 2009, these net unrealized losses represented 4.7% of our original investment cost basis of $2.7 billion. As
explained in “Critical Accounting Policies, Fair Value Measurements”, changes in unrealized gains and/or losses related to
these securities are reflected in Other comprehensive income (loss) and offset by the Deferred preneed funeral and
cemetery receipts held in trust and Care trusts’ corpus interest in those unrealized gains and/or losses. Therefore, the
majority of these net unrealized losses are not reflected in our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2009. We do, however, rely on our trust investments to provide funding for the various contractual
obligations that arise upon maturity of the underlying preneed contracts. Because of the long-term relationship between
the establishment of trust investments and the required performance of the underlying contractual obligations, the impact
of current market conditions that may exist at any given time is not necessarily indicative of our ability to generate profit
on our future performance obligations.
In 2009, we recorded a $76.8 million impairment charge for other-than-temporary declines in fair value related to
unrealized losses on certain equity securities. We have determined that the remaining unrealized losses in our trust
investments are considered temporary in nature, as the unrealized losses were due to temporary fluctuations in the capital
markets. Our analysis included a review of the portfolio holdings and discussions with the individual money managers as
to the sector exposures, credit ratings, and the severity and duration of the unrealized losses. The investments are
diversified across multiple industry segments using a balanced allocation strategy to minimize long-term risk.
Trust Investments
In addition to selling our products and services to client families at the time of need, we sell price-guaranteed preneed
funeral and cemetery contracts, which provide for future funeral or cemetery services and merchandise. Since preneed
funeral and cemetery services or merchandise will not be provided until sometime in the future, most states and provinces
require that all or a portion of the funds collected from customers on preneed funeral and cemetery contracts be paid into
trusts and/or escrow accounts until the merchandise is delivered or the service is performed. Investment earnings
associated with the trust investments are expected to mitigate the inflationary costs of providing the preneed funeral and
cemetery services and merchandise in the future for the prices that were guaranteed at the time of sale.
Also, we are required by state and provincial law to pay a portion of the proceeds from the sale of cemetery property
interment rights into perpetual care trusts. For these investments, the original corpus remains in the trust in perpetuity and
the net ordinary earnings are intended to offset the expense to maintain the cemetery property. The majority of states
require that net gains or losses are retained and added to the corpus, but certain states allow the net realized gains and
losses to be included in the income that is distributed.
Independent trustees manage and invest all of the funds deposited into the funeral and cemetery merchandise and
service trusts as well as the cemetery perpetual care trusts. The trustees are selected based on their respective geographic
footprint and qualifications per state and provincial regulations. All of the trustees engage the same independent
investment advisor. The trustees, with input from the investment advisor, establish an investment policy that serves as an
operating document to guide the investment activities of the trusts including asset allocation and manager selection. The
investments are also governed by state and provincial guidelines. Asset allocation is based on the liability structure of each
funeral, cemetery, and perpetual care trust. The investment advisor
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recommends investment managers to the trustees that are selected on the basis of various criteria set forth in the
investment policy. The primary investment objectives for the funeral and cemetery merchandise and service trusts include
(1) achieving growth of principal over time sufficient to preserve and increase the purchasing power of the assets, and
(2) preserving capital within acceptable levels of volatility. Preneed funeral and cemetery contracts generally take years to
mature. Therefore, the funds associated with these contracts are often invested for several market cycles. While cemetery
perpetual care trusts share the same investment objectives as listed above, these trusts emphasize providing a steady
stream of investment income with some capital appreciation. The trusts seek to control risk and volatility through a
combination of asset styles, asset classes, and institutional investment managers.
The market values of our trust investments at December 31, 2009 are detailed below (in thousands).
Funeral
Merchandise
and Service

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
Canadian government
Corporate
Residential mortgage-backed
Asset-backed
Equity securities:
Preferred stock
Common stock (based on
investment objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Trust investments
Assets associated with businesses
held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents
Insurance-backed fixed income
securities
Total trust assets

$

$

Total Funeral
and Cemetery
Merchandise
and Service

Cemetery
Merchandise
and Service

41,258
106,096
31,848
6,682
3,264

$

33,172
15,835
9,500
1,477
6,669

$

Cemetery
Perpetual
Care Funds

74,430
121,931
41,348
8,159
9,933

$

5,874
26,974
43,415
1,949
528

Total

$

80,304
148,905
84,763
10,108
10,461

—

—

—

6,933

6,933

162,516
179,620

214,453
262,975

376,969
442,595

6,373
123,174

383,342
565,769

93,142
135,467
11,166
886
771,945

207,698
211,980
3,976
365
968,100

300,840
347,447
15,142
1,251
1,740,045

55,801
528,676
11,012
3,931
814,640

356,641
876,123
26,154
5,182
2,554,685

(377)
153,126

(47,726)
145,668

214,255
1,138,949

$

—
1,066,042

(48,103)
298,794

$

214,255
2,204,991

(17,104)
92,153

$

—
889,689

(65,207)
390,947

$

214,255
3,094,680

As of the end of the year, 88% of our trusts were under the control and custody of two large financial institutions
engaged as preferred trustees. The U.S. trustees primarily use common trust fund structures as the investment vehicle for
their trusts. Through the common trust fund structure, each respective trustee manages the allocation of assets through
individual managed accounts or institutional mutual funds. In the event a particular state prohibits the use of a common
trust fund as a qualified investment, the trustee utilizes institutional mutual funds. The U.S. trusts include a modest
allocation to alternative investments, which are comprised primarily of private equity and real estate investments. These
investments are structured as limited liability companies (LLCs) and are managed by certain trustees. The trusts that are
eligible to allocate a portion of their investments to alternative investments purchase units of the respective LLCs.
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Fixed Income Securities
Fixed income investments are intended to preserve principal, provide a source of current income, and reduce overall
portfolio volatility. The SCI trusts have direct investments primarily in government and corporate fixed income securities.
Canadian government fixed income securities are investments in Canadian federal and provincial government
instruments. In many cases, regulatory restrictions mandate that the funds from the sales of preneed funeral and cemetery
products sold in certain Canadian jurisdictions must be invested in these instruments.
Equity Securities
Equity investments have historically provided long-term capital appreciation in excess of inflation. The SCI trusts have
direct investments primarily in domestic equity portfolios that include large, mid, and small capitalization companies of
different investment objectives (i.e., growth and value). The majority of the equity portfolio is managed by multiple
institutional investment managers that specialize in an objective-specific area of expertise. Our equity securities are
exposed to market risk; however, these securities are well-diversified. As of December 31, 2009, the largest single equity
position represented less than 1% of the total equity securities portfolio.
Mutual Funds
The SCI trust funds employ institutional mutual funds where operationally or economically efficient. Institutional
mutual funds are utilized to invest in various asset classes including US equities, non-US equities, convertible bonds,
corporate bonds, government bonds, Treasury inflation protected securities (TIPS), high yield bonds, real estate investment
trusts (REITs), and commodities. The mutual funds are governed by guidelines outlined in their individual prospectuses.
Private Equity
The objective of these investments is to provide high rates of return with controlled volatility. These investments are
typically long-term in duration. These investments are diversified by strategy, sector, manager, and vintage year. Private
equity exposure is accessed through LLCs established by certain preferred trustees. These LLCs invest in numerous
limited partnerships, including private equity, fund of funds, distressed debt, and mezzanine financing. The trustees that
have oversight of their respective LLCs work closely with the investment advisor in making all current investments.
Outlook for Trust Investments
The trust fund income recognized from these investment assets continues to be volatile. During the twelve months
ended December 31, 2009, the Standard and Poor’s 500 Index increased approximately 26% and the Barclay’s Aggregate
Index increased approximately 6%, while the combined SCI trusts increased approximately 25%. As the capital markets
continue to improve, the SCI trusts should participate in the recovery.
SCI, its trustees, and the investment advisor continue to monitor the capital markets and the trusts on an ongoing basis.
The trustees, with input from the investment advisor, will take prudent action as needed to achieve the investment goals
and objectives of the trusts.
Capital Allocation Considerations
We rely on cash flow from operations as a significant source of liquidity. Our cash flow from operating activities
provided $372.1 million in 2009. Our current cash and cash equivalents balance is $164.3 million as of February 22, 2010.
In addition, we have approximately $233 million in excess borrowing capacity under our bank credit facility, which
matures in November 2013 (currently used to support $47.4 million of letters of credit). We have no significant maturities
of long-term debt until November 2013.
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Our bank credit facility requires us to maintain certain leverage and interest coverage ratios. As of December 31, 2009
we were in compliance with all of our debt covenants. Our financial covenant requirements and actual ratios as of
December 31, 2009 are as follows:
Per Credit Agreement

Leverage ratio
Interest coverage ratio

Actual

3.53(1)
3.92

4.25(Max)
2.75(Min)

(1) Indebtedness includes $150 million of notes issued in association with the Keystone acquisition; however, no
Keystone earnings before income taxes, depreciation, and amortization have been included in calculating the leverage
ratio. Removing the $150 million of notes issued for the acquisition would result in a leverage ratio of 3.23.
Our financial covenant requirements per our agreement become more restrictive over time. Our future leverage and
interest coverage ratios are as follows:
Leverage Ratio (Max)

2010 and thereafter

4.00

Interest Coverage Ratio (Min)

3.00

In the fourth quarter of 2009, we amended our bank credit facility to increase the availability thereunder from
$300 million to $400 million, and we used cash on hand and the increased availability under our facility to prepay in full
our privately placed $150 million aggregate principal amount of Series B Senior notes due November 2011. We also
extended the term of the facility to November 2013.
We believe our sources of liquidity can be supplemented by our ability to access the capital markets for additional debt
or equity securities. We believe that our cash on hand, future operating cash flows, and the available capacity under our
bank credit facility will be adequate to meet our financial obligations over the next 12 months.
We expect to continue to focus on funding growth initiatives that generate increased profitability, revenue, and cash
flows. These capital investments include the construction of high-end cemetery property (such as private family estates)
and the construction of funeral home facilities. We will also consider the acquisition of additional deathcare operations that
fit our long-term customer-focused strategy, if the expected returns exceed our cost of capital. Our outlook for capital
improvements at existing facilities and cemetery development expenditures in 2010 is $85 to $95 million.
We paid our shareholders cash dividends from 1974 to 1999. In early 2005, we resumed paying shareholders a
quarterly cash dividend of $0.025 per common share. In November 2006, we increased our quarterly dividend to $0.03 per
common share. In November 2007, we increased our quarterly dividend to $0.04 per common share. While we intend to
pay regular quarterly cash dividends for the foreseeable future, all future dividends are subject to limitations in our debt
covenants and final determination by our Board of Directors each quarter upon review of our financial performance.
We currently have approximately $123.4 million authorized under our share repurchase program. We intend to make
purchases from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions, subject to market conditions,
debt covenants, and normal trading restrictions. Our credit agreement contains covenants that limit our ability to
repurchase our common stock. There can be no assurance that we will buy our common stock under our share repurchase
program in the future.
Cash Flow
We believe our ability to generate strong operating cash flow is one of our fundamental financial strengths and
provides us with substantial flexibility in meeting operating and investing needs.
Operating Activities — Net cash provided by operating activities increased $21.8 million in 2009 compared to 2008.
The increase was led by higher earnings in the current year and supported by net cash improvements from working capital
initiatives.
Net cash provided by operating activities decreased $5.9 million in 2008 compared to 2007. The decrease was the
result of a $47.9 million net decrease in working capital due to lower collections of preneed and atneed
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receivables and lower trust fund income on our trust assets, which were partially offset by cost control initiatives. Cash
flow from operations also decreased as a result of $17.3 million of operating cash flow from discontinued operations in
2007, $17.0 million from proceeds on the redemption of French securities in 2007, and $8.6 million in insurance proceeds
related to Hurricane Katrina in 2007. These decreases were offset by $35.3 million in one-time Alderwoods transition and
other costs in 2007 compared to 2008, $37.9 million in pension termination costs in 2007 compared to 2008, and
$11.7 million in premiums paid on early extinguishment of debt in 2007.
Investing Activities — Cash flows from investing activities used $152.5 million in 2009 compared to using
$151.3 million in 2008. This $1.2 million increase was primarily attributable to a $70.3 million decrease in capital
expenditures and a $5.3 million decrease in deposits, partially offset by a $76.1 million increase in acquisitions. Investing
activities used net cash of $151.3 million in 2008 compared to providing net cash flows of $378.1 million in 2007,
primarily due to a $527.4 million decrease in proceeds generated from the divestiture of non-strategic assets.
In 2007, we completed the sale of Mayflower National Life Insurance Company, Alderwoods’ former insurance
subsidiary, and we divested all of our properties required to be divested by the FTC as a result of the Alderwoods
acquisition. We also received $4.7 million of proceeds held as an income tax receivable related to the 2005 sale of our
operations in Chile, $1.9 million in cash proceeds related to the 2006 sale of our operations in Singapore, and
$144.0 million related to the redemption of securities involving our former equity investment in France.
Financing Activities — Financing activities used $178.4 million in 2009 compared to using $230.6 million in 2008.
This $52.2 million net decrease in financing cash outflows was primarily driven by a $142.2 million decrease in
repurchases of Company common stock, a $59.7 million increase in proceeds from issuance of long-term debt (net of debt
issuance costs), a $2.6 million increase in proceeds from exercise of stock options, offset by a $156.9 million increase in
debt payments. Cash flows from financing activities used $230.6 million in 2008 compared to using $607.5 million in
2007. This $376.9 million net decrease in financing cash outflows in 2008 compared to 2007 was driven by a
$363.0 million decrease in share repurchases and a $472.5 million decrease in early extinguishments of debt, partially
offset by $38.1 million lower proceeds from stock option exercises, an $81.9 million increase in scheduled debt payments,
and $310.4 million lower proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt.
Proceeds from long-term debt (net of debt issuance costs) were $141.9 million in 2009 due to a $150.0 million
drawdown under our bank credit facility. Proceeds from long-term debt (net of debt issuance costs) were $82.1 million in
2008 due to a $54.3 million drawdown under our bank credit facility and $27.8 million of mortgage and other debentures.
Proceeds from long-term debt (net of debt issuance costs) were $392.6 million in 2007 due to the issuance of $200 million
of senior unsecured 6.75% notes due 2015 and $200 million of senior unsecured 7.50% notes due 2027.
Payments of debt in 2009 were $293.5 million due to the payment of our Series B Senior Notes due November 2011 in
the amount of $150.0 million, the repayment of $28.7 million of our 7.7% notes due April 2009, $22.8 million of our
7.875% Debentures due February 2013, $4.9 million of our 7.375% Senior notes due October 2014, $36.9 million of our
6.75% Notes due April 2015, $15.9 million of our 6.75% Notes due April 2016, $4.5 million of our 7.0% Notes due June
2017, $5.5 million in other scheduled debt payments, and $24.3 million on capital lease payments. Payments of debt in
2008 were $138.2 million due to the repayment of our bank credit facility of $54.3 million, the repayment of $45.2 million
of our 6.5% notes due March 2008, $12.8 million in other scheduled debt payments, and $25.9 million in payments on
capital leases. Payments of debt in 2007 were $528.8 million due to early extinguishments of $472.5 million, the
acceptance of the tender of $13.5 million of our 6.875% notes due October 2007, $3.7 million in scheduled debt payments,
$27.1 million in payments on capital leases, and $12.0 million of other note payments.
We did not repurchase any shares in 2009. However, we repurchased 17.7 million shares for $142.2 million in 2008
and 38.5 million shares for $505.1 million in 2007.
We paid cash dividends of $40.2 million in 2009, $41.5 million in 2008, and $34.6 million in 2007.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Contractual Obligations, and Commercial and Contingent Commitments
We have assumed various financial obligations and commitments in the ordinary course of conducting our business.
We have contractual obligations requiring future cash payments under existing contractual arrangements, such as debt
maturities, interest on long-term debt, operating lease agreements, and employment, consulting, and non-competition
agreements. We also have commercial and contingent obligations that result in cash payments only if certain events occur
requiring our performance pursuant to a funding commitment.
The following table details our known future cash payments (on an undiscounted basis) related to various contractual
obligations as of December 31, 2009.
Payments Due by Period
Contractual Obligations

Debt maturities(1)
Interest obligation on long-term debt(2)
Operating lease agreements(3)
Employment, consulting, and
non-competition agreements(4)
Total contractual obligations

2010

$

50.0
127.9
9.5

5.6
$ 193.0

2011-2012

$

$

34.5
260.2
14.3
6.1
315.1

2013-2014
Thereafter
(Dollars in millions)

$

$

474.0
247.2
11.8
3.9
736.9

$

$

Total

1,332.0
440.7
44.2

$ 1,890.5
1,076.0
79.8

6.1
1,823.0

21.7
$ 3,068.0

(1) Our outstanding indebtedness contains standard provisions, such as payment delinquency default clauses and change
of control clauses. In addition, our bank credit facility agreement contains a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum
interest coverage ratio. See “Capital Allocation Considerations” and Note 10 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data, for additional details related to our long-term debt.
(2) Approximately 85% of our total debt is fixed rate debt for which the interest obligation was calculated at the stated
rate. Future interest obligations on our floating rate debt are based on the current forward rate curve of the underlying
index. See Note 10 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, for additional information
related to our future interest obligations.
(3) The majority of our lease arrangements contain options to (i) purchase the property at fair value on the exercise date,
(ii) purchase the property for a value determined at the inception of the leases, or (iii) renew for the fair rental value
at the end of the primary lease term. Our leases primarily relate to funeral service locations and cemetery operating
and maintenance equipment. See Note 12 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, for
additional details related to our leases.
(4) We have entered into management employment, consulting, and non-competition agreements that contractually
require us to make cash payments over the contractual period. The agreements have been primarily entered into with
certain officers and employees and former owners of businesses acquired. Agreements with contractual periods less
than one year are excluded. See Note 12 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, for
additional details related to these agreements.
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The following table details our known potential or possible future cash payments (on an undiscounted basis) related to
various commercial and contingent obligations as of December 31, 2009.
Expiration by Period
Commercial and Contingent Obligations

Surety obligations(1)
Long-term obligations related to uncertain tax
positions(2)
Letters of credit(3)
Representations and warranties(4)
Total commercial and contingent obligations

2010

2011-2012

$ 224.7
14.0
—
—
$ 238.7

$

—

$

157.7
—
11.3
169.0

2013-2014
(Dollars in millions)

$

—

$

5.7
47.4
—
53.1

Thereafter

Total

$

—

$ 224.7

$

3.0
—
—
3.0

180.4
47.4
11.3
$ 463.8

(1) Represents the aggregate funding obligation associated with our surety bond arrangements assuming our surety
partners did not renew any of our surety obligations and we could not find replacement surety assurance. See the
section titled “Financial Assurances” following this table in this Form 10-K for more information related to our
surety bonds.
(2) In accordance with the Income Tax Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC), we have recorded a liability for unrecognized tax benefits and related interest and
penalties of $180.4 million as of December 31, 2009. See Note 9 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data, for additional information related to our uncertain tax positions.
(3) We are occasionally required to post letters of credit, issued by a financial institution, to secure certain insurance
programs or other obligations. Letters of credit generally authorize the financial institution to make a payment to the
beneficiary upon the satisfaction of a certain event or the failure to satisfy an obligation. The letters of credit are
generally posted for one-year terms and are usually automatically renewed upon maturity until such time as we have
satisfied the commitment secured by the letter of credit. We are obligated to reimburse the issuer only if the
beneficiary collects on the letter of credit. We believe it is unlikely we will be required to fund a claim under our
outstanding letters of credit. As of December 31, 2009, the full amount of our letters of credit was supported by our
bank credit facility which expires in November 2013.
(4) In addition to the letters of credit described above, we currently have contingent obligations of $11.3 million related
to our asset sales and joint venture transactions. The obligations primarily relate to certain foreign tax and litigation
matters. We have agreed to guarantee certain representations and warranties associated with such divestiture
transactions with letters of credit or interest-bearing cash investments. We have interest-bearing cash investments of
$23.9 million included in Deferred charges and other assets pledged as collateral for certain of these contingent
obligations. See Note 12 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, for additional information
related to this obligation.
Not included in the above table are potential funding obligations related to our funeral and cemetery merchandise and
service trusts. In certain states and provinces, we have withdrawn allowable distributable earnings including unrealized
gains prior to the maturity or cancellation of the related contract. Additionally, some states have laws that either require
replenishment of investment losses under certain circumstances or impose various restrictions when trust fund values drop
below certain prescribed amounts. In the event that our trust investments do not recover from recent market declines, we
may be required to deposit portions or all of these amounts into the respective trusts in some future period. As of
December 31, 2009, we had unrealized losses of $9.1 million in the various trusts within these states.
Financial Assurances
In support of our operations, we have entered into arrangements with certain surety companies whereby such
companies agree to issue surety bonds on our behalf as financial assurance and/or as required by existing state and local
regulations. The surety bonds are used for various business purposes; however, the majority of the surety bonds issued and
outstanding have been used to support our preneed funeral and cemetery sales activities. The
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obligations underlying these surety bonds are recorded on the consolidated balance sheet as Deferred preneed funeral
revenues and Deferred preneed cemetery revenues. The breakdown of surety bonds between funeral and cemetery preneed
arrangements, as well as surety bonds for other activities, is described below.
December 31,
December 31,
2009
2008
(Dollars in millions)

Preneed funeral
Preneed cemetery:
Merchandise and services
Pre-construction
Bonds supporting preneed funeral and cemetery obligations
Bonds supporting preneed business permits
Other bonds
Total surety bonds outstanding

$

126.6

$

126.0
3.3
255.9
4.6
22.1
282.6

$

130.6

$

132.4
2.9
265.9
5.1
17.7
288.7

When selling preneed funeral and cemetery contracts, we may post surety bonds where allowed by state law. We post
the surety bonds in lieu of trusting a certain amount of funds received from the customer. The $255.9 million in bonds
supporting preneed funeral and cemetery obligations differs from the $224.7 potential funding obligation disclosed in our
“Commercial and Contingent Obligations” table above because the amount of the bond posted is generally determined by
the total amount of the preneed contract that would otherwise be required to be trusted, in accordance with applicable state
law, at the time we enter into the contract. We would only be required to fund the trust for the portion of the preneed
contract for which we have received payment from the customer, less any applicable retainage, in accordance with state
law. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, we had $23.8 million, $29.5 million, and $38.4 million,
respectively, of cash receipts from sales attributable to bonded contracts. These amounts do not consider reductions
associated with taxes, obtaining costs, or other costs.
Surety bond premiums are paid annually and are automatically renewable until maturity of the underlying preneed
contracts, unless we are given prior notice of cancellation. Except for cemetery pre-construction bonds (which are
irrevocable), the surety companies generally have the right to cancel the surety bonds at any time with appropriate notice.
In the event a surety company were to cancel the surety bond, we are required to obtain replacement surety assurance from
another surety company or fund a trust for an amount generally less than the posted bond amount. Management does not
expect that we will be required to fund material future amounts related to these surety bonds due to a lack of surety
capacity or surety company non-performance.
Preneed Funeral and Cemetery Activities and Backlog of Contracts
In addition to selling our products and services to client families at the time of need, we sell price-guaranteed preneed
funeral and cemetery contracts, which provide for future funeral or cemetery services and merchandise. Since preneed
funeral and cemetery services or merchandise will not be provided until sometime in the future, most states and provinces
require that all or a portion of the funds collected from customers on preneed funeral and cemetery contracts be paid into
merchandise and service trusts until the merchandise is delivered or the service is performed. In certain situations, as
described above, where permitted by state or provincial laws, we post a surety bond as financial assurance for a certain
amount of the preneed funeral or cemetery contract in lieu of placing funds into trust accounts.
Trust-Funded Preneed Funeral and Cemetery Contracts: The funds are deposited into trust and invested by
independent trustees in accordance with state and provincial laws. We retain any funds above the amounts required to be
deposited into trust accounts and use them for working capital purposes, generally to offset the selling and administrative
costs of our preneed programs.
Investment earnings associated with the trust investments are expected to mitigate the inflationary costs of providing
the preneed funeral and cemetery services and merchandise in the future for the prices that were guaranteed at the time of
sale. Our preneed funeral and cemetery trust assets are consolidated and recorded in our
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consolidated balance sheet at fair market value. Investment earnings on trust assets are generally accumulated in the trust
and distributed as the revenue associated with the preneed funeral or cemetery contract is recognized or cancelled by the
customer. In certain states and provinces, the trusts are allowed to distribute a portion of the investment earnings to us
prior to that date. See “Recent Volatility in Financial Markets” for more information.
If a preneed funeral or cemetery contract is cancelled prior to delivery, state or provincial law determines the amount
of the refund owed to the customer, if any, including the amount of the attributed investment earnings. Upon cancellation,
we receive the amount of principal deposited to trust and previously undistributed net investment earnings and, where
required, issue a refund to the customer. We retain excess funds, if any, and recognize the attributed investment earnings
(net of any investment earnings payable to the customer) as revenues in our consolidated statement of operations. In
certain jurisdictions, we may be obligated to fund any shortfall if the amounts deposited by the customer exceed the funds
in trust. Funds in trust assets exceeded customer deposits at December 31, 2009. See Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements,
Contractual Obligations, and Commercial and Contingent Commitments for additional information about potential
funding obligations related to our funeral and cemetery merchandise and service trusts. Based on our historical experience,
we have included a cancellation reserve for preneed funeral and cemetery contracts in our consolidated balance sheet of
$130.9 million and $137.8 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The cash flow activity over the life of a trust-funded preneed funeral or cemetery contract from the date of sale to its
recognition or cancellation is captured in the following operating cash flow line items in our consolidated statement of
cash flows:
• Decrease in preneed funeral receivables, net and trust investments;
• (Increase) decrease in preneed cemetery receivables, net and trust investments;
• (Decrease) increase in deferred preneed funeral revenue;
• Increase in deferred preneed cemetery revenue;
• Decrease in deferred preneed funeral receipts held in trust;
• Decrease in deferred preneed cemetery receipts held in trust; and
• Net income.
While the contract is outstanding, cash flow is provided by the amount retained from funds collected from the
customer and any distributed investment earnings. At the time of death maturity, we receive the principal and
undistributed investment earnings from the funeral trust and any remaining receivable due from the customer. At the time
of delivery or storage of cemetery merchandise and service items for which we were required to deposit funds to trust, we
receive the principal and undistributed investment earnings from the cemetery trust. There is generally no remaining
receivable due from the customer, as our policy is to deliver preneed cemetery merchandise and service items only upon
payment of the contract balance in full. This cash flow at the time of service, delivery, or storage is generally less than the
associated revenue recognized, thus reducing cash flow from operating activities.
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The tables below detail our North America results of preneed funeral and cemetery production and
maturities, excluding insurance contracts, for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.
North America
Years Ended
December 31,
2009
2008
(Dollars in millions)

Funeral:
Preneed trust-funded (including bonded):
Sales production

$

Sales production (number of contracts)

141.7

$

26,947

Maturities

$

Maturities (number of contracts)

175.5

30,320
$

42,826

Cemetery:
Sales production:
Preneed
Atneed
Total sales production
Sales production deferred to backlog:
Preneed
Atneed
Total sales production deferred to backlog
Revenue recognized from backlog:
Preneed
Atneed
Total revenue recognized from backlog

152.8

196.1
45,392

$

387.4
239.1
626.5

$

358.9
249.5
608.4

$

160.6
182.3
342.9

$

148.0
190.1
338.1

$

134.7
182.2
316.9

$

144.1
196.7
340.8

Insurance-Funded Preneed Funeral Contracts: Where permitted by state or provincial law, customers
may arrange their preneed funeral contract by purchasing a life insurance or annuity policy from third-party
insurance companies, for which we earn a commission as general sales agent for the insurance company.
These general agency commissions (GA revenues) are based on a percentage per contract sold and are
recognized as funeral revenues when the insurance purchase transaction between the customer and third-party
insurance provider is completed. Direct selling costs incurred pursuant to the sale of insurance-funded
preneed funeral contracts are expensed as incurred. The policy amount of the insurance contract between the
customer and the third-party insurance company generally equals the amount of the preneed funeral contract.
We do not reflect the unfulfilled insurance-funded preneed funeral contract amounts in our consolidated
balance sheet. Approximately 69% of our North America preneed funeral production in 2009 relates to
insurance-funded preneed funeral contracts.
The third-party insurance company collects funds related to the insurance contract directly from the
customer. The life insurance contracts include a death benefit escalation provision, which is expected to offset
the inflationary costs of providing the preneed funeral services and merchandise in the future at the prices that
were guaranteed at the time of the preneed sale. The customer/policy holder assigns the policy benefits to our
funeral home to pay for the preneed funeral contract at the time of need.
Additionally, we may receive cash overrides based on achieving certain dollar volume targets of life
insurance policies sold as a result of marketing agreements entered into in connection with the sale of our
insurance subsidiaries in 2000. Included in GA revenues for 2009 and 2008 were cash overrides in the amount
of $9.4 million and $8.5 million, respectively.
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The table below details the North America results of insurance-funded preneed funeral production and
maturities for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the number of contracts associated with
those transactions.
North America
Years Ended December 31,
2009
2008
(Dollars in millions)

Preneed funeral insurance-funded(1):
Sales production

$

Sales production (number of contracts)

320.2

$

53,875

296.2
49,381

General agency revenue

$

57.3

$

51.5

Maturities

$

246.5

$

250.5

Maturities (number of contracts)

46,343

47,890

(1) Amounts are not included in our consolidated balance sheet.
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North America Backlog of Preneed Funeral and Cemetery Contracts: The following table reflects our
North America backlog of trust-funded deferred preneed funeral and cemetery contract revenues, including
amounts related to Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust at December 31, 2009 and
2008. Additionally, the table reflects our North America backlog of unfulfilled insurance-funded contracts
(which are not included in our consolidated balance sheet) at December 31, 2009 and 2008. The backlog
amounts presented are reduced by an amount that we believe will cancel before maturity based on historical
experience.
The table also reflects our North America preneed funeral and cemetery receivables and trust investments
(market and cost bases) associated with the backlog of deferred preneed funeral and cemetery contract
revenues, net of the estimated cancellation allowance. We believe that the table below is meaningful because
it sets forth the aggregate amount of future revenues we expect to recognize as a result of preneed sales, as
well as the amount of assets associated with those revenues. Because the future revenues exceed the asset
amounts, future revenues will exceed the cash distributions actually received from the associated trusts.
December 31,
December 31,
2009
2008
Market
Cost
Market
Cost
(Dollars in billions)

Deferred preneed funeral revenues
Deferred preneed funeral receipts held in trust

$

0.59
1.14
1.73
(0.12)
1.61
3.03
4.64

$

0.59
1.17
$ 1.76
(0.12)
$ 1.64
3.03
$ 4.67

$

Preneed funeral receivables and trust investments
$
Allowance for cancellation on trust investments
Assets associated with backlog of trust-funded deferred
preneed funeral revenues, net of estimated allowance
for cancellation
$
Insurance policies associated with insurance-funded
deferred preneed funeral revenues, net of estimated
allowance for cancellation
Total assets associated with backlog of preneed funeral
revenues, net of estimated allowance for cancellation $

1.35
(0.11)

$

1.39
(0.11)

1.24

$

1.28

4.27

$

Deferred preneed cemetery revenues
Deferred preneed cemetery receipts held in trust

0.82
1.06
1.88
(0.16)
1.72

$

$

$

$
Allowance for cancellation on trust investments
Backlog of trust-funded preneed funeral revenues
Backlog of insurance-funded preneed funeral revenues
Total backlog of preneed funeral revenues

$
$

$
$

Allowance for cancellation on trust investments
Total backlog of deferred cemetery revenues

$

Preneed cemetery receivables and trust investments
Allowance for cancellation on trust investments
Total assets associated with backlog of deferred
cemetery revenues, net of estimated allowance for
cancellation

3.03

0.59
1.00
1.59
(0.11)
1.48
3.30
4.78

$

$

1.19
(0.15)

$

1.43
(0.15)

$

1.04

$

1.28

$
$
$

3.03
4.31

0.59
1.24
$ 1.83
(0.11)
$ 1.72
3.30
$ 5.02

3.30

3.30

$

4.34

$

0.82
1.11
$ 1.93
(0.16)
$ 1.77

$

0.77
0.82
1.59
(0.13)
1.46

$

1.38
(0.14)

$

1.43
(0.14)

$

1.06
(0.11)

$

1.35
(0.11)

1.24

$

1.29

$

0.95

$

1.24

$
$

4.58

0.77
1.11
$ 1.88
(0.13)
$ 1.75

The market value of our funeral and cemetery trust investments was based on a combination of quoted
market prices, observable inputs such as interest rates or yield curves, and appraisals. For more information
on how market values are estimated, see Critical Accounting Policies below. The difference between the
backlog and asset amounts represents the contracts for which we have posted surety bonds as financial
assurance in lieu of trusting, the amounts
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collected from customers that were not required to be deposited into trust, and allowable cash distributions from trust
assets. The table also reflects the amounts expected to be received from insurance companies through the assignment of
policy proceeds related to insurance-funded funeral contracts.
Results of Operations — Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007
Management Summary
Key developments in 2009 were as follows:
• Revenues decreased $102.1 million, or 4.7%, as a result of a 7.2% decline in funeral services performed (6.7% on a
comparable basis) coupled with a decrease in recognition rates on cemetery property and merchandise revenues.
• The consolidated funeral segment gross margin percentage increased to 22.0% from 21.2%. The consolidated
cemetery segment gross margin percentage increased to 17.5% from 15.6%. These increases reflect lower variable
selling compensation expenses, a decline in personnel costs related to work-force initiatives, and a reduction in
self-insurance casualty reserves.
• Due to the recent volatility in the financial markets, our funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trust and
cemetery perpetual care trust fund income decreased $11.1 million in 2009 compared with 2008.
Results of Operations — Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007
In 2009, we reported consolidated net income attributable to common stockholders of $123.1 million ($.49 per diluted
share) compared to net income attributable to common stockholders in 2008 of $97.1 million ($.37 per diluted share) and
net income attributable to common stockholders in 2007 of $247.7 million ($.85 per diluted share). These results were
impacted by certain significant items that increased earnings, including:
• after-tax gains from the early extinguishment of debt of $2.1 million in 2009;
• after-tax earnings from discontinued operations of $4.4 million in 2007;
• net after-tax gain from the sale of assets of $6.0 million in 2007;
• after-tax gain on the redemption of securities related to our former equity investment in France of $99.8 million in
2007; and
• after-tax gain on the sale of our equity investment in France of $17.6 million in 2007.
Our results for these years were also impacted by certain significant items that decreased earnings including:
• tax expenses associated with discrete adjustments of $2.0 million in 2009 and $11.6 million in 2008;
• after-tax expenses related to acquisitions of $8.2 million in 2009;
• after-tax charges of $1.9 million related to Hurricane Ike losses in 2008;
• net after-tax losses on asset sales of $1.8 million in 2009 and $24.4 million in 2008;
• after-tax losses from the early extinguishment of debt of $8.7 million in 2007;
• after-tax expenses related to our acquisition and integration of Alderwoods of $0.7 million in 2008 and
$16.5 million in 2007; and
• after-tax expenses to settle our Cash Balance pension plan of $6.5 million in 2007.
Consolidated Versus Comparable Results — Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007
The table below reconciles our consolidated GAAP results to our comparable, or “same store,” results for the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007. We define comparable operations (or same store operations) as those funeral
and cemetery locations owned by us for the entire period beginning January 1, 2008 and ending
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December 31, 2009. The following tables present operating results for funeral and cemetery locations that
were owned by us for these years.
Less:
Activity
Associated with
Acquisition/New
2009

North America Revenue
Funeral revenue
Cemetery revenue
Germany revenue
Total revenue
North America Gross Profits
Funeral gross profits
Cemetery gross profits
Germany gross profits
Total gross profits

Consolidated

$

$
$

$

Less:
Activity
Associated
with

Construction
Divestitures
(Dollars in millions)

1,385.0
661.7
2,046.7
6.8
2,053.5

$

305.3
115.5
420.8
0.4
421.2

$

$

$

18.8
7.8
26.6
—
26.6

$

(1.7)
1.9
0.2
—
0.2

$

$

$

Less:
Activity
Associated with
Acquisition/New
2008

North America Revenue
Funeral revenue
Cemetery revenue
Germany revenue
Total revenue
North America Gross Profits
Funeral gross profits
Cemetery gross profits
Germany gross profits
Total gross profits

Consolidated

$

$
$

$

Comparable

6.2
0.8
7.0
—
7.0

$

(1.0)
0.1
(0.9)
—
(0.9)

$

$

$

$

312.2
106.3
418.5
0.3
418.8

$

$

$

308.0
113.5
421.5
0.4
421.9

Less:
Activity
Associated
with

Construction
Divestitures
(Dollars in millions)

1,468.7
679.9
2,148.6
7.0
2,155.6

1,360.0
653.1
2,013.1
6.8
2,019.9

13.0
5.5
18.5
—
18.5

$

(1.9)
0.6
(1.3)
—
(1.3)

$

$

$

Comparable

22.9
2.2
25.1
—
25.1

$

(1.8)
(0.5)
(2.3)
—
(2.3)

$

$

$

1,432.8
672.2
2,105.0
7.0
2,112.0
315.9
106.2
422.1
0.3
422.4
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Less:
Activity
Associated
with
2007

Consolidated

North America Revenue
Funeral revenue
Cemetery revenue

$

Germany revenue
Total revenue

$

North America Gross Profits
Funeral gross profits
Cemetery gross profits

$

Germany gross profits
Total gross profits

$

Divestitures
(Dollars in millions)

1,518.3
760.0
2,278.3
7.0
2,285.3
307.5
159.1
466.6
0.2
466.8

$

110.8
40.3
151.1
—
151.1

$
$

1.3
1.6
2.9
—
2.9

$

Comparable

$

1,407.5
719.7
2,127.2
7.0
2,134.2

$
$

306.2
157.5
463.7
0.2
463.9

$

The following table provides the data necessary to calculate our consolidated average revenue per funeral service for
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007. We calculate average revenue per funeral service by dividing
consolidated funeral revenue, excluding General Agency (GA) revenues and certain other revenues to avoid distorting our
averages of normal funeral services revenue, by the number of funeral services performed during the period.
2009
2008
2007
(Dollars in millions, except average revenue per
funeral service)

Consolidated funeral revenue
Less: GA revenues
Less: Other revenues
Adjusted Consolidated funeral revenue
Consolidated funeral services performed
Consolidated average revenue per funeral service

$

$

1,391.8
57.3
8.5
1,326.0

$

258,044
5,139

$

$

1,475.7
51.5
10.0
1,414.2

$

$

1,525.3
44.8
12.5
1,468.0

$

278,165
5,084

$

299,801
4,897

The following table provides the data necessary to calculate our comparable average revenue per funeral service for
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007. We calculate average revenue per funeral service by dividing
comparable funeral revenue, excluding General Agency (GA) revenues and other revenues to avoid distorting our
averages of normal funeral services revenue, by the comparable number of funeral services performed during the period.
2009
2008
2007
(Dollars in millions, except average revenue per
funeral service)

Comparable funeral revenue
Less: GA revenues
Less: Other revenues
Adjusted Comparable funeral revenue
Comparable funeral services performed
Comparable average revenue per funeral service

$

$

1,366.8
57.0
8.6
1,301.2

$

252,546
5,152

$

$

1,439.8
51.3
9.6
1,378.9

$

$

1,414.5
42.9
8.9
1,362.7

$

270,538
5,097

$

276,488
4,929
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Funeral Results
Funeral Revenue
Consolidated revenues from funeral operations were $1,391.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared
to $1,475.7 million in the same period of 2008. Comparable revenues from funeral operations were $1,366.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $1,439.8 million for the same period in 2008. These decreases were
primarily due to a 6.7% decline in the number of comparable funeral services performed, an unfavorable Canadian
currency impact of $10.6 million, and $12.6 million in decreased trust fund income. Such negative impacts were partially
offset by a 1.1% increase in comparable average revenue per funeral service and a $5.7 million increase in GA Revenue.
Consolidated revenues from funeral operations decreased $49.6 million in 2008 compared to the same period in 2007.
This decrease is primarily due to the divestiture of non-strategic assets throughout 2007, which resulted in a decrease of
$87.9 million of revenue in 2008, partially offset by acquisitions that contributed an additional $13.0 million of revenue
and a 3.8% increase in average revenue per funeral service. Our comparable funeral revenues increased $25.3 million, or
1.8%, in 2008 compared to the year ended December 31, 2007 primarily driven by a 3.4% increase in comparable average
revenue per funeral service, which more than offset a 2.2% decline in the number of funeral services performed and a
$5.8 million decline in trust fund income.
Funeral Services Performed
Our consolidated funeral services performed decreased 7.2% during the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to
the same period in 2008. Our comparable funeral services performed decreased 6.7% during the year ended December 31,
2009 compared to the same period in 2008. We believe the decline in deaths in our markets is consistent with trends
experienced by other funeral service providers and industry vendors compared to the year ended December 31, 2008. Our
comparable cremation rate of 41.0% in 2009 increased from 39.5% and 38.4% in 2008 and 2007, respectively. We
continue to expand our cremation memorialization products and services, which have resulted in higher average sales for
cremation services.
Average Revenue Per Funeral Service
Our consolidated and comparable average revenue per funeral service both increased $55, or 1.1% in 2009 compared
to the same period in 2008. Excluding an unfavorable Canadian currency impact of $10.6 million and decreased trust fund
income, the comparable average revenue per funeral service grew approximately 2.7%.
Funeral Gross Profit
Consolidated funeral gross profits decreased $6.8 million in the 2009 compared to same period in 2008. The
consolidated gross margin percentage increased to 22.0% from 21.2% due to lower variable merchandise costs, a decline
in personnel costs related to work-force initiatives, and a decrease in self-insurance casualty reserves. Comparable funeral
gross profits decreased $7.8 million, or 2.5%, when compared to the same period in 2008. This decrease is due to the
impact of lower funeral services performed and a decline in funeral trust fund income, which were partially offset by a
decrease in costs described above.
Consolidated funeral gross profits increased $4.8 million in 2008 as compared to 2007, despite the divestiture of
non-strategic assets that contributed an incremental $3.1 million of gross profit in 2007 compared to 2008. The
consolidated gross margin percentage increased to 21.2% from 20.2%. Gross profit from our comparable funeral locations
increased $9.8 million, or 3.2%, in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily as a result of the increase in comparable revenue
described above.
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Cemetery Results
Cemetery Revenue
Consolidated revenues from our cemetery operations decreased $18.2 million, or 2.7%, in 2009 compared to 2008.
Comparable cemetery revenues declined $19.1 million, or 2.8%, when compared with 2008. This decrease was primarily
driven by a $18.3 million decline in atneed revenues, partially offset by a $1.1 million increase in comparable recognized
preneed revenues. Additionally, other revenue decreased $1.9 million.
Consolidated revenues from our cemetery operations decreased $80.1 million in 2008 compared to 2007. Comparable
cemetery revenue decreased $47.5 million, or 6.6%, in 2008 compared to 2007. This decrease primarily resulted from a
$28.5 million decline in preneed cemetery property revenue in 2008 compared to 2007 as several large non-recurring
construction projects were completed in 2007, a $14.1 million decrease in preneed cemetery trust fund income, and an
$8.3 million decrease in cemetery perpetual care trust fund income. Revenues from divested locations decreased
$38.1 million from the divestiture of non-strategic assets, partially offset by acquisitions, which contributed an additional
$5.5 million of revenue.
Cemetery Gross Profits
Consolidated cemetery gross profit increased $9.2 million, or 8.7%, in 2009 compared to 2008. Our consolidated
cemetery gross margin percentage was 17.5% compared to 15.6% in 2008. These increases reflect lower variable selling
compensation expenses, a decline in personnel costs related to work-force initiatives, and a reduction in self-insurance
casualty reserves. The weakened economy has created some volatility in our cemetery property sales production as our
comparable preneed property production decreased $4.0 million in 2009 compared to 2008. Our cemetery gross profit in
2009 exceeded our expectations as cost control initiatives helped to offset lower-than-expected atneed revenues due to a
reduced number of deaths in our markets.
Consolidated cemetery gross profit decreased $52.8 million, or 33.2%, in 2008 compared to 2007. Consolidated
cemetery gross margin percentage decreased to 15.6% in 2008 compared to 20.9% in 2007. Gross profit from our
comparable cemetery locations decreased $51.3 million, or 32.6%, in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily as a result of the
decrease in comparable revenue described above. Gross profit from divested locations decreased $2.1 million from the
divestiture of non-strategic assets throughout 2007, partially offset by acquisitions that contributed an additional
$0.6 million of gross profit. We experienced a $9.0 million reduction in administrative and overhead costs as synergies
from the Alderwoods acquisition were realized. These decreases were more than offset by increased maintenance costs,
including energy-related costs and increased commissions.
Other Financial Statement Items
General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses were $102.3 million in 2009 compared to $87.4 million in 2008 and
$135.8 million in 2007. For 2009 compared to 2008, general and administrative costs increased $14.9 million primarily
due to $12.5 million increase in corporate bonuses and long-term incentive plan costs. For 2008 compared to 2007,
general and administrative costs decreased $48.4 million primarily due to $27.2 million of transition and other expenses
related to the acquisition of Alderwoods incurred in 2007, $11.2 million of costs to terminate our pension plan incurred in
2007, and a $13.6 million decrease in our employee benefits expense related to reductions in corporate bonuses and
long-term incentive plan costs in 2008.
Gains (Losses) on Divestitures and Impairment Charges, Net
In 2009, we recognized a $4.3 million net pre-tax gain on asset divestitures and impairments. This gain was primarily
due to a $18.8 million release of VAT, social security, and litigation indemnifications related to our former French
operations, offset by $14.5 million in net losses on asset divestitures and impairment charges.
In 2008, we recognized a $36.1 million net pre-tax loss on asset divestitures and impairments. This loss was primarily
due to the impairments and asset divestitures associated with non-strategic funeral and cemetery businesses in the United
States and Canada, including a $3.8 million impairment charge of our trademark and
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tradenames and a $13.9 million impairment of certain assets located in Oregon, West Virginia, Michigan, Alabama, and
Georgia, which were classified as assets held for sale at December 31, 2008.
In 2007, we recognized a $16.9 million net pre-tax gain on asset divestitures and impairments. This gain was primarily
associated with the disposition of funeral and cemetery businesses in the United States and Canada, including a
$21.8 million gain on assets sold to StoneMor Partners LP and a $21.1 million gain from real estate dispositions, partially
offset by $26.0 million in losses on FTC and non-strategic divestitures.
Interest Expense
Interest expense decreased $5.3 million to $129.0 million in 2009 compared to $134.3 million in 2008. The decrease in
interest expense primarily resulted from scheduled maturities, open market debt repurchases, and a lower weighted
average borrowing rate in 2009 compared to 2008.
Interest expense decreased $12.6 million to $134.3 million in 2008 compared to $146.9 million in 2007. The decrease
in interest expense resulted primarily from the $100 million repayment of our term loan, prepayment of $50 million
Series A Senior Notes, the $45.2 million payment of our 6.5% Notes due March 2008, and a decrease in rates associated
with our floating rate debt, mainly our Series B Senior Notes due November 2011. For additional information see Part II,
Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 10.
Gain (Loss) on Early Extinguishment of Debt
During 2009, we repaid $150.0 million aggregate principal amount of our Series B Senior Notes due November 2011,
$23.5 million aggregate principal amount of our 7.875% Debentures due February 2013, $5.0 million aggregate principal
amount of our 7.375% Senior Notes due October 2014, $39.8 million aggregate principal amount of our 6.75% Notes due
April 2015, $16.9 million aggregate principal amount of our 6.75% Notes due April 2016, and $5.0 million aggregate
principal amount of our 7.0% Notes due June 2017. As a result of these transactions, we recognized a gain of $3.1 million
during the year ended December 31, 2009, which represents a $5.1 million net discount on the purchase of the notes and
the write-off of unamortized deferred loan costs of $2.0 million.
There were no early extinguishments of debt during 2008.
During 2007, we repaid $100.0 million of our term loan and $50 million of our Series A Senior Notes, and we
purchased $149.8 million aggregate principal amount of our 6.50% Notes due 2008 and $173.8 million aggregate principal
amount of our 7.70% Notes due 2009 in a tender offer. As a result of these transactions, we recognized a loss of
$15.0 million, which represents the write-off of unamortized deferred loan costs of $3.3 million, a $1.0 million loss on a
related interest rate hedge, and $10.7 million in premiums paid to extinguish the debt. For additional information regarding
the debt payments, see Note 10 in Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 10.
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
Equity income from our equity investment in France was $36.6 million in 2007 as a result of equity earnings generated
by the sale of our former equity investment’s business operations. This subsidiary was sold in the fourth quarter of 2007.
Gain on Redemption of Securities
Gain on redemption of securities was $158.1 million in 2007 and is primarily related to the redemption of our
convertible preferred equity certificates in our former equity investment in France. This investment was liquidated in the
fourth quarter of 2007. See Note 19 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, for further
information.
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Other Income, Net
Other income, net decreased $3.6 million to $1.3 million in 2009 compared to $4.9 million in 2008, primarily due to a
$3.1 million decline in interest income as a result of lower interest rates in 2009.
Other income, net was $4.9 million in 2008 compared to $7.9 million in 2007, primarily due to a $6.3 million decrease
in interest income, reflecting the decrease in our average cash balance. This was partially offset by $0.6 million in
unfavorable adjustments to our notes receivable allowance in 2007, a decrease in our surety bond expense of $1.7 million
in 2008, and a $0.8 million increase in foreign exchange gain in 2008 compared to 2007 as a result of the decline in
Canadian and Euro currencies.
Provision for Income Taxes
The 2009 consolidated effective tax rate was 38.3%, compared to 40.3% and 37.1% in 2008 and 2007, respectively.
The decrease in the effective tax rate from 2008 to 2009 was primarily due to the restructuring of certain state operating
structures which lowered our state tax expense. We also recognized a benefit related to some of our uncertain tax positions
because of statute of limitation expirations. The increase in the effective tax rate from 2007 to 2008 was primarily due to
2007 utilization of capital losses subject to valuation allowances. During the fourth quarter of 2007, we generated taxable
capital gains from the sale of our former equity investment in France, which allowed us to recognize the benefit of capital
loss carryforwards that we had previously concluded were more likely than not to expire unutilized. The 2009, 2008, and
2007 tax rates were negatively impacted by permanent differences between the book and tax bases of North American
asset divestitures and certain other adjustments related to prior periods. See Note 9 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data, for further discussion.
Weighted Average Shares
The diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding was 252.5 million in 2009, compared to 261.0 million in
2008 and 290.9 million in 2007. The decrease in all years reflects the impact of shares repurchased under our share
repurchase program.
Critical Accounting Policies, Recent Accounting Pronouncements, and Accounting Changes
Our consolidated financial statements are impacted by the accounting policies used and the estimates and assumptions
made by management during their preparation. See Note 2 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data, for more information. Estimates and assumptions affect the carrying values of assets and liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. Actual results could differ from such estimates due to
uncertainties associated with the methods and assumptions underlying our critical accounting measurements. The
following is a discussion of our critical accounting policies pertaining to revenue recognition, business combinations,
valuation of goodwill, valuation of intangible assets, valuation of long-lived assets, loss contract analysis, the use of
estimates, fair value measurements and non-controlling interests.
Revenue Recognition
Funeral revenue is recognized when funeral services are performed. Our trade receivables primarily consist of amounts
due for funeral services already performed. Revenue associated with cemetery merchandise and services is recognized
when the service is performed or merchandise is delivered. Revenue associated with cemetery property interment rights is
recognized in accordance with the Revenue Recognition Topic of the ASC. Under this guidance revenue from constructed
cemetery property is not recognized until a minimum percentage (10%) of the sales price has been collected. Revenue
related to the preneed sale of unconstructed cemetery property is deferred until it is constructed and at least 10% of the
sales price is collected.
When a customer enters into a preneed funeral trust contract, the entire purchase price is deferred and the revenue is
recognized at the time of maturity. The revenues associated with a preneed cemetery contract, however, may be
recognized as different contract events occur. Preneed sales of cemetery interment rights (cemetery burial property) are
recognized when a minimum of 10% of the sales price has been collected and the property has been constructed or is
available for interment. For services and non-personalized merchandise (such as vaults), we defer
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the revenues until the services are performed and the merchandise is delivered. For personalized marker merchandise, with
the customer’s direction generally obtained at the time of sale, we can choose to order, store, and transfer title to the
customer. Upon the earlier of vendor storage of these items or delivery in our cemetery, we recognize the associated
revenues and record the cost of sale. In situations in which we have no further obligation or involvement related to the
merchandise, we recognize revenues and record the cost of sales in accordance with the Revenue Recognition Topic of the
ASC.
Business Combinations
In December 2007, the FASB revised the authoritative guidance for business combinations, establishing principles and
requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired
(including goodwill), the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree. Subsequently, on April 1,
2009, the FASB amended and clarified certain aspects of its authoritative guidance on initial recognition and
measurement, subsequent measurement and accounting, and disclosure of assets and liabilities arising from contingencies
in a business combination. We apply the FASB authoritative guidance to all business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after January 1, 2009. In these acquisitions, tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are recorded at fair value and goodwill is recognized for any difference between the price of the acquisition and
our fair value determination.
On October 14, 2009, we entered into a definitive support agreement in which we agreed to offer to acquire all of the
outstanding common shares of Keystone for C$8.00 per share in cash with price escalators based on the actual closing
date. The total acquisition is valued at approximately $265 million using exchange rates as of December 31, 2009,
including transaction fees and the assumption of Keystone’s outstanding debt. The acquisition is anticipated to close in the
first quarter of 2010, subject to customary closing conditions, including expiration of the waiting period under the
Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Act; however, there can be no assurance the acquisition will be completed by this time or at
all.
Valuation of Goodwill
We record the excess of purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired in business combinations
as goodwill. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment by assessing the fair value of each of our reporting units. As of
December 31, 2009, our funeral segment reporting unit includes assets in North America and Germany. Our cemetery
segment reporting unit includes assets in North America. We test for impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
Intangibles Topic of the ASC annually during the fourth quarter.
Our goodwill impairment test involves estimates and management judgment. In the first step of our goodwill
impairment test, we compare the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill. We determine
fair value of each reporting unit using both a market and income approach. Our methodology considers discounted cash
flows and multiples of EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization) for both SCI and its
competitors. The discounted cash flow valuation uses projections of future cash flows and includes assumptions
concerning future operating performance and economic conditions that may differ from actual future cash flows. We do
not record an impairment of goodwill in instances where the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount. If
the aggregate fair value is less than the related carrying amount for a reporting unit, we compare the implied fair value of
goodwill (as defined in the Intangibles Topic of the ASC) to the carrying amount of goodwill. If the carrying amount of
reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount
equal to that excess. Based on our most recent annual impairment test performed during the fourth quarter, we concluded
that there was no impairment of goodwill as of December 31, 2009.
In addition to our annual review, we assess the impairment of goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be greater than fair value. Factors that could trigger an interim impairment review
include, but are not limited to, significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results and
significant negative industry or economic trends. No interim goodwill impairments were performed in 2009.
For our most recent annual impairment test performed in the fourth quarter, we used growth rates ranging from 1.5%
to 4.5% over a three-year period, plus a terminal value determined using the constant growth method, in
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projecting our future cash flows. We considered the impact of recent realized losses in our trusts in developing our
projected cash flows. We used a 10.0% discount rate, which reflected our weighted average cost of capital based on our
industry and our supplier industries and capital structure, as adjusted for equity risk premiums and size risk premiums
based on our market capitalization. Fair value was calculated as the sum of the projected discounted cash flows of our
reporting units over the next three years plus terminal value at the end of those three years. Our terminal value was
calculated using a long-term growth rate of 3.0% for both our funeral and cemetery segments.
Valuation of Intangible Assets
Our intangible assets include cemetery customer relationships, trademarks and tradenames, and other assets primarily
resulting from our acquisition of Alderwoods. Our trademark and tradenames and water rights assets are considered to
have an indefinite life and are not subject to amortization. We test for impairment of intangible assets in accordance with
the Intangibles Topic of the ASC annually during the fourth quarter.
Our intangible assets impairment tests involve estimates and management judgment. For trademark and tradenames,
our test uses the relief from royalty method whereby we determine the fair value of the assets by discounting the cash
flows that represent a savings over having to pay a royalty fee for use of the trademark and tradenames. The discounted
cash flow valuation uses projections of future cash flows and includes assumptions concerning future operating
performance and economic conditions that may differ from actual future cash flows. For our most recent annual
impairment test performed in the fourth quarter using September 30 data, we estimated that the pre-tax savings would be
4% of the revenues associated with the trademark and tradenames, based primarily on our research of intellectual property
valuation and licensing databases. We also assumed a terminal growth rate of 3.0% for our funeral and cemetery
segments, and discounted the cash flows at a 10.2% discount rate based on the relative risk of these assets to our overall
business. Based on our annual impairment test performed during the fourth quarter, we concluded that there was no
impairment of intangible assets as of December 31, 2009.
In addition to our annual review, we assess the impairment of intangible assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be greater than the fair value. Factors that could trigger an interim
impairment review include, but are not limited to, significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future
operating results and significant negative industry or economic trends. No interim intangible impairments were performed
in 2009.
Valuation of Long-Lived Assets
We review the carrying value of our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable, in accordance with the Intangibles and Property, Plant, and
Equipment Topic of the ASC. This guidance requires that long-lived assets to be held and used are reported at the lower of
their carrying amount or fair value. Fair value is based on an income approach that utilizes projections of undiscounted
future cash flows expected to be generated by our long-lived assets.
Assets to be disposed of and assets not expected to provide any future service potential are recorded at the lower of
their carrying amount or fair value less estimated cost to sell. For additional information regarding impairment or disposal
of long-lived assets, see Note 19 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
Loss Contract Analysis
We perform an analysis to determine whether our preneed contracts are in a loss position, which would necessitate a
charge to earnings. For this analysis, we add the sales prices of the underlying contracts and net realized earnings, then
subtract net unrealized losses to derive the net amount of estimated proceeds for contracts as of the balance sheet date. We
consider unrealized gains and losses based on current market prices quoted for the investments, and we do not include
future expected returns on the investments in our analysis. We compare our estimated proceeds to the estimated direct
costs to deliver our contracts, which consist primarily of funeral and cemetery merchandise costs and salaries, supplies,
and equipment related to the delivery of a preneed contract. If a deficiency were to exist, we would record a charge to
earnings and a corresponding liability for the expected loss on delivery of those contracts from our backlog. As of
December 31, 2009, no such charge was required. Due to the
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positive margins of our preneed contracts and the trust portfolio returns we have experienced in prior years,
we believe there is currently capacity for additional market depreciation before a loss contract would result.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in
the United States (GAAP) requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions. These estimates
and assumptions affect the carrying values of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the balance sheet date. Actual results could differ from such estimates due to uncertainties
associated with the methods and assumptions underlying our critical accounting measurements. Key estimates
used by management include:
Allowances — We provide various allowances and/or cancellation reserves for our funeral and cemetery
preneed and atneed receivables, as well as for our preneed funeral and preneed cemetery deferred revenues.
These allowances are based on an analysis of historical trends and include, where applicable, collection and
cancellation activity. We also record an estimate of general agency revenues that may be cancelled in their
first year and revenue would be charged back by the insurance company. These estimates are impacted by a
number of factors, including changes in economy, relocation, and demographic or competitive changes in our
areas of operation.
Valuation of trust investments — The trust investments include marketable securities that are classified as
available-for-sale in accordance with the Investments in Debt and Equity Securities Topic of the ASC. When
available, we use quoted market prices for specific securities. When quoted market prices are not available for
the specific security, fair values are estimated by using either quoted market prices for securities with similar
characteristics or a fair value model with observable inputs that include a combination of interest rates, yield
curves, credit risks, prepayment terms, rating, and tax exempt status.
The valuation of private equity and other investments requires significant management judgment due to
the absence of quoted market prices, inherent lack of liquidity, and the long-term nature of such assets. The
fair value of these investments is estimated based on the market value of the underlying real estate and private
equity instruments. The underlying real estate value is determined using the most recent appraisals. The
private equity investments are valued using appraisals and a discounted cash flow methodology depending on
the underlying assets. The appraisals assess value based on a combination of replacement cost, comparative
sales analysis, and discounted cash flow analysis. See Fair Value Measurements below for additional
information.
Legal liability reserves — Contingent liabilities, principally for legal matters, are recorded when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated in
accordance with the Contingencies Topic of the ASC. Liabilities accrued for legal matters require judgments
regarding projected outcomes and a range of loss based on historical experience and recommendations of
legal counsel. However, litigation is inherently unpredictable and excessive verdicts do occur. As disclosed in
Note 12 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, our legal exposures and the ultimate
outcome of these legal proceedings could be material to operating results or cash flows in any given quarter or
year.
Depreciation of long-lived assets — We depreciate our long-lived assets ratably over their estimated
useful lives. These estimates of useful lives may be affected by such factors as changing market conditions or
changes in regulatory requirements.
Valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumed — We have applied the guidance in the Business
Combinations Topic of the ASC to our business combinations. Tangible and intangible assets and liabilities
assumed are recorded at their fair value and goodwill is recognized for any difference between the price of
acquisition and our fair value determination. We have customarily estimated our purchase costs and other
related transactions known to us at closing of the acquisition. To the extent that information not available to
us at the closing date subsequently became available during the allocation period, we have adjusted our
goodwill, assets, or liabilities associated with the acquisition.
Income taxes — We compute income taxes using the liability method. Our ability to realize the benefit of
our federal and state deferred tax assets requires us to achieve certain future earnings levels. We have
established a valuation allowance against a portion of our deferred tax assets and could be required to further
adjust that valuation
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allowance if market conditions change materially and future earnings are, or are projected to be, significantly different
than our current estimates.
We intend to permanently reinvest the unremitted earnings of certain of our foreign subsidiaries in those businesses
outside the United States. Therefore, we have not provided for deferred federal income taxes on such unremitted foreign
earnings.
We file income tax returns, including tax returns for our subsidiaries, with U.S. federal, state, local, and foreign
jurisdictions. Our tax returns are subject to routine compliance review by the various federal, state, and foreign taxing
authorities in the jurisdictions in which we have operated and filed tax returns in the ordinary course of business. We
accrue tax expense to reduce our tax benefits in those situations where it is more likely than not that we will not prevail
against the tax authorities should they challenge the tax return position that gave rise to the benefit. We believe that our tax
returns are materially correct as filed and we will vigorously defend any challenges and proposed adjustments to those
filings made by the tax authorities. A number of years may elapse before particular tax matters, for which we have
established accruals, are audited and finally resolved. The number of tax years that may be subject to a tax audit varies
depending on the tax jurisdiction. Current audits are occurring in the United States and various state and foreign locations
covering open tax years through 2008. The Internal Revenue Service is in various stages of auditing tax years 1999
through 2005. While it is often difficult to predict the final outcome or the timing of resolution of any particular tax
matter, we believe that our accruals reflect the probable outcome of known tax contingencies. Unfavorable settlement of
any particular issue would reduce a deferred tax asset or require the payment of cash. Favorable resolution could result in
reduced income tax expense reported in the financial statements in the future. Our tax accruals are presented in the balance
sheet within Deferred income taxes and Other liabilities.
Pension cost — Our pension plans are frozen with no benefits accruing to participants except interest. Pension costs
and liabilities are actuarially determined based on certain assumptions, including the discount rate used to compute future
benefit obligations. Weighted-average discount rates used to determine net periodic pension cost were 5.97% and 5.75%
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
We verify the reasonableness of the discount rate by comparing our rate to the rate earned on high-quality fixed
income investments, such as the Moody’s Aa index. In 2008, we completed the termination of the Employee Retirement
Plan of Rose Hills, and there are no remaining assets or liabilities under the plan. In 2007, we completed the termination of
our U.S. Pension Plan, and there are no remaining assets or liabilities under the plan.
Insurance loss reserves — We purchase comprehensive general liability, morticians and cemetery professional
liability, automobile liability, and workers’ compensation insurance coverages structured with high deductibles. This
high-deductible insurance program means we are primarily self-insured for claims and associated costs and losses covered
by these policies. Historical insurance industry experience indicates a high degree of inherent variability in assessing the
ultimate amount of losses associated with casualty insurance claims. This is especially true with respect to liability and
workers’ compensation exposures due to the extended period of time that transpires between when the claim might occur
and the full settlement of such claim, often many years. We continually evaluate loss estimates associated with claims and
losses related to these insurance coverages falling within the deductible of each coverage. Assumptions based on factors
such as claim settlement patterns, claim development trends, claim frequency and severity patterns, inflationary trends,
and data reasonableness will generally affect the analysis and determination of the “best estimate” of the projected
ultimate claim losses. The results of these evaluations are used to both analyze and adjust our insurance loss reserves.
As of December 31, 2009, reported losses within our retention for workers’ compensation, general liability, and auto
liability incurred during the period May 1, 1991 through December 31, 2009 were approximately $283.2 million over
18.7 years. The selected fully developed ultimate settlement value estimated was $327.6 million for the same period. Paid
losses were $269.7 million indicating a reserve requirement of $57.9 million.
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At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the balances in our reserve for workers’ compensation, general, and auto liability and
the related activity were as follows:
(Dollars in millions)

Balance at December 31, 2007
Additions
Payments
Balance at December 31, 2008
Additions
Payments
Balance at December 31, 2009

$

$

$

69.9
25.8
(32.1)
63.6
22.6
(28.3)
57.9

Fair Value Measurements
We measure the available-for-sale securities held by our funeral merchandise and service, cemetery merchandise and
service, and cemetery perpetual care trusts at fair value on a recurring basis in accordance with the Fair Value
Measurements Topic of the ASC. This guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about instruments measured at fair value. The guidance
establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based
upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are
defined as follows:
• Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets;
• Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full
term of the financial instrument;
• Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.
An asset’s or liability’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Certain available-for-sale securities held by our funeral merchandise and
service, cemetery merchandise and service, and cemetery perpetual care trusts have been classified in Level 3 of the
hierarchy due to significant management judgment required as a result of the absence of quoted market prices, inherent
lack of liquidity, or the long-term nature of the securities. For additional disclosures required by FASB guidance for all of
our available-for-sale securities, see Notes 4, 5, and 6 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
On January 1, 2009, we adopted the guidance for our non-financial assets and liabilities, such as goodwill and property
and equipment that we disclose or recognize at fair value on a non-recurring basis. Our adoption for these assets and
liabilities did not have a material impact on our results of operations, consolidated financial position, or cash flows.
In April 2009, the FASB issued additional guidance on how to determine the fair value of assets and liabilities in an
environment where the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased. The FASB
guidance also re-emphasizes that the objective of a fair value measurement remains an exit price. The guidance, which
was effective for us in the second quarter of 2009, did not have a material impact on our results of
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operations, consolidated financial position, or cash flows. For more information, see Notes 4, 5, and 6 in Part II, Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
Noncontrolling Interests
The FASB issued authoritative guidance for noncontrolling interests in December 2007, which establishes accounting
and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. The
guidance clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary, which is sometimes referred to as an unconsolidated
investment, is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as a component of equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Among other requirements, the guidance requires consolidated net income to be
reported at amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest. It also requires disclosure, on the face
of the consolidated income statement, of the amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the
noncontrolling interest. We adopted the provisions of the FASB guidance on January 1, 2009 and applied the provisions
retrospectively. As a result, we have modified our consolidated statement of operations, consolidated balance sheet,
consolidated statement of cash flows, and consolidated statement of equity to incorporate the required disclosure of
noncontrolling interest information.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Accounting Changes
For discussion of recent accounting pronouncements and accounting changes, see Note 3 in Part II, Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
The market risk inherent in our financial instruments and positions includes the price risk associated with the
marketable equity and debt securities included in our portfolio of trust investments, the interest rate risk associated with
our floating rate debt, and the currency risk associated with our foreign operations (primarily in Canada). Our
market-sensitive instruments and positions are considered to be “other-than-trading”. Our exposure to market risk as
discussed below includes forward-looking statements and represents an estimate of possible changes in fair value or future
earnings that might occur, assuming hypothetical changes in equity markets, interest rates, and currencies. Our views on
market risk are not necessarily indicative of actual results that may occur, and they do not represent the maximum possible
gains or losses that may occur. Actual fair value movements related to changes in equity markets, interest rates and
currencies, along with the timing of such movements, may differ from those estimated.
Marketable Equity and Debt Securities — Price Risk
In connection with our preneed funeral operations and preneed cemetery merchandise and service sales, the related
funeral and cemetery trust funds own investments in equity and debt securities and mutual funds, which are sensitive to
current market prices.
Cost and market values as of December 31, 2009 are presented in Notes 4, 5, and 6 in Part II, Item 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data. Also, see Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, Financial Conditions, Liquidity, and Capital Resources, for discussion of recent volatility in
financial markets.
Market-Rate Sensitive Instruments — Interest Rate Risk
At December 31, 2009 and 2008, approximately 85% and 87%, respectively, of our total debt consisted of fixed rate
debt at a weighted average rate of 6.52% and 6.70%, respectively. The fair market value of our debt was $37.9 million less
than its carrying value at December 31, 2009. A hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates associated with our floating
rate debt would increase our interest expense by $0.7 million. See Note 10 and 11 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data, for additional information.
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Market-Rate Sensitive Instruments — Currency Risk
At December 31, 2009 and 2008, our foreign currency exposure was primarily associated with the
Canadian dollar and the euro. A 10% adverse change in the strength of the U.S. dollar relative to our foreign
currency instruments would have negatively affected our income from our continuing operations, on an
annual basis, by $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 and $2.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008.
At December 31, 2009, approximately 9% of our stockholders’ equity and 11% of our operating income
were denominated in foreign currencies, primarily the Canadian dollar. Approximately 8% of our
stockholders’ equity and 16% of our operating income were denominated in foreign currencies, primarily the
Canadian dollar, at December 31, 2008. We do not have a significant investment in foreign operations
considered to be in highly inflationary economies.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Service Corporation International:
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Service Corporation International and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion,
the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial
statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.
As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts
for collateral assignment split-dollar life insurance agreements and the manner in which it accounts for the fair value of
certain assets and liabilities effective January 1, 2008. As discussed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company changed the manner in which it accounts for uncertain income tax positions effective January 1, 2007.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Houston, Texas
February 25, 2010
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SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31,
2009
2008
2007
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues
Costs and expenses
Gross profits
General and administrative expenses
Gains (losses) on divestitures and impairment charges, net
Other operating income (expense)
Operating income
Interest expense
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries
Gain on redemption of securities
Other income, net
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Income from continuing operations
(Loss) income from discontinued operations (net of income tax
benefit (provision) of $0, $195 and ($4,818), respectively)
Net income
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income attributable to common stockholders
Basic earnings per share
Income from continuing operations attributable to common
stockholders
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax attributable to
common stockholders
Net income attributable to common stockholders

$

2,053,520
(1,632,336)
421,184
(102,290)
4,253
740
323,887
(128,981)
3,146
—
—
1,316
199,368
(76,275)
123,093

$

$

—
123,093
5
123,098

$

$

.49

$

$

—
.49

$

Basic weighted average number of shares

251,709

Diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations attributable to common
stockholders
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax attributable to
common stockholders
Net income attributable to common stockholders

(362)
97,216
(133)
97,083

$

2,285,303
(1,818,456)
466,847
(135,753)
16,920
(1,848)
346,166
(146,854)
(14,986)
36,607
158,133
7,921
386,987
(143,670)
243,317

$

4,412
247,729
—
247,729

.38

$

.85

—
.38

$

.02
.87

258,106

285,699

$

.49

$

.37

$

.83

$

—
.49

$

—
.37

$

.02
.85

Diluted weighted average number of shares

252,484

Dividends declared per share

2,155,622
(1,736,851)
418,771
(87,447)
(36,124)
(2,528)
292,672
(134,274)
—
—
—
4,897
163,295
(65,717)
97,578

$

.16

260,983
$

.16

290,936
$

.13

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
49

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

Table of Contents

SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
December 31,
2009
2008
(In thousands, except share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Deferred tax assets
Inventories
Current assets held for sale
Other
Total current assets
Preneed funeral receivables, net and trust investments
Preneed cemetery receivables, net and trust investments
Cemetery property, at cost
Property and equipment, net
Non-current assets held for sale
Goodwill
Deferred charges and other assets
Cemetery perpetual care trust investments

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt
Current liabilities held for sale
Income taxes
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred preneed funeral revenues
Deferred preneed cemetery revenues
Deferred tax liability
Non-current liabilities held for sale
Other liabilities
Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust
Care trusts’ corpus
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Equity:
Common stock, $1 per share par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 254,027,384
and 249,953,075 shares issued, respectively, and 254,017,384 and
249,472,075 shares outstanding, respectively
Capital in excess of par value
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total common stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests
Total Equity

$

179,745
92,228
51,534
31,117
1,197
21,640
377,461
1,356,353
1,382,717
1,489,065
1,591,074
80,901
1,201,332
522,389
889,689
$ 8,890,981

$

$

$

312,821
49,957
501
2,236
365,515
1,840,532
596,966
817,543
246,730
68,332
380,263
2,201,403
890,909

254,017
1,735,493
(603,876)
97,142
1,482,776
12
1,482,788
$ 8,890,981

128,397
96,145
79,571
31,603
1,279
18,515
355,510
1,191,692
1,062,952
1,458,981
1,567,875
97,512
1,178,969
452,634
744,758
$ 8,110,883

294,859
27,104
465
4,354
326,782
1,821,404
588,198
771,117
288,677
75,537
356,090
1,817,665
772,234

249,472
1,733,814
(726,756)
36,649
1,293,179
—
1,293,179
$ 8,110,883

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2009
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Loss (income) from discontinued operations, net of tax
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries, net of cash received
(Gain) loss on early extinguishments of debt
Premiums paid on early extinguishments of debt
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of cemetery property
Amortization of loan costs
Provision for doubtful accounts
Provision for deferred income taxes
(Gains) losses on divestitures and impairment charges, net
Gain on redemption of securities
Share-based compensation
Excess tax benefits from share-based awards
Change in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions and dispositions:
Increase in receivables
Decrease (increase) in other assets
Increase (decrease) in payables and other liabilities
Effect of preneed funeral production maturities:
Decrease in preneed funeral receivables, net and trust investments
Increase in deferred preneed funeral revenue
Decrease in deferred preneed funeral receipts held in trust
Effect of preneed cemetery production and maturities:
(Increase) decrease in preneed cemetery receivables, net and trust investments
Increase in deferred preneed cemetery revenue
Decrease in deferred preneed cemetery receipts held in trust
Acquisition costs and other
Net cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations
Net cash provided by operating activities from discontinued operations
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Acquisitions
Proceeds from divestitures and sales of property and equipment, net
Proceeds from redemption of securities
Net deposits of restricted funds and other
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities from continuing operations
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities from discontinued operations
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments of debt
Principal payments on capital leases
Proceeds from long-term debt issued
Debt issuance costs
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Excess tax benefits from share-based awards
Purchase of Company common stock
Payments of dividends
Bank overdrafts and other
Net cash used in financing activities from continuing operations
Net cash used in financing activities from discontinued operations
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of foreign currency
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

$

$

Years Ended December 31,
2008
2007
(In thousands)

123,093

$

97,216

$

247,729

—
—
(3,146)
—
111,102
21,698
30,664
7,575
11,351
57,866
(4,253)
—
9,684
—

362
—
—
—
114,157
23,636
32,690
3,573
9,243
109,118
36,124
—
9,970
—

(4,412)
(19,566)
14,986
(11,650)
115,682
27,550
35,824
6,261
10,754
34,652
(16,920)
(158,133)
8,787
(10,469)

(8,245)
11,161
30,899

(409)
26,100
(143,956)

(24,650)
(4,374)
51,407

18,963
92
(22,558)

7,271
23,785
(23,334)

102,080
17,746
(95,581)

(41,427)
24,999
(11,702)
4,254
372,070
—
372,070

36,333
11,408
(22,388)
(585)
350,314
—
350,314

83,689
5,142
(77,640)
9
338,903
17,279
356,182

(83,790)
(84,932)
32,696
—
(16,459)
(152,485)
—
(152,485)

(154,101)
(8,828)
32,543
—
(21,741)
(152,127)
858
(151,269)

(157,011)
(8,355)
410,689
158,691
(17,347)
386,667
(8,546)
378,121

(269,172)
(24,288)
150,000
(8,146)
17,407
—
—
(40,195)
(4,036)
(178,430)
—
(178,430)
10,193
51,348
128,397
179,745

(112,302)
(25,851)
82,133
—
14,812
—
(142,155)
(41,501)
(5,779)
(230,643)
—
(230,643)
(8,599)
(40,197)
168,594
128,397

(501,779)
(27,057)
398,996
(6,443)
52,938
10,469
(505,121)
(34,629)
7,209
(605,417)
(2,113)
(607,530)
1,941
128,714
39,880
168,594

$

$

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY

Outstanding
Shares

Balance at December 31,
2006
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive
income:
Foreign currency translation
Unrealized loss on
available-for-sale
securities
Reclassification for losses on
available-for-sale
securities realized in net
income
Reclassification for
translation adjustment
realized in net gain
Recognition of prior service
cost
Total other comprehensive
income
Total comprehensive income
Cumulative effect of FIN 48
adoption
Tax benefits related to
share-based awards
Dividends on common stock
($.13 per share)
Stock option exercises
Restricted stock award, net
of forfeitures and other
Employee share-based
compensation earned
Purchase of Company
common stock
Retirement of treasury shares
Balance at December 31,
2007

293,222

$

293,232

(10)

$

2,135,649

$

Balance at December 31,
2008

Balance at December 31,
2009

$

72,298

$

—

Total

$

1,594,775
247,729

92,003

92,003

(5,699)

(5,699)

9,430

9,430

(16,065)

(16,065)

623

623
80,292
328,021

29,853

7,732

7,732

374

314

60

29,853

18,513

18,513

(36,426)
45,206

(36,426)
52,938

369

743

8,787
(38,470)

262,858

$

(36,459)

(38,470)
36,459

264,819

(1,961)

8,787

(297,498)

$

1,874,600

(169,153)

$

(797,965)

(505,121)
—
$

152,590

$

97,083

—

$

133

1,492,083
97,216
(115,941)

(115,941)

(18,725)
(3,265)
3,944

3,944

354

293

(17,684)

61

(17,684)

(3,265)

(40,895)
10,868

(40,895)
14,812

(18,513)

(18,513)

355

709

9,261

9,261

(101,862)

(22,609)

(142,155)
(133)

(19,103)
249,472

$

249,953

(133)
—

19,103
(481)

$

1,733,814

$

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Foreign currency translation
Total comprehensive income
Tax benefits related to
share-based awards
Dividends on common stock
($.16 per share)
Stock option exercises
Restricted stock awards, net
of forfeitures and other
Employee share-based
compensation
Issuance of shares from
treasury stock
Noncontrolling interest
payments
Retirement of treasury shares
Other

(906,394)

Noncontrolling
Interest

247,729

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Foreign currency translation
Total comprehensive loss
Cumulative effect of
accounting change
Dividends on common stock
($.16 per share)
Stock option exercises
Reversal of tax benefits
related to share-based
awards
Restricted stock award, net
of forfeitures and other
Employee share-based
compensation earned
Purchase of Company
common stock
Noncontrolling interest
payments
Retirement of treasury shares

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income

Treasury
Capital in
Stock,
Excess of
Accumulated
Par Value
Par Value
Deficit
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Common
Stock

(726,756)

$

36,649

$

123,098

—

$

(5)
30

60,493

1,293,179
123,093
60,523
183,616

19,059

19,059
(40,381)
17,407

3,643

3,643

(40,381)
13,764

830

830

(830)

72

1

71

—

9,684

9,684

383

455
(231)

(400)

(218)
254,017

$

254,027

(231)
—
—

400

(10)

$

1,735,493

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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(603,876)

218
$

97,142

$

12

$

1,482,788
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SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Nature of Operations
We are North America’s largest provider of deathcare products and services, with a network of funeral service
locations and cemeteries primarily operating in the United States and Canada. Our operations consist of funeral service
locations, cemeteries, funeral service/cemetery combination locations, crematoria, and related businesses.
Funeral service locations provide all professional services relating to funerals and cremations, including the use of
funeral facilities and motor vehicles and preparation and embalming services. Funeral-related merchandise, including
caskets, casket memorialization products, burial vaults, cremation receptacles, cremation memorial products, flowers, and
other ancillary products and services, is sold at funeral service locations. Cemeteries provide cemetery property interment
rights, including mausoleum spaces, lots, and lawn crypts, and sell cemetery-related merchandise and services, including
stone and bronze memorials, markers, merchandise installations, and burial openings and closings. We also sell preneed
funeral and cemetery products and services whereby a customer contractually agrees to the terms of certain products and
services to be provided in the future.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation
Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Service Corporation International (SCI) and all
subsidiaries in which we hold a controlling financial interest. Our financial statements also include the accounts of the
funeral merchandise and service trusts, cemetery merchandise and service trusts, and cemetery perpetual care trusts in
which we have a variable interest and are the primary beneficiary. Intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.
In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) established the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) as the source of authoritative U.S. GAAP recognized by the FASB to be applied by non-governmental
entities. Following the ASC, the FASB will not issue new standards in the form of Statements, FASB Staff Positions or
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Abstracts. Instead, it will issue Accounting Standards Updates to update the ASC. The
ASC is effective for interim or annual financial periods ending after September 15, 2009. We adopted the ASC in the third
quarter of 2009, and its adoption did not impact our consolidated financial statements.
Reclassifications and Prior Period Adjustments
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior years to conform to current period financial statement presentation
with no effect on our previously reported consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.
In connection with our ongoing efforts to remediate our previously reported material weaknesses and other internal
control deficiencies, we recorded several immaterial adjustments to correct errors related to prior accounting periods
during the three months and year ended December 31, 2009. For the three months ended December 31, 2009, the net
impact of these adjustments was a $0.6 million decrease to our pre-tax income and a $2.4 million increase to our net
income attributable to common stockholders, primarily related to certain prior period income tax adjustments. For the year
ended December 31, 2009, the net impact of these adjustments was a $7.5 million decrease to our pre-tax income and a
$0.8 million decrease to our net income attributable to common stockholders, primarily related to certain prior period life
insurance benefit and income tax adjustments. We do not believe these adjustments are material to our consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009, nor were such items material to any of our prior annual or
interim financial statements.
53

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

Table of Contents

SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. As a result, actual results could
differ from these estimates.
Business Combinations
In December 2007, the FASB revised the authoritative guidance for business combinations, establishing principles and
requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired
(including goodwill), the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree. Subsequently, on April 1,
2009, the FASB amended and clarified certain aspects of its authoritative guidance on initial recognition and
measurement, subsequent measurement and accounting, and disclosure of assets and liabilities arising from contingencies
in a business combination. We apply the FASB authoritative guidance to all business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after January 1, 2009, and to certain future income tax effects related to our prior business
combinations, should they arise. In these acquisitions, tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
recorded at fair value and goodwill is recognized for any difference between the price of the acquisition and our fair value
determination.
On October 14, 2009, we entered into a definitive support agreement in which we agreed to offer to acquire all of the
outstanding common shares of Keystone for C$8.00 per share in cash with price escalators based on the actual closing
date. The total acquisition is valued at approximately $265 million using exchange rates as of December 31, 2009,
including transaction fees and the assumption of Keystone’s outstanding debt. The acquisition is anticipated to close in the
first quarter of 2010, subject to customary closing conditions, including expiration of the waiting period under the
Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Act; however, there can be no assurance the acquisition will be completed by this time or at
all.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At
December 31, 2009, the majority of our cash was invested in commercial paper. The carrying amounts of our cash and
cash equivalents approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Our trade receivables primarily consist of amounts due for funeral services already performed. We provide various
allowances and/or cancellation reserves for our funeral and cemetery preneed and atneed receivables as well as for our
preneed funeral and preneed cemetery deferred revenues. These allowances are based on an analysis of historical trends
and include, where applicable, collection and cancellation activity. Atneed funeral and cemetery receivables are
considered past due after 30 days. Collections are generally managed by the locations until a receivable is 180 days
delinquent at which time it is fully reserved and sent to a collection agency. These estimates are impacted by a number of
factors, including changes in the economy, relocation, and demographic or competitive changes in our areas of operation.
Inventories and Cemetery Property
Funeral and cemetery merchandise are stated at the lower of average cost or market. Cemetery property is recorded at
cost. Inventory costs and cemetery property are relieved using specific identification in performance of a contract.
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SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Property and Equipment, Net
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense whereas renewals and
major replacements that extend the assets useful lives are capitalized. Depreciation is recognized ratably over the
estimated useful lives of the various classes of assets. Property is depreciated over a period ranging from seven to forty
years, equipment is depreciated over a period from three to eight years, and leasehold improvements are depreciated over
the shorter of the lease term or ten years. Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment was
$111.1 million, $114.2 million, and $115.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
When property is sold or retired, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet; resulting gains and losses are included in the consolidated statement of operations in the period of sale or disposal.
Leases
We have lease arrangements primarily related to funeral service locations and transportation equipment that were
primarily classified as capital leases at December 31, 2009. Lease terms related to funeral home properties generally range
from one to 35 years with options to renew at varying terms. Lease terms related to transportation equipment generally
range from one to five years with options to renew at varying terms. We calculate operating lease expense ratably over the
lease term. We consider reasonably assured renewal options and fixed escalation provisions in our calculation. For more
information related to leases, see Note 12.
Goodwill
The excess of purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired in business combinations is recorded
as goodwill. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment by assessing the fair value of each of our reporting units. As of
December 31, 2009, our funeral segment reporting unit includes assets in North America and Germany. Our cemetery
segment reporting unit includes assets in North America. We performed our annual impairment test of goodwill in
accordance with the Intangibles Topic of the ASC during the fourth quarter.
Our goodwill impairment test involves estimates and management judgment. In the first step of our goodwill
impairment test, we compare the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill. We determine
fair value of each reporting unit using both a market and income approach. Our methodology considers discounted cash
flows and multiples of EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization) for both SCI and its
competitors. The discounted cash flow valuation uses projections of future cash flows and includes assumptions
concerning future operating performance and economic conditions that may differ from actual future cash flows. We do
not record an impairment of goodwill in instances where the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount. If
the aggregate step one fair value is less than the related carrying amount for a reporting unit, we compare the implied fair
value of goodwill (as defined in the Intangibles Topic of the ASC) to the carrying amount of goodwill. If the carrying
amount of reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to that excess. Based on our most recent annual impairment test performed during the fourth quarter, we
concluded that there was no impairment of goodwill as of December 31, 2009.
In addition to our annual review, we assess the impairment of goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be greater than fair value. Factors that could trigger an interim impairment review
include, but are not limited to, significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results and
significant negative industry or economic trends. No interim goodwill impairment reviews were required in 2009.
For our most recent annual impairment test performed in the fourth quarter, we used growth rates ranging from 1.5 to
4.5% over a three-year period, plus a terminal value determined using the constant growth method in projecting our future
cash flows. We considered the impact of recent realized losses in our trusts in developing our
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SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
projected cash flows. We used a 10.0% discount rate, which reflected our weighted average cost of capital based on our
industry and our supplier industries and capital structure, as adjusted for equity risk premiums and size risk premiums
based on our market capitalization. Fair value was calculated as the sum of the projected discounted cash flows of our
reporting units over the next three years plus terminal value at the end of those three years. Our terminal value was
calculated using a long-term growth rate of 3.0% for both our funeral and cemetery segments.
Other Intangible Assets
Our intangible assets include cemetery customer relationships, trademarks and tradenames, and other assets primarily
resulting from our acquisition of Alderwoods. Our trademark and tradenames and water rights assets are considered to
have an indefinite life and are not subject to amortization. We test for impairment of intangible assets in accordance with
the Intangibles Topic of the ASC annually during the fourth quarter.
Our intangible assets impairment tests involve estimates and management judgment. For trademark and tradenames,
our test uses the relief from royalty method whereby we determine the fair value of the assets by discounting the cash
flows that represent a savings over having to pay a royalty fee for use of the trademark and tradenames. The discounted
cash flow valuation uses projections of future cash flows and includes assumptions concerning future operating
performance and economic conditions that may differ from actual future cash flows. For our most recent annual
impairment test performed in the fourth quarter, we estimated that the pre-tax savings would be 4% of the revenues
associated with the trademark and tradenames, based primarily on our research of intellectual property valuation and
licensing databases. We also assumed a terminal growth rate of 3.0% and discounted the cash flows at 10.2% based on the
relative risk of these assets to our overall business. We concluded that there was no impairment of intangible assets as of
December 31, 2009.
In addition to our annual review, we assess the impairment of intangible assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be greater than the fair value. Factors that could trigger an interim
impairment review include, but are not limited to, significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future
operating results and significant negative industry or economic trends. No interim intangible impairment reviews were
required in 2009.
Our preneed backlog intangible asset is relieved using specific identification in performance of a contract. We
amortize all other finite-lived intangible assets on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10-20 years.
Amortization expense for preneed backlog intangible asset and other intangible assets was $21.7 million, $23.6 million,
and $27.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
Valuation of Long-Lived Assets
We review the carrying value of our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable, in accordance with the Intangibles and Property, Plant, and
Equipment Topic of the ASC. Under this guidance, long-lived assets to be held and used are reported at the lower of their
carrying amount or fair value. Fair value is based on an income approach that utilizes projections of undiscounted future
cash flows expected to be generated by our long-lived assets. No long-lived asset impairment reviews were required in
2009. While we believe our estimates of undiscounted future cash flows used in performing this test are reasonable,
different assumptions regarding such cash flows and comparable sales values could materially affect our evaluations.
Assets to be disposed of and assets not expected to provide any future service potential are recorded at the lower of
their carrying amount or fair value less estimated cost to sell. We determined the fair value of assets to be disposed of
using a market approach. See Note 19 for additional information related to assets to be disposed.
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Treasury Stock
We make treasury stock purchases in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions subject to market
conditions and normal trading restrictions. We account for the repurchase of our common stock under the par value
method. We use the average cost method upon the subsequent reissuance of treasury shares. On December 15, 2009, we
cancelled 0.4 million shares of common stock held in our treasury. We cancelled 19.1 million and 36.5 million shares of
common stock held in our treasury in 2008 and 2007, respectively. These retired treasury shares were changed to
authorized but unissued status.
Foreign Currency Translation
All assets and liabilities of our foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect as of the
end of the reporting period. Revenue and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the reporting
period. The resulting translation adjustments are included in Equity as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive
income in the consolidated statement of equity and consolidated balance sheet.
The functional currency of SCI and its subsidiaries is the respective local currency. The transactional currency gains
and losses that arise from transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of our operations are
recorded in Other income, net in the consolidated statement of operations. We do not operate in countries that are
considered to have hyperinflationary economies.
Noncontrolling Interests
The FASB issued authoritative guidance for noncontrolling interests in December 2007, which establishes accounting
and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. The
guidance clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary, which is sometimes referred to as an unconsolidated
investment, is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as a component of equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Among other requirements, the guidance requires consolidated net income to be
reported at amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest. It also requires disclosure, on the face
of the consolidated income statement, of the amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the
noncontrolling interest. We adopted the provisions of the FASB guidance on January 1, 2009 and applied the provisions
retrospectively. As a result, we have modified our consolidated statement of operations, consolidated balance sheet,
consolidated statement of cash flows, and consolidated statement of equity to incorporate the required disclosure of
noncontrolling interest information.
Fair Value Measurements
We measure the available-for-sale securities held by our funeral merchandise and service, cemetery merchandise and
service, and cemetery perpetual care trusts at fair value on a recurring basis in accordance with the Fair Value
Measurements Topic of the ASC. This guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about instruments measured at fair value. The guidance
establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based
upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are
defined as follows:
• Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets;
• Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full
term of the financial instrument;
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• Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.
An asset’s or liability’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Certain available-for-sale securities held by our funeral merchandise and
service, cemetery merchandise and service, and cemetery perpetual care trusts have been classified in Level 3 of the
hierarchy due to significant management judgment required as a result of the absence of quoted market prices, inherent
lack of liquidity, or the long-term nature of the securities. For additional disclosures required by FASB guidance for all of
our available-for-sale securities, see Notes 4, 5, and 6.
On January 1, 2009, we adopted the guidance for our non-financial assets and liabilities, such as goodwill and property
and equipment that we disclose or recognize at fair value on a non-recurring basis. Our adoption for these assets and
liabilities did not have a material impact on our results of operations, consolidated financial position, or cash flows.
In April 2009, the FASB issued additional guidance on how to determine the fair value of assets and liabilities in an
environment where the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased. The FASB
guidance also re-emphasizes that the objective of a fair value measurement remains an exit price. The guidance, which
was effective for us in the second quarter of 2009, did not have a material impact on our results of operations, consolidated
financial position, or cash flows.
Funeral Operations
Revenue is recognized when funeral services are performed and funeral merchandise is delivered. Our funeral trade
receivables consist of amounts due for services already performed and merchandise delivered. An allowance for doubtful
accounts is provided based on historical experience. We sell price-guaranteed preneed funeral contracts through various
programs providing for future funeral services at prices prevailing when the agreements are signed. Revenues associated
with sales of preneed funeral contracts are deferred until such time that the funeral services are performed. Allowances for
customer cancellations are based upon historical experience. Sales taxes collected are recognized on a net basis in our
consolidated financial statements.
Pursuant to state or provincial law, all or a portion of the proceeds from funeral merchandise or services sold on a
preneed basis may be required to be paid into trust funds. We defer investment earnings related to these merchandise and
service trusts until the associated merchandise is delivered or services are performed. Costs related to sales of merchandise
and services are charged to expense when merchandise is delivered and services performed. See Note 4 for more
information regarding preneed funeral activities.
Cemetery Operations
Revenue associated with sales of cemetery merchandise and services is recognized when the service is performed or
merchandise is delivered. Our cemetery trade receivables consist of amounts due for services already performed and
merchandise already delivered. An allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided based on historical experience.
Revenue associated with sales of preneed cemetery interment rights is recognized in accordance with the Revenue
Recognition Topic of the ASC. Under this guidance, revenue from constructed cemetery property is not recognized until
10% of the sales price has been collected. Revenue related to the preneed sale of unconstructed cemetery property is
deferred until it is constructed and 10% of the sales price is collected. Revenue associated with sales of preneed
merchandise and services is not recognized until the merchandise is delivered or the services are performed. Allowances
for customer cancellations for preneed cemetery contracts are based upon historical experience. For services and
non-personalized merchandise (such as vaults), we defer the revenues until the services are performed and the
merchandise is delivered. Sales taxes collected are recognized on a net basis in our consolidated financial statements. For
personalized marker merchandise, with the customer’s direction generally obtained at the time of sale, we can choose to
order, store, and transfer title to the customer. In
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situations in which we have no further obligation or involvement related to the merchandise, we recognize revenues and
record the cost of sales in accordance with the Revenue Recognition Topic of the ASC upon the earlier of vendor storage
of these items or delivery in our cemetery.
Pursuant to state or provincial law, all or a portion of the proceeds from cemetery merchandise or services sold on a
preneed basis may be required to be paid into trust funds. We defer investment earnings related to these merchandise and
services trusts until the associated merchandise is delivered or services are performed.
A portion of the proceeds from the sale of cemetery property interment rights is required by state or provincial law to
be paid into perpetual care trust funds. Investment earnings from these trusts are distributed to us regularly, are recognized
in current cemetery revenues, and are intended to defray cemetery maintenance costs, which are expensed as incurred. The
principal of such perpetual care trust funds generally cannot be withdrawn.
Costs related to the sale of property interment rights include the property and construction costs specifically identified
by project. At the completion of the project, construction costs are charged to expense in the same period revenue is
recognized. Costs related to sales of merchandise and services are charged to expense when merchandise is delivered and
when services are performed. See Notes 5 and 6 for more information regarding preneed cemetery activities.
Income Taxes
Income taxes are computed using the liability method. Deferred taxes are provided on all temporary differences
between the financial bases and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. We record a valuation allowance to reduce our
deferred tax assets when uncertainty regarding their realization exists. We intend to permanently reinvest the unremitted
earnings of certain of our foreign subsidiaries in those businesses outside the United States, and therefore we have not
provided for deferred federal income taxes on such unremitted foreign earnings. In June 2006, the FASB issued
authoritative guidance for uncertain income tax positions recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance
with the Income Tax Topic of the ASC. This interpretation requires companies to use a prescribed model for assessing the
financial statement recognition and measurement of all tax positions taken or expected to be taken in its tax returns. This
guidance provided clarification on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure, and transition. We adopted this guidance on January 1, 2007. See Note 9 for more information.
Split-Dollar Life Insurance Agreements
In March 2007, the FASB issued authoritative guidance that establishes criteria for determining a liability for the
postretirement benefit obligation as well as recognition and measurement of the associated asset on the basis of the terms
of a collateral assignment agreement in accordance with the Compensation for Retirement Benefits Topic of the ASC. We
adopted this guidance on January 1, 2008. As a result of our adoption, we recorded a $3.3 million cumulative-effect
adjustment, which increased our Accumulated deficit as of January 1, 2008.
Subsequent Events
In May 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance that establishes general standards of accounting for and
disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be
issued. The guidance became effective for us in the second quarter of 2009. For the year ended December 31, 2009, we
have evaluated subsequent events through February 25, 2010. Compliance with the guidance did not have an impact on
our consolidated financial statements.
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3. Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Accounting Changes
Variable Interest Entities
In June 2009, the FASB amended its authoritative guidance to improve financial reporting by enterprises involved with
variable interest entities (VIE). Specifically, the amended guidance addresses: (1) the impact resulting from the
elimination of the qualifying special-purpose entity concept in previously issued guidance, and (2) constituent concerns
about the application of certain key provisions of the existing guidance on the consolidation of variable interest entities,
including those in which the accounting and disclosures under the existing guidance do not always provide timely and
useful information about an enterprise’s involvement in a VIE. The amended guidance is effective for us on January 1,
2010, and its adoption will not impact our consolidated financial statements.
In December 2009, the FASB issued additional guidance on improving financial reporting by enterprises involved with
variable interest entities by clarifying the principal objectives of required disclosures, which include: (1) the significant
judgments and assumptions made by a reporting unit, 2) the nature of restrictions on a consolidated VIE’s assets reported
by a reporting entity in its statement of financial position, including the carrying amounts of such assets and liabilities,
(3) the nature of, and changes in, the risks associated with a reporting entity’s involvement with the VIE, and (4) how a
reporting entity’s involvement with the VIE affects the reporting entity’s financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows. The amended guidance is effective for us on January 1, 2010, and its adoption will not impact our consolidated
financial statements.
Fair Value Measurements
In August 2009, the FASB issued additional guidance on how to determine the fair value of liabilities. The guidance
provides clarification that in circumstances in which a quoted price in an active market for the identical liability is not
available, an entity is required to measure fair value utilizing one or more of the following techniques: (1) a valuation
technique that uses the quoted market price of an identical liability or similar liabilities when traded as assets; or
(2) another valuation technique that is consistent with the principles set forth by the FASB for measuring fair value, such
as a present value technique. We adopted this guidance in the fourth quarter of 2009. The guidance did not have a material
impact on our financial statements.
In September 2009, the FASB issued additional guidance on how to determine fair value for investments in certain
entities that calculate net asset value per share. The guidance permits, as a practical expedient, to estimate the fair value of
the investment using its reported net asset value per share as long as that value was calculated in accordance with the
authoritative literature governing investment companies. We adopted this guidance in the fourth quarter of 2009. The
guidance did not have an impact on our financial statements.
In January 2010, the FASB amended the Fair Value Measurements Topic of the ASC to require additional disclosures
on 1) transfers between levels, 2) Level 3 activity presented on a gross basis, 3) valuation techniques, and 4) inputs into
the valuation. Except for Item 2 above, the additional disclosures will be required in the first quarter of 2010 for us. The
disclosures in Item 2 will be required in the first quarter of 2011 for us. We are currently evaluating the impact of this
guidance on our consolidated financial statements.
Multi-Deliverable Arrangements
In October 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance which impacts the recognition of revenue in
multi-deliverable arrangements. The guidance establishes a selling-price hierarchy for determining the selling price of a
deliverable. The goal of this guidance is to clarify disclosures related to multi-deliverable arrangements and to align the
accounting with the underlying economics of the multi-deliverable transaction. This guidance is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after June 15, 2010. We are in the process of evaluating this guidance but do not believe this guidance will
have a material impact on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations.
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4. Preneed Funeral Activities
Preneed funeral receivables, net and trust investments
Preneed funeral receivables, net and trust investments represent trust investments, including investment earnings, and
customer receivables, net of unearned finance charges, related to unperformed, price-guaranteed preneed funeral contracts.
Our funeral merchandise and service trusts are variable interest entities as defined in the Consolidation Topic of the ASC.
In accordance with this guidance, we have determined that we are the primary beneficiary of these trusts, as we absorb a
majority of the losses and returns associated with these trusts. Our cemetery trust investments detailed in Notes 5 and 6 are
also accounted for as variable interest entities. When we receive payments from the customer, we deposit the amount
required by law into the trust and reclassify the corresponding amount from Deferred preneed funeral revenues into
Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust. Amounts are withdrawn from the trusts after the contract
obligations are performed. Cash flows from preneed funeral contracts are presented as operating cash flows in our
consolidated statement of cash flows.
Preneed funeral receivables, net and trust investments are reduced by the trust investment earnings (realized and
unrealized) that we have been allowed to withdraw in certain states prior to maturity. These earnings are recorded in
Deferred preneed funeral revenues until the service is performed or the merchandise is delivered.
The table below sets forth certain investment-related activities associated with our preneed funeral merchandise and
service trusts for the years ended December 31:
2009

Deposits
Withdrawals
Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Sales of available-for-sale securities
Realized gains from sales of available-for-sale securities
Realized losses from sales of available-for-sale securities

$
$
$
$
$
$

85,901
104,437
372,058
398,984
28,715
(57,118)

2008
(In thousands)

$
$
$
$
$
$

93,586
122,294
383,975
382,940
46,703
(76,192)

2007

$
84,712
$
176,528
$ 1,093,255
$
901,609
$
106,394
$
(29,940)

The components of Preneed funeral receivables, net and trust investments in our consolidated balance sheet at
December 31 were as follows:
2009

2008
(In thousands)

Trust investments, at market
Cash and cash equivalents
Insurance-backed fixed income securities
Trust investments
Receivables from customers
Unearned finance charge

$

771,568
153,126
214,255
1,138,949
256,009
(6,129)
1,388,829
(32,476)
$ 1,356,353

Allowance for cancellation
Preneed funeral receivables and trust investments

$

636,712
125,657
216,394
978,763
249,224
(6,316)
1,221,671
(29,979)
$ 1,191,692

An allowance for contract cancellation is estimated based on our historical experience. If a preneed funeral contract is
cancelled prior to delivery, state or provincial law determines the amount of the refund owed to the customer, if any,
including the amount of the attributed investment earnings. Upon cancellation, we receive the amount of principal
deposited to trust and previously undistributed net investment earnings and, where required,
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issue a refund to the customer. We retain excess funds, if any, and recognize the attributed investment earnings (net of any
investment earnings payable to the customer) as revenue in our consolidated statement of operations. In certain
jurisdictions, we may be obligated to fund any shortfall if the amounts deposited by the customer exceed the funds in trust.
The activity in Preneed funeral receivables, net and trust investments for the years ended December 31 was as follows:
2009

Beginning balance — Preneed funeral receivables and trust
investments
Net preneed contract sales
Cash receipts from customers
Deposits to trust
(Dispositions) acquisitions of businesses, net
Net undistributed investment earnings (losses)(1)
Maturities and distributed earnings
Change in cancellation allowance
Effect of foreign currency and other
Ending balance — Preneed funeral receivables and trust
investments

2008
(In thousands)

2007

$ 1,191,692
155,834
(118,049)
85,901
(6,226)
164,003
(141,135)
(2,054)
26,387

$

1,434,403
155,988
(119,981)
93,586
23,838
(217,767)
(144,257)
(603)
(33,515)

$ 1,516,676
146,250
(119,458)
84,712
(73,502)
54,397
(184,579)
8,816
1,091

$ 1,356,353

$

1,191,692

$ 1,434,403

(1) Includes both realized and unrealized investment earnings (losses).
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The cost and market values associated with our funeral merchandise and service trust investments recorded at fair
market value at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are detailed below. Cost reflects the investment (net of redemptions) of
control holders in common trust funds, mutual funds, and private equity investments. Fair market value represents the
value of the underlying securities held by the common trust funds, mutual funds at published values, and the estimated
market value of private equity investments. The fair market value of our funeral merchandise and service trust investments
was 96% and 76% of the related cost basis of such investments as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
December 31, 2009
Unrealized
Unrealized
Gains
Losses
(In thousands)

Cost

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
Canadian government
Corporate
Residential mortgage-backed
Asset-backed
Equity securities:
Common stock (based on investment objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Trust investments

$

40,065
104,713
29,778
6,573
3,188

$

1,258
1,430
2,091
119
76

$

(65)
(47)
(21)
(10)
—

Fair Market
Value

$

41,258
106,096
31,848
6,682
3,264

150,649
176,614

22,210
19,033

(10,343)
(16,027)

162,516
179,620

118,018
151,918
24,445
1,503
$ 807,464

2,277
2,135
1,529
359
52,517

(27,153)
(18,586)
(14,808)
(976)
(88,036)

$

93,142
135,467
11,166
886
771,945

$

(377)
771,568

$

$

Less: Assets associated with businesses held for sale
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December 31, 2008
Unrealized
Unrealized
Gains
Losses
(In thousands)

Cost

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
Canadian government
Corporate
Residential mortgage-backed
Asset-backed
Equity securities:
Common Stock (based on investment objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Trust investments

Fair Market
Value

61,907
86,216
21,144
26,230
20

569
951
106
233
—

(17,533)
(828)
(670)
(7,728)
—

44,943
86,339
20,580
18,735
20

158,337
184,807

1,497
1,747

(47,427)
(55,355)

112,407
131,199

98,499
156,393
18,597
29,261
$ 841,411

691
2,475
1,872
825
10,966

(33,276)
(40,380)
(6,717)
(2,958)
(212,872)

$

65,914
118,488
13,752
27,128
639,505

$

(2,793)
636,712

$

$

Less: Assets associated with businesses held for sale

Where quoted prices are available in an active market, securities held by the common trust funds and mutual funds are
classified as Level 1 investments pursuant to the three-level valuation hierarchy as required by the Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the ASC.
Where quoted market prices are not available for the specific security, fair values are estimated by using either quoted
prices of securities with similar characteristics or a fair value model with observable inputs that include a combination of
interest rates, yield curves, credit risks, prepayment speeds, rating, and tax-exempt status.
The valuation of private equity and other alternative investments requires significant management judgment due to the
absence of quoted market prices, inherent lack of liquidity, and the long-term nature of such assets. The fair value of these
investments is estimated based on the market value of the underlying real estate and private equity investments. The
underlying real estate value is determined using the most recent available appraisals. Private equity investments are valued
using market appraisals or a discounted cash flow methodology depending on the nature of the underlying assets. The
appraisals assess value based on a combination of replacement cost, comparative sales analysis, and discounted cash flow
analysis.
As of December 31, 2009, our unfunded commitment for our private equity and other investments was $13.4 million
which, if called, would be funded by the assets of the trusts. Our private equity and other investments include several
funds that invest in limited partnerships, distressed debt, real estate, and mezzanine financing. These investments can
never be redeemed by the funds. Instead, the nature of the investments in this category is that the distributions are received
through the liquidation of the underlying assets of the funds. We estimate that the underlying assets will be liquidated over
the next 2 to 10 years.
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Our investments classified as Level 1 securities include common stock and mutual funds. Level 2 securities include
U.S. Treasury, Canadian government, corporate, mortgage-backed fixed income securities, and preferred stock equity
securities. Our private equity and other alternative investments are classified as Level 3 securities.
The inputs into the fair value of our market-based funeral merchandise and service trust investments are categorized as
follows:
Quoted Market
Prices in Active
Markets
(Level 1)

Trust investments at December 31,
2009
Trust investments at December 31,
2008

Significant
Other
Significant
Observable
Unobservable
Inputs (Level 2)
Inputs (Level 3)
(In thousands)

Fair Market
Value

$ 570,745

$ 189,148

$ 12,052

$ 771,945

$ 428,008

$ 170,617

$ 40,880

$ 639,505

The change in our market-based funeral merchandise and service trust investments with significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) is as follows for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 (in thousands):
Fair market value, beginning balance at January 1,
Net unrealized losses included in Accumulated other comprehensive income(1)
Net realized (losses) gains included in Other income, net(2)
Purchases, sales, contributions, and distributions, net
Transfers out of Level 3
Fair market value, ending balance at December 31,

2009

2008

40,880
(9,205)
(27)
2,295
(21,891)
$ 12,052

$ 37,865
(5,920)
420
8,515
—
$ 40,880

$

(1) All losses recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive income for our funeral merchandise and service trust
investments are attributable to our preneed customers and are offset by a corresponding reclassification in
Accumulated other comprehensive income to Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust. See
Note 7 for further information related to our Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust.
(2) All (losses) gains recognized in Other income, net for our funeral merchandise and service trust investments are
attributable to our preneed customers and are offset by a corresponding reclassification in Other income, net to
Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust. See Note 7 for further information related to our
Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust.
Maturity dates of our fixed income securities range from 2010 to 2038. Maturities of fixed income securities at
December 31, 2009 are estimated as follows:
Fair Market
Value
(In thousands)

Due in one year or less
Due in one to five years
Due in five to ten years
Thereafter

$

$

101,694
39,630
38,540
9,284
189,148

Earnings from all funeral merchandise and service trust investments are recognized in funeral revenues when a service
is performed or merchandise is delivered. In addition, we are entitled to retain, in certain jurisdictions, a
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portion of collected customer payments when a customer cancels a preneed contract; these amounts are also recognized in
current revenues. Recognized earnings (realized and unrealized) related to our funeral merchandise and service trust
investments were $23.7 million, $37.5 million, and $45.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007,
respectively.
We assess our trust investments for other-than-temporary declines in fair value on a quarterly basis. Impairment
charges resulting from this assessment are recognized as investment losses in Other income, net and a decrease to Preneed
funeral receivables, net and trust investments. These investment losses, if any, are offset by the corresponding
reclassification in Other income, net, which reduces Deferred preneed funeral receipts held in trust. See Note 7 for further
information related to our Deferred preneed funeral receipts held in trust. During 2009 we recorded a $22.5 million
impairment charge for other-than-temporary declines in fair value related to unrealized losses on certain equity securities.
In 2008, we recorded a $9.1 million impairment charge for other-than-temporary declines in fair value related to
unrealized losses on certain private equity and other investments. In 2007, we recorded a $3.6 million impairment charge
for other-than-temporary declines in fair value related to unrealized losses on certain private equity and other investments.
We have determined that the remaining unrealized losses in our funeral merchandise and service trust investments are
considered temporary in nature, as the unrealized losses were due to temporary fluctuations in interest rates and equity
prices. The investments are diversified across multiple industry segments using a balanced allocation strategy to minimize
long-term risk. We believe that none of the securities are other-than-temporarily impaired based on our analysis of the
investments. Our analysis included a review of the portfolio holdings and discussions with the individual money managers
as to the sector exposures, credit ratings and the severity and duration of the unrealized losses. Our funeral merchandise
and service trust investment unrealized losses, their associated fair market values, and the duration of unrealized losses for
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, are shown in the following tables.
December 31, 2009
In Loss Position
Greater Than 12 Months
Fair
Market
Unrealized
Value
Losses
(In thousands)

In Loss Position
Less Than 12 Months
Fair
Market
Unrealized
Value
Losses

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
$
Canadian government
Corporate
Residential mortgage-backed
Equity securities:
Common stock (based on
investment objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Total temporarily impaired securities $

2,707
5,367
1,517
1,494

$

(40)
(47)
(21)
(10)

$

2,296
—
—
—

$

(25)
—
—
—

Total
Fair
Market
Value

$

5,003
5,367
1,517
1,494

Unrealized
Losses

$

(65)
(47)
(21)
(10)

36,467
38,221

(3,693)
(3,180)

19,941
45,979

(6,650)
(12,847)

56,408
84,200

(10,343)
(16,027)

60,413
46,542
9,657
585
202,970

(24,928)
(10,471)
(1,743)
(203)
(44,336)

20,945
22,684
16,454
765
129,064

(2,225)
(8,115)
(13,065)
(773)
(43,700)

81,358
69,226
26,111
1,350
332,034

(27,153)
(18,586)
(14,808)
(976)
(88,036)

$

$

$

$

$
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December 31, 2008
In Loss Position
Greater Than 12 Months
Fair
Market
Unrealized
Value
Losses
(In thousands)

In Loss Position
Less Than 12 Months
Fair
Market
Unrealized
Value
Losses

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
Canadian government
Corporate
Mortgage-backed
Equity securities:
Common stock (based on
investment objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Total temporarily impaired
securities

$

$

18,750
19,711
9,751
8,118

$

(7,944)
(828)
(453)
(3,495)

$

15,513
—
411
6,925

$

(9,589)
—
(217)
(4,233)

Total
Fair
Market
Value

$

34,263
19,711
10,162
15,043

Unrealized
Losses

$

(17,533)
(828)
(670)
(7,728)

57,436
67,038

(24,296)
(28,356)

41,992
49,011

(23,131)
(26,999)

99,428
116,049

(47,427)
(55,355)

33,709
43,432
1,608
709

(15,589)
(19,348)
(691)
(304)

27,181
33,975
12,850
5,659

(17,687)
(21,032)
(6,026)
(2,654)

60,890
77,407
14,458
6,368

(33,276)
(40,380)
(6,717)
(2,958)

260,262

$

(101,304)

$

193,517

$

(111,568)

$

453,779

$

(212,872)

Deferred Preneed Funeral Revenues
At December 31, 2009 and 2008, Deferred preneed funeral revenues, net of allowance for cancellation, represent future
funeral service revenues, including distributed trust investment earnings associated with unperformed trust-funded preneed
funeral contracts that are not held in trust accounts. Deferred preneed funeral revenues are recognized in current funeral
revenues when the service is performed or merchandise is delivered. Future funeral service revenues and net trust
investment earnings that are held in trust accounts are included in Deferred preneed funeral receipts held in trust.
The following table summarizes the activity in Deferred preneed funeral revenues for the years ended December 31
were as follows:
2009

Beginning balance — Deferred preneed funeral revenues, net
Net preneed contract sales
(Dispositions) acquisitions of businesses, net
Net investment earnings (losses)(1)
Recognized deferred preneed revenues
Change in cancellation allowance
Change in deferred preneed funeral receipts held in trust
Effect of foreign currency and other
Ending balance — Deferred preneed funeral revenues, net

$

588,198
141,752
(794)
135,842
(153,382)
(2,972)
(117,181)
5,503
$ 596,966

2008
(In thousands)

$

526,668
149,150
41,469
(191,601)
(162,409)
(2,336)
222,565
4,692
$ 588,198

2007

$

537,792
135,417
(120,290)
56,779
(173,126)
6,499
76,370
7,227
$ 526,668

(1) Includes both realized and unrealized investment (losses) earnings.
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Insurance-Funded Preneed Funeral Contracts
Not included in our consolidated balance sheet are insurance-funded preneed funeral contracts that will be funded by
life insurance or annuity contracts issued by third party insurers. The proceeds of the life insurance policies or annuity
contracts will be reflected in funeral revenues as these funerals are performed by the Company.
5. Preneed Cemetery Activities
Preneed cemetery receivables, net and trust investments
Preneed cemetery receivables, net and trust investments represent trust investments, including investment earnings,
and customer receivables, net of unearned finance charges, for contracts sold in advance of when the property interment
rights, merchandise, or services are needed. Our cemetery merchandise and service trusts are variable interest entities as
defined in the Consolidation Topic of the ASC. In accordance with this guidance, we have determined that we are the
primary beneficiary of these trusts, as we absorb a majority of the losses and returns associated with these trusts. The trust
investments detailed in Notes 4 and 6 are also accounted for as variable interest entities. When we receive payments from
the customer, we deposit the amount required by law into the trust and reclassify the corresponding amount from Deferred
preneed cemetery revenues into Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust. Amounts are withdrawn
from the trusts when the contract obligations are performed. Cash flows from preneed cemetery contracts are presented as
operating cash flows in our consolidated statement of cash flows.
Preneed cemetery receivables, net and trust investments are reduced by the trust investment earnings (realized and
unrealized) that we have been allowed to withdraw in certain states prior to maturity. These earnings are recorded in
Deferred preneed cemetery revenues until the service is performed or the merchandise is delivered.
The table below sets forth certain investment-related activities associated with our preneed cemetery merchandise and
service trusts for the years ended December 31:
2009

Deposits
Withdrawals
Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Sales of available-for-sale securities
Realized gains from sales of available-for-sale securities
Realized losses from sales of available-for-sale securities

$
$
$
$
$
$

92,687
104,580
625,248
593,133
44,972
(75,254)

2008
(In thousands)

$
$
$
$
$
$

106,724
132,725
846,679
424,009
47,411
(85,527)

2007

$
115,651
$
148,627
$ 1,067,208
$ 1,377,914
$
196,880
$
(77,529)

The components of Preneed cemetery receivables, net and trust investments in the consolidated balance sheet at
December 31 were as follows:
2009

2008
(In thousands)

Trust investments, at market
Cash and cash equivalents
Trust investments
Receivables from customers
Unearned finance charges

$

920,374
145,668
1,066,042
396,918
(41,517)
1,421,443
(38,726)
$ 1,382,717

Allowance for cancellation
Preneed cemetery receivables and trust investments

$

659,149
139,753
798,902
341,688
(48,999)
1,091,591
(28,639)
$ 1,062,952
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An allowance for contract cancellation is estimated based on historical experience. If a preneed cemetery contract is
cancelled prior to delivery, state or provincial law determines the amount of the refund owed to the customer, if any,
including the amount of the attributed investment earnings. Upon cancellation, we receive the amount of principal
deposited to trust and previously undistributed net investment earnings and, where required, issue a refund to the
customer. We retain excess funds, if any, and recognize the attributed investment earnings (net of any investment earnings
payable to the customer) as revenue in our consolidated statement of operations. In certain jurisdictions, we may be
obligated to fund any shortfall if the amounts deposited by the customer exceed the funds in trust.
The activity in Preneed cemetery receivables, net and trust investments for the years ended December 31 was as
follows:
2009

Beginning balance — Preneed cemetery receivables and trust
investments
Net preneed contract sales
Acquisitions (dispositions) of businesses, net
Net undistributed investment earnings (losses)(1)
Cash receipts from customers, net of refunds
Deposits to trust
Maturities, deliveries, and associated earnings
Change in cancellation allowance
Effect of foreign currency and other
Ending balance — Preneed cemetery receivables and trust
investments

2008
(In thousands)

2007

$ 1,062,952
408,328
7,749
271,804
(351,459)
92,687
(104,580)
(10,141)
5,377

$

1,428,057
424,939
8,728
(336,263)
(432,468)
106,724
(132,725)
8,328
(12,368)

$ 1,522,584
499,965
(105,428)
88,700
(521,475)
115,651
(148,627)
9,124
(32,437)

$ 1,382,717

$

1,062,952

$ 1,428,057

(1) Includes both realized and unrealized investment (losses) earnings.
The cost and market values associated with our cemetery merchandise and service trust investments recorded at fair
market value at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are detailed below. Cost reflects the investment (net of redemptions) of
control holders in common trust funds, mutual funds, and private equity investments. Fair market value represents the
value of the underlying securities held by the common trust funds, mutual funds at published values, and the estimated
market value of private equity investments. The fair market value of our cemetery merchandise and service trust
investments was 95% and 71% of the related cost basis of such investments as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
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December 31, 2009
Unrealized
Unrealized
Gains
Losses
(In thousands)

Cost

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
Canadian government
Corporate
Residential mortgage-backed
Asset-backed
Equity securities:
Common stock (based on investment
objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Trust investments

Fair Market
Value

32,084
15,664
9,065
1,460
6,476

1,169
224
438
19
193

(81)
(53)
(3)
(2)
—

33,172
15,835
9,500
1,477
6,669

198,564
260,356

27,019
23,475

(11,130)
(20,856)

214,453
262,975

241,763
233,999
14,968
1,230
$ 1,015,629

4,028
2,699
8
34
59,306

(38,093)
(24,718)
(11,000)
(899)
(106,835)

$

207,698
211,980
3,976
365
968,100

$

(47,726)
920,374

$

$

Less: Assets associated with businesses held for
sale
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December 31, 2008
Unrealized
Unrealized
Cost

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
Canadian government
Corporate
Residential mortgage-backed
Equity securities:
Common stock (based on investment objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Trust investments

Gains

Fair Market

Losses
(In thousands)

Value

60,699
11,949
9,726
21,832

139
466
130
50

(19,146)
—
(520)
(6,867)

41,692
12,415
9,336
15,015

194,429
262,819

544
735

(57,876)
(78,233)

137,097
185,321

203,032
189,492
11,795
25,154
$ 990,927

480
952
678
533
4,707

(67,330)
(55,452)
(3,538)
(2,785)
(291,747)

$

136,182
134,992
8,935
22,902
703,887

$

(44,738)
659,149

$

$

Less: Assets associated with businesses held for sale

Where quoted prices are available in an active market, securities held by the common trust funds and mutual funds are
classified as Level 1 investments pursuant to the three-level valuation hierarchy as required by the Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the ASC.
Where quoted market prices are not available for the specific security, fair values are estimated by using either quoted
prices of securities with similar characteristics or a fair value model with observable inputs that include a combination of
interest rates, yield curves, credit risks, prepayment speeds, rating, and tax-exempt status.
The valuation of private equity and other alternative investments requires significant management judgment due to the
absence of quoted market prices, inherent lack of liquidity, and the long-term nature of such assets. The fair value of these
investments is estimated based on the market value of the underlying real estate and private equity investments. The
underlying real estate value is determined using the most recent available appraisals. Private equity investments are valued
using market appraisals or a discounted cash flow methodology depending on the nature of the underlying assets. The
appraisals assess value based on a combination of replacement cost, comparative sales analysis, and discounted cash flow
analysis.
As of December 31, 2009, our unfunded commitment for our private equity and other investments was $12.3 million
which, if called, would be funded by the assets of the trusts. Our private equity and other investments include several
funds that invest in limited partnerships, distressed debt, real estate, and mezzanine financing. These investments can
never be redeemed by the funds. Instead, the nature of the investments in this category is that the distributions are received
through the liquidation of the underlying assets of the funds. We estimate that the underlying assets will be liquidated over
the next 2 to 10 years.
Our investments classified as Level 1 securities include common stock and mutual funds. Level 2 securities include
U.S. Treasury, Canadian government, corporate, and mortgage-backed fixed income securities. Our private equity and
other alternative investments are classified as Level 3 securities.
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The inputs into the fair value of our market-based cemetery merchandise and service trust investments are categorized
as follows:
Quoted Market
Prices in Active
Markets
(Level 1)

Trust investments at
December 31, 2009
Trust investments at
December 31, 2008

Significant Other
Significant
Observable Inputs
Unobservable Inputs
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
(In thousands)

Fair Market Value

$ 897,106

$ 66,653

$ 4,341

$ 968,100

$ 593,592

$ 78,458

$ 31,837

$ 703,887

The change in our market-based cemetery merchandise and service trust investments with significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) is as follows for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):
Fair market value, beginning balance at January 1,
Net unrealized losses included in Accumulated other comprehensive income(1)
Net realized (losses) gains included in Other income, net(2)
Purchases, sales, contributions, and distributions, net
Transfers out of Level 3
Fair market value, ending balance at December 31

2009

2008

31,837
(14,039)
(27)
2,162
(15,592)
$
4,341

$ 21,809
(3,109)
325
12,812
—
$ 31,837

$

(1) All losses recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive income for our cemetery merchandise and service trust
investments are attributable to our preneed customers and are offset by a corresponding reclassification in
Accumulated other comprehensive income to Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust. See
Note 7 for further information related to our Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust.
(2) All (losses) gains recognized in Other income, net for our cemetery merchandise and service trust investments are
attributable to our preneed customers and are offset by a corresponding reclassification in Other income, net to
Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust. See Note 7 for further information related to our
Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust.
Maturity dates of our fixed income securities range from 2010 to 2038. Maturities of fixed income securities
(excluding mutual funds) at December 31, 2009 are estimated as follows:
Fair Market
Value
(In thousands)

Due in one year or less
Due in one to five years
Due in five to ten years
Thereafter

$

$

2,383
26,837
28,383
9,050
66,653

Earnings from all our cemetery merchandise and service trust investments are recognized in cemetery revenues when a
service is performed or merchandise is delivered. In addition, we are entitled to retain, in certain jurisdictions, a portion of
collected customer payments when a customer cancels a preneed contract; these amounts are also recognized in current
revenues. Recognized earnings (realized and unrealized) related to our cemetery
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merchandise and service trust investments were $8.6 million, $9.2 million, and $25.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
We assess our trust investments for other-than-temporary declines in fair value on a quarterly basis. Impairment
charges resulting from this assessment are recognized as investment losses in Other income, net and a decrease to Preneed
cemetery receivables, net and trust investments. These investment losses, if any, are offset by the corresponding
reclassification in Other income, net, which reduces Deferred preneed cemetery receipts held in trust. See Note 7 for
further information related to our Deferred preneed cemetery receipts held in trust. During 2009, we recorded a
$41.2 million impairment charge for other-than-temporary declines in fair value related to unrealized losses on certain
equity securities. In 2008, we recorded an $11.4 million impairment charge for other-than-temporary declines in fair value
related to unrealized losses on certain private equity and other investments. In 2007, we recorded a $3.2 million
impairment charge for other-than-temporary declines in fair value related to unrealized losses of certain private equity
investments.
We have determined that the remaining unrealized losses in our cemetery merchandise and service trust investments
are considered temporary in nature, as the unrealized losses were due to temporary fluctuations in interest rates and equity
prices. The investments are diversified across multiple industry segments using a balanced allocation strategy to minimize
long-term risk. We believe that none of the securities are other-than-temporarily impaired based on our analysis of the
investments. Our analysis included a review of the portfolio holdings and discussions with the individual money managers
as to the sector exposures, credit ratings, and the severity and duration of the unrealized losses. Our cemetery merchandise
and service trust investment unrealized losses, their associated fair market values, and the duration of unrealized losses for
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, are shown in the following tables:
December 31, 2009
In Loss Position
Greater Than 12 Months
Fair Market
Unrealized
Value
Losses
(In thousands)

In Loss Position
Less Than 12 Months
Fair Market
Unrealized
Value
Losses

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
$
Canadian government
Corporate
Residential mortgage-backed
Equity securities:
Common stock (based on
investment objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Total temporarily impaired securities $

2,624
5,262
212
267

$

53,941
64,698
123,439
131,246
14,048
863
396,600

(65) $
(53)
(3)
(2)

(4,357)
(4,031)

$

1,171
—
—
—

$

21,402
60,093

(33,152)
(16,036)
(4,056)
(252)
(62,007) $

44,463
28,203
9,204
552
165,088

$

(16) $
—
—
—

Total
Fair Market
Value

3,795
5,262
212
267

Unrealized
Losses

$

(81)
(53)
(3)
(2)

(6,773)
(16,825)

75,343
124,791

(11,130)
(20,856)

(4,941)
(8,682)
(6,944)
(647)
(44,828) $

167,902
159,449
23,252
1,415
561,688

(38,093)
(24,718)
(11,000)
(899)
(106,835)

$
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In Loss Position
Less Than 12 Months
Fair Market
Unrealized
Value
Losses

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
$
Corporate
Residential mortgage-backed
Equity securities:
Common stock (based on
investment objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Total temporarily impaired securities $

34,817
4,204
12,491

$

113,100
152,885
101,895
100,882
660
519
521,453

December 31, 2008
In Loss Position
Greater Than 12 Months
Fair Market
Unrealized
Value
Losses
(In thousands)

(15,637) $
(435)
(5,610)

(50,671)
(68,495)

$

(46,405)
(46,308)
(231)
(182)
(233,974) $

5,757
113
2,066

$

18,104
24,471

Total
Fair Market
Value

(3,509) $
(85)
(1,257)

(7,205)
(9,738)

29,282
15,045
7,536
5,933
108,307

$

(20,925)
(9,144)
(3,307)
(2,603)
(57,773) $

40,574
4,317
14,557

Unrealized
Losses

$

(19,146)
(520)
(6,867)

131,204
177,356

(57,876)
(78,233)

131,177
115,927
8,196
6,452
629,760

(67,330)
(55,452)
(3,538)
(2,785)
(291,747)

$

Deferred Preneed Cemetery Revenues
At December 31, 2009 and 2008, Deferred preneed cemetery revenues, net of allowance for cancellation, represent
future cemetery revenues, including distributed trust investment earnings associated with unperformed trust-funded
preneed cemetery contracts that are not held in trust accounts. Deferred preneed cemetery revenues are recognized in
current cemetery revenues when the service is performed or merchandise delivered. Future cemetery revenues and net trust
investment earnings that are held in trust accounts are included in Deferred preneed cemetery receipts held in trust.
The following table summarizes the activity in Deferred preneed cemetery revenues for the years ended December 31:
2009

Beginning balance — Deferred preneed cemetery revenues
Net preneed and atneed deferred sales
Acquisitions (dispositions) of businesses, net
Net investment earnings (losses)(1)
Recognized deferred preneed revenues
Change in cancellation allowance
Change in deferred preneed cemetery receipts held in trust
Effect of foreign currency and other
Ending balance — Deferred preneed cemetery revenues

$

771,117
342,984
5,461
242,483
(325,036)
10,855
(235,031)
4,710
$ 817,543

2008
(In thousands)

$

753,876
338,114
529
(299,422)
(356,501)
7,866
330,333
(3,678)
$ 771,117

2007

$

754,193
374,412
(20,321)
91,601
(405,891)
3,233
(21,347)
(22,004)
$ 753,876

(1) Includes both realized and unrealized investment (losses) earnings.
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6. Cemetery Perpetual Care Trusts
We are required by state and provincial law to pay into cemetery perpetual care trusts a portion of the proceeds from
the sale of cemetery property interment rights. Our cemetery perpetual care trusts are variable interest entities as defined in
the Consolidation Topic of the ASC. In accordance with this guidance, we have determined that we are the primary
beneficiary of these trusts, as we absorb a majority of the losses and returns associated with these trusts. The merchandise
and service trust investments detailed in Notes 4 and 5 are also accounted for as variable interest entities. We consolidate
our cemetery perpetual care trust investments with a corresponding amount recorded as Care trusts’ corpus. Cash flows
from cemetery perpetual care contracts are presented as operating cash flows in our consolidated statement of cash flows.
The table below sets forth certain investment-related activities associated with our cemetery perpetual care trusts for
the years ended December 31:

Deposits
Withdrawals
Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Sales of available-for-sale securities
Realized gains from sales of available-for-sale securities
Realized losses from sales of available-for-sale securities

2009

2008
(In thousands)

2007

$ 22,336
$ 31,196
$ 369,536
$ 285,370
$ 11,288
$ (20,512)

$ 23,347
$ 31,628
$ 218,140
$ 222,445
$ 19,070
$ (32,312)

$ 26,253
$ 26,377
$ 727,682
$ 470,749
$ 45,203
$ (15,339)

The components of Cemetery perpetual care trust investments in our consolidated balance sheet at December 31 were
as follows:
2009

2008
(In thousands)

Trust investments, at market
Cash and cash equivalents
Cemetery perpetual care trust investments

$ 797,536
92,153
$ 889,689

$ 673,237
71,521
$ 744,758

The cost and market values associated with our cemetery perpetual care trust investments recorded at fair market value
at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are detailed below. Cost reflects the investment (net of redemptions) of control holders in
common trust funds, mutual funds, and private equity investments. Fair market value represents the value of the
underlying securities or cash held by the common trust funds, mutual funds at published values, and the estimated market
value of private equity investments. The fair market value of our cemetery perpetual care trust investments was 95% and
81% of the related cost basis of such investments as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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December 31, 2009
Unrealized
Unrealized
Gains
Losses
(In thousands)

Cost

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
Canadian government
Corporate
Residential mortgage-backed
Asset-backed
Equity securities:
Preferred stock
Common stock (based on investment objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Cemetery perpetual care trust investments

Fair Market
Value

5,031
26,688
40,703
1,923
520

852
378
3,079
35
8

(9)
(92)
(367)
(9)
—

5,874
26,974
43,415
1,949
528

5,803

1,389

(259)

6,933

6,172
129,549

452
8,810

(251)
(15,185)

6,373
123,174

69,376
534,137
28,853
8,568
$ 857,323

2,023
4,384
394
748
22,552

(15,598)
(9,845)
(18,235)
(5,385)
(65,235)

$

55,801
528,676
11,012
3,931
814,640

$

(17,104)
797,536

$

$

Less: Assets associated with businesses held for sale

December 31, 2008
Unrealized
Unrealized
Gains
Losses
(In thousands)

Cost

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
Canadian government
Corporate
Residential mortgage-backed
Equity securities:
Preferred stock
Common stock (based on investment objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Cemetery perpetual care trust investments

Fair Market
Value

5,805
20,837
42,139
4,376

769
773
202
1

(808)
—
(5,079)
(835)

5,766
21,610
37,262
3,542

5,558

1

(1,186)

4,373

5,744
106,709

70
1,303

(1,200)
(22,287)

4,614
85,725

90,044
519,132
20,561
32,482
$ 853,387

25
233
668
816
4,861

(20,931)
(106,187)
(2,812)
(3,439)
(164,764)

$

69,138
413,178
18,417
29,859
693,484

$

(20,247)
673,237

$

$

Less: Assets associated with businesses held for sale
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Where quoted prices are available in an active market, securities held by the common trust funds and mutual funds are
classified as Level 1 investments pursuant to the three-level valuation hierarchy as required by the Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the ASC.
Where quoted market prices are not available for the specific security, fair values are estimated by using either quoted
prices of securities with similar characteristics or a fair value model with observable inputs that include a combination of
interest rates, yield curves, credit risks, prepayment speeds, rating, and tax-exempt status.
The valuation of private equity and other alternative investments requires significant management judgment due to the
absence of quoted market prices, inherent lack of liquidity, and the long-term nature of such assets. The fair value of these
investments is estimated based on the market value of the underlying real estate and private equity investments. The
underlying real estate value is determined using the most recent available appraisals. Private equity investments are valued
using market appraisals or a discounted cash flow methodology depending on the nature of the underlying assets. The
appraisals assess value based on a combination of replacement cost, comparative sales analysis, and discounted cash flow
analysis.
As of December 31, 2009, our unfunded commitment for our private equity and other investments was $10.5 million
which, if called, would be funded by the assets of the trusts. Our private equity and other investments include several
funds that invest in limited partnerships, distressed debt, real estate, and mezzanine financing. These investments can
never be redeemed by the funds. Instead, the nature of the investments in this category is that the distributions are received
through the liquidation of the underlying assets of the funds. We estimate that the underlying assets will be liquidated over
the next 2 to 10 years.
Our investments classified as Level 1 securities include common stock and mutual funds. Level 2 securities include
U.S. Treasury, Canadian government, corporate, mortgage-backed fixed income securities, and preferred stock equity
securities. Our private equity and other alternative investments are classified as Level 3 securities.
The inputs into the fair value of our market-based cemetery perpetual care investments are categorized as follows:
Quoted Market
Prices in Active
Markets
(Level 1)

Trust investments at
December 31, 2009
Trust investments at
December 31, 2008

Significant Other
Significant
Observable Inputs
Unobservable Inputs
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
(In thousands)

Fair Market Value

$ 714,024

$ 85,673

$ 14,943

$ 814,640

$ 572,655

$ 72,553

$ 48,276

$ 693,484

The change in our market-based cemetery perpetual care trust investments with significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) is as follows for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):
2009

Fair market value, beginning balance
Net unrealized losses included in Accumulated other comprehensive income(1)
Net realized (losses) gains included in Other income, net(2)
Purchases, sales, contributions, and distributions, net
Transfers out of Level 3
Fair market value, ending balance

$

48,276
(27,920)
(121)
1,920
(7,212)
$ 14,943

2008

$

32,644
(13,569)
32
29,169
—
$ 48,276
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(1) All losses recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive income for our cemetery perpetual care trust investments
are offset by a corresponding reclassification in Accumulated other comprehensive income to Care trusts’ corpus. See
Note 7 for further information related to our Care trusts’ corpus.
(2) All (losses) gains recognized in Other income, net for our cemetery perpetual care trust investments are offset by a
corresponding reclassification in Other income, net to Care trusts’ corpus. See Note 7 for further information related
to our Care trusts’ corpus.
Maturity dates of our fixed income securities range from 2010 to 2038. Maturities of fixed income securities at
December 31, 2009 are estimated as follows:
Fair Market
Value
(In thousands)

Due in one year or less
Due in one to five years
Due in five to ten years
Thereafter

$

$

3,389
39,130
20,793
15,428
78,740

Distributable earnings from these cemetery perpetual care trust investments are recognized in current cemetery
revenues to the extent we have incurred qualifying cemetery maintenance costs. Recognized earnings related to these
cemetery perpetual care trust investments were $37.6 million, $36.0 million, and $44.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
We assess our trust investments for other-than-temporary declines in fair value on a quarterly basis. Impairment
charges resulting from this assessment are recognized as investment losses in Other income, net and a decrease to
Cemetery perpetual care trust investments. These investment losses, if any, are offset by the corresponding reclassification
in Other income, net, which reduces Care trusts’ corpus. See Note 7 for further information related to our Care trusts’
corpus. During 2009, we recorded a $13.1 million impairment charge for other-than-temporary declines in fair value
related to unrealized losses on certain equity securities. In 2008, we recorded a $2.0 million impairment charge for
other-than-temporary declines in fair value related to unrealized losses on certain private equity and other investments. In
2007, we recorded a $1.2 million impairment charge for other-than-temporary declines in fair value related to unrealized
losses on certain private equity and other investments.
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We have determined that the remaining unrealized losses in our cemetery perpetual care trust investments are
considered temporary in nature, as the unrealized losses were due to temporary fluctuations in interest rates and equity
prices. The investments are diversified across multiple industry segments using a balanced allocation strategy to minimize
long-term risk. We believe that none of the securities are other-than-temporarily impaired based on our analysis of the
investments. Our analysis included a review of the portfolio holdings, and discussions with the individual money
managers as to the sector exposures, credit ratings, and the severity and duration of the unrealized losses. Our cemetery
perpetual care trust investment unrealized losses, their associated fair market values and the duration of unrealized losses
for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, are shown in the following tables.
December 31, 2009
In Loss Position
Greater Than 12 Months
Fair
Market
Unrealized
Value
Losses
(In thousands)

In Loss Position
Less Than 12 Months
Fair
Market
Unrealized
Value
Losses

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
$
Canadian Government
Corporate
Residential mortgage-backed
Equity securities:
Preferred stock
Common stock (based on
investment objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Total temporarily impaired securities $

1,029
9,053
4,739
1,426

$

(9) $
(92)
(92)
(9)

—
—
2,780
—

$

Total
Fair
Market
Value

— $
—
(275)
—

1,029
9,053
7,519
1,426

Unrealized
Losses

$

(9)
(92)
(367)
(9)

511

(47)

734

(212)

1,245

(259)

1,299
20,125

(126)
(1,649)

987
36,289

(125)
(13,536)

2,286
56,414

(251)
(15,185)

37,203
322,077
21,662
6,016
465,930

(15,598)
(9,845)
(18,235)
(5,385)
(65,235)

21,152
285,936
8,973
2,497
356,740

$

(9,290)
(7,512)
(7,249)
(2,017)
(28,092) $

16,051
36,141
12,689
3,519
109,190

$

(6,308)
(2,333)
(10,986)
(3,368)
(37,143) $

$
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December 31, 2008
In Loss Position
Greater Than 12 Months
Fair
Market
Unrealized
Value
Losses
(In thousands)

In Loss Position
Less Than 12 Months
Fair
Market
Unrealized
Value
Losses

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasury
$
Corporate
Residential mortgage-backed
Equity securities:
Preferred stock
Common stock (based on
investment objectives):
Growth
Value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Private equity
Other
Total temporarily impaired securities $

2,729
17,224
1,705

$

(435) $
(2,997)
(410)

1,358
9,932
1,507

$

Total
Fair
Market
Value

(373) $
(2,082)
(425)

4,087
27,156
3,212

Unrealized
Losses

$

(808)
(5,079)
(835)

2,335

(562)

2,085

(624)

4,420

(1,186)

2,486
46,190

(661)
(12,276)

1,905
35,387

(539)
(10,011)

4,391
81,577

(1,200)
(22,287)

69,246
413,771
13,524
16,538
637,922

(20,931)
(106,187)
(2,812)
(3,439)
(164,764)

40,611
231,564
8,764
10,716
364,324

$

(11,959)
(53,735)
(1,564)
(1,912)
(86,511) $

28,635
182,207
4,760
5,822
273,598

$

(8,972)
(52,452)
(1,248)
(1,527)
(78,253) $

$

7. Deferred Preneed Funeral and Cemetery Receipts Held in Trust and Care Trusts’ Corpus
Deferred Preneed Funeral and Cemetery Receipts Held in Trust
We consolidate the merchandise and service trusts associated with our preneed funeral and cemetery activities in
accordance with the Consolidation Topic of the ASC. Although the guidance requires the consolidation of the merchandise
and service trusts, it does not change the legal relationships among the trusts, us, or our customers. The customers are the
legal beneficiaries of these merchandise and service trusts, and therefore their interests in these trusts represent a liability to
us.
The components of Deferred preneed funeral and cemetery receipts held in trust in our consolidated balance sheet at
December 31, 2009 and 2008 are detailed below.
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December 31, 2009
Preneed
Cemetery
(In thousands)

Preneed
Funeral

Trust investments
$
Accrued trust operating
payables, deferred
tax assets, and other
Deferred preneed
funeral and cemetery
receipts held in trust $

1,138,949

$

(1,449)

1,137,500

Total

1,066,042

$

2,204,991

(2,139)

$

Preneed
Funeral

1,063,903

$

(3,588)

$

2,201,403

978,763

December 31, 2008
Preneed
Cemetery
(In thousands)

$

798,902

16,816

$

995,579

Total

$

23,184

$

822,086

1,777,665
40,000

$

1,817,665

Care Trusts’ Corpus
The Care trusts’ corpus reflected in our consolidated balance sheet represents the cemetery perpetual care trusts,
including the related accrued expenses and other long-term liabilities of our perpetual care trusts.
The components of Care trusts’ corpus in our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are detailed
below.
December 31, 2009
December 31, 2008
(In thousands)

Cemetery perpetual care trust investments
Accrued trust operating payables, deferred tax assets, and other
Care trusts’ corpus

$
$

889,689
1,220
890,909

$

744,758
27,476
772,234

$

Other Income, Net
The components of Other income, net in our consolidated statement of operations for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008, and 2007 are detailed below. See Notes 4, 5, and 6 for further discussion of the amounts related to our funeral,
cemetery and perpetual care trusts.
Funeral
Trusts

Realized gains
Realized losses and
impairment charges
Interest, dividend, and other
ordinary income
Trust expenses and income
taxes
Net trust investment (loss)
income
Reclassification to deferred
preneed funeral and
cemetery receipts held in
trust and care trusts’ corpus
Other income, net
Total other income, net

$

$

28,715

Cemetery
Trusts

$

Year Ended December 31, 2009
Cemetery Perpetual
Care Trusts
(In thousands)

44,972

$

11,288

Other, Net

$

—

Total

$

84,975

(79,594)

(116,499)

(33,579)

—

(229,672)

21,694

25,273

37,436

—

84,403

(4,127)

(3,789)

(3,240)

—

(11,156)

(33,312)

(50,043)

11,905

—

(71,450)

33,312
—
—

50,043
—
—

(11,905)
—
—

$

$

$

—
1,316
1,316

$

71,450
1,316
1,316

81

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

Table of Contents

SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Funeral
Trusts

Realized gains
$
Realized losses and impairment
charges
Interest, dividend, and other
ordinary income
Trust expenses and income
taxes
Net trust investment (loss)
income
Reclassification to deferred
preneed funeral and cemetery
receipts held in trust and care
trusts’ corpus
Other income, net
Total other income, net
$

46,703

$

$

$

47,411

$

19,070

Other, Net

$

—

Total

$

113,184

(85,298)

(96,919)

(34,338)

—

(216,555)

43,265

31,894

37,177

—

112,336

(14,090)

(22,619)

—

(37,546)

(9,420)

(40,233)

21,072

—

(28,581)

9,420
—
—

40,233
—
—

(21,072)
—
—

$

Funeral
Trusts

Realized gains
Realized losses and
impairment charges
Interest, dividend, and other
ordinary income
Trust expenses and income
taxes
Net trust investment income
Reclassification to deferred
preneed funeral and
cemetery receipts held in
trust and care trusts’ corpus
Other income, net
Total other income, net

Year Ended December 31, 2008
Cemetery Perpetual
Care Trusts
(In thousands)

Cemetery
Trusts

106,394

Cemetery
Trusts

$

(837)

$

Year Ended December 31, 2007
Cemetery Perpetual
Care Trusts
(In thousands)

196,880

$

45,203

—
4,897
4,897

$

$

Other, Net

$

—

28,581
4,897
4,897

Total

$

348,477

(33,507)

(80,732)

(16,505)

—

(130,744)

26,791

41,218

40,713

—

108,722

(10,534)
89,144

(17,264)
140,102

(4,644)
64,767

—
—

(32,442)
294,013

(89,144)
—
—

(140,102)
—
—

(64,767)
—
—

—
7,921
7,921

(294,013)
7,921
$
7,921

$

$

$
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8. Goodwill
The changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill for our funeral and cemetery segments are as follows (in thousands):
2009
Cemetery
Segment

Funeral
Segment

Balance as of January 1:
Goodwill
$
Accumulated
impairment losses
Increase in goodwill
related to acquisitions
Reduction of goodwill
related to divestitures
Effect of foreign
currency and other

1,124,219

$

—
1,124,219

$

1,325,763

(55)

(12,119)

(13,462)
(55,336)
(46,636)

18,219
22,363

1,140,742

207,384

1,348,126

(146,794)
60,590

$

(146,794)
1,201,332

$

—
1,170,855
22,162

3,293
5,840

$

1,170,855

16,263

14,926
16,523

—
1,140,742

$

(146,794)
1,178,969

2,602

(12,064)

$

Total

(146,794)
54,750

13,661

Balance as of December
31:
Goodwill
Accumulated
impairment losses

201,544

2008
Cemetery
Segment

Funeral
Segment

—
1,124,219

$

(146,794)
27,298

48,038

(56)

(13,518)

1,632
27,452

(53,704)
(19,184)

201,544

$

(146,794)
54,750

1,344,947
(146,794)
1,198,153

25,876

1,124,219

$

174,092

Total

1,325,763

$

(146,794)
1,178,969

9. Income Taxes
The provision or benefit for income taxes includes U.S. federal income taxes (determined on a consolidated return
basis), foreign income taxes, and state income taxes.
Income from continuing operations before income taxes for the years ended December 31 was comprised of the
following components:

United States
Foreign

2009

2008
(In thousands)

2007

$ 175,212
24,156
$ 199,368

$ 125,694
37,601
$ 163,295

$ 369,730
17,257
$ 386,987
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Income tax provision (benefit) for the years ended December 31 consisted of the following:
2009

Current:
United States
Foreign
State
Total current income taxes
Deferred:
United States
Foreign
State
Total deferred income taxes
Total income taxes

$

2008
(In thousands)

13
9,200
9,196
18,409

$ 57,767
(806)
905
57,866
$ 76,275

2007

$

(60,270)
11,285
5,584
(43,401)

$

$

99,752
645
8,721
109,118
65,717

$

$

84,405
8,296
16,317
109,018

16,058
(210)
18,804
34,652
$ 143,670

The current benefit associated with U.S. income taxes in 2008 reflects a refund of 2007 estimated taxes. We made
income tax payments, net of refunds, of $21.1 million, $20.1 million, and $44.5 million in 2009, 2008, and 2007,
respectively.
The differences between the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate and our effective tax rate for the years ended
December 31 were as follows:

Computed tax provision at the applicable federal statutory income tax
rate
State and local taxes, net of federal income tax benefits
Dividends received deduction and tax exempt interest
Foreign jurisdiction differences
Permanent differences associated with dispositions
Changes in uncertain tax positions
Other
Provision for income taxes
Total effective tax rate

2009

2008
(In thousands)

2007

$ 69,779
6,565
(947)
(3,707)
2,950
(134)
1,769
$ 76,275

$ 57,107
9,298
(1,177)
(4,975)
2,586
818
2,060
$ 65,717

$ 135,446
22,829
(1,453)
(1,349)
14,611
(29,287)
2,873
$ 143,670

38.3%

40.2%

37.1%

During 2009 we restructured some of our state operating structures which lowered our state income tax expense. We
also recognized the benefit of some of our uncertain tax positions because of statute of limitation expirations. These two
events caused a decrease in our effective tax rate that was partially offset by higher taxable income from our Canadian
operations. Our 2009, 2008, and 2007 effective tax rates were negatively impacted by permanent differences between the
book and tax basis of North American asset divestitures. During the fourth quarter of 2007, we generated taxable capital
gains on the sale of our investment in our French unconsolidated subsidiary which allowed us to recognize the benefit of
capital loss carryforwards that we had previously concluded were more likely than not to expire unutilized. That benefit
decreased our 2007 effective tax rate by nine percentage points.
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Deferred taxes are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and
liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates. The tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards that
give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 consisted of the following:
2009

2008
(In thousands)

Inventories and cemetery property, principally due to purchase accounting adjustments
Property and equipment, principally due to differences in depreciation methods and
purchase accounting adjustments
Intangibles
Payables, principally due to sales of cemetery interment rights and related products
Deferred tax liabilities
Loss and tax credit carryforwards
Deferred revenue on preneed funeral and cemetery contracts, principally due to earnings
from trust funds
Accrued liabilities
Receivables, principally due to sales of cemetery interment rights and related products
Other
Deferred tax assets
Less: Valuation allowance
Net deferred income tax liability

$ (332,465)

$ (330,413)

(150,312)
(55,976)
(1,390)
(540,143)
224,442

(78,765)
(55,984)
—
(465,162)
181,890

172,944
28,090
—
6,918
432,394
(87,447)
$ (195,196)

117,753
7,268
6,131
12,836
325,878
(69,822)
$ (209,106)

Deferred tax assets and Deferred income tax liabilities consisted of the following as of December 31:
2009

Current deferred tax assets
Non-current deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax liability

$

51,534
(246,730)
$ (195,196)

2008

$

79,571
(288,677)
$ (209,106)

In addition to the loss and tax credit carryforward amounts reflected as deferred tax assets in the table above, we have
taken certain tax deductions related to the exercised employee stock options and vested restricted shares that are in excess
of the stock-based compensation amounts recorded in our consolidated financial statements (windfall tax benefits).
Pursuant to the Stock Compensation Topic under the ASC, such windfall tax benefits are not recognized in our
consolidated financial statements unless they reduce income taxes payable. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, we have
windfall tax benefits of $8.1 million and $25.0 million, respectively, which when realized will be recorded as a reduction
to current taxes payable and credit to Capital in excess of par value in our consolidated financial statements. During 2009,
we recognized $19.1 million of windfall tax benefits related to share-based awards, including $18.9 million related to tax
deductions recognized in previous periods.
At December 31, 2009 and 2008, U.S. income taxes had not been provided on $200.2 million and $137.3 million,
respectively, of the remaining undistributed earnings of our Canadian subsidiaries. We intend to permanently reinvest
these undistributed foreign earnings in those businesses outside the United States. It is not practicable to determine the
amount of federal income taxes, if any, that might become due if such earnings are repatriated.
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The following table summarizes the activity related to our gross unrecognized tax benefits from January 1, 2007 to
December 31, 2009 (in thousands):
Federal, State and
Foreign Tax
(In thousands)

Balance at January 1, 2007
Additions to tax positions related to the current year
Reductions to tax positions related to prior years
Reductions to tax positions related to acquired entities in prior years, offset to goodwill
Statute expirations
Balance at December 31, 2007
Additions to tax positions related to prior years
Reductions to tax positions related to acquired entities in prior years, offset to goodwill
Statute expirations
Balance at December 31, 2008
Additions to tax positions related to the current year
Additions to tax positions related to prior years
Statute expirations
Balance at December 31, 2009

$

$

198,773
803
(45,115)
(774)
(5,799)
147,888
8,132
(8,700)
(4,863)
142,457
5,154
1,076
(4,243)
144,444

Our total unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect our effective tax rates were $41.2 million,
$51.6 million, and $41.9 million as of December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
During 2009, in accordance with the Income Tax Topic under the ASC, we recorded an increase of $6.2 million in our
liability for unrecognized tax benefits, of which $5.1 million related to U.S. tax positions taken in the current year and
$1.1 million related to U.S. tax positions taken in prior years. In addition, we recorded a $4.2 million decrease in our tax
liability due to the statute of limitation expirations on positions taken in prior years.
During 2008, we recorded an increase of $8.1 million to our liability for unrecognized tax benefits primarily related to
U.S. and foreign tax positions taken in previous fiscal years, of which $6.0 million was taken to goodwill. In addition, we
recorded a $13.6 million decrease to our tax liability, due to the expiration of statute of limitation on positions taken in
previous fiscal years, of which $8.7 million was offset to goodwill.
We adopted the FASB authoritative guidance on uncertain tax positions on January 1, 2007. As a result of our initial
adoption, we recognized a $12.0 million net increase in our liability for unrecognized tax benefits, which was recorded as
a $24.0 million increase to goodwill (related to uncertain tax positions acquired in the recent Alderwoods transaction) and
a $12.0 million decrease in our Accumulated deficit as of January 1, 2007. As of the date of our initial adoption and after
considering the impact of recognizing the net liability increase noted above, our unrecognized tax benefits totaled
$257.1 million, of which $156.3 million would impact our effective tax rate, if recognized.
During the fourth quarter of 2007, we identified certain computational errors in our initial adoption impact related to
both unrecognized tax benefits and the potential accrued interest associated with such unrecognized tax benefits at the
time of adoption. The net effect of these computational errors, including an $11.1 million adjustment for interest, was
recorded as a $17.9 million decrease in our liability for unrecognized tax benefits during the fourth quarter of 2007. As
revised for this immaterial correction of an error, our adoption resulted in our recording a
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$5.9 million reduction in our liability for unrecognized tax benefits, of which $24.0 million was recorded as an increase to
goodwill and $29.9 million was recorded as a decrease in our Accumulated deficit as of January 1, 2007. As of the date of
our adoption and after considering the impact of recognizing the immaterial correction of an error noted above, our
unrecognized tax benefits totaled $198.8 million, of which $80.0 million would impact our effective tax rate, if
recognized.
During the fourth quarter of 2007 we generated taxable capital gains from the sale of our investment in our French
operations which allowed us to recognize the benefit of capital loss carryforwards that we had previously concluded were
more likely than not to expire unutilized. The reduction in the tax associated with prior years of $45.1 million primarily
relates to the recognition of capital loss carryforward amounts. In the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded a net decrease in
our liability for uncertain tax positions of approximately $5.8 million relating to uncertain positions taken in prior years, as
a result of expiring federal, state and foreign statute of limitations.
Consistent with our historical financial reporting, we include potential accrued interest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits within our income tax provision account. We have accrued $36.0 million, $32.2 million and
$29.8 million for the payment of interest, net of tax benefits, and penalties as of December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007,
respectively. We recognized interest and penalties of $3.8 million, $2.4 million, and $7.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. To the extent interest and penalties are not assessed with respect to
uncertain tax positions or the uncertainty of deductions in the future, amounts accrued will be reduced and reflected as a
reduction of the overall income tax provision.
We file income tax returns, including tax returns for our subsidiaries, with federal, state, local, and foreign
jurisdictions. Our tax returns are subject to routine compliance review by the taxing authorities in the jurisdictions in
which we file tax returns in the ordinary course of business. We consider the United States to be our most significant tax
jurisdiction; however, the taxing authorities in Canada and Spain are auditing various tax returns. Current audits are
occurring in the United States and various state and foreign locations covering open tax years through 2008. The Internal
Revenue Service is in various stages of auditing tax years 1999 through 2005. It is reasonably possible that changes to our
global unrecognized tax benefits could be significant; however, due to the uncertainty regarding the timing of completion
of audits and possible outcomes, a current estimate of the range of increases or decreases that may occur within the next
twelve months cannot be made.
Various subsidiaries have foreign, federal, and state carryforwards in the aggregate of $2.3 billion with expiration
dates through 2028. Such loss carryforwards will expire as follows:
Federal

2010
2011
2012
2013
Thereafter
Total

$

$

323
221
1,002
141
171,498
173,185

State
Foreign
(In thousands)

$

20,870
23,306
71,964
15,666
2,037,462
$ 2,169,268

$

$

—
—
—
—
428
428

Total

$

21,193
23,527
72,966
15,807
2,209,388
$ 2,342,881

In addition to the above loss carryforwards, we have $70.9 million of foreign losses that have an indefinite expiration.
Because more-likely-than-not uncertainties exist with respect to our future realization of certain loss carryforwards, a
valuation allowance has been established. The valuation allowance is primarily attributable to state net operating losses
and reflects our expectation that the net operating losses in certain jurisdictions will expire before we generate sufficient
taxable income to utilize the losses. In 2009, we recorded a $10.5 million increase in state valuation allowances related to
net operating losses that we expect will expire unutilized and an $8.8 million increase in foreign valuation allowances on
tax losses in foreign jurisdictions from prior years. We also reflected a
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$1.7 million decrease in valuation allowances on federal operating losses. At December 31, 2009, our loss and tax credit
carryforward deferred tax assets and related valuation allowances by jurisdiction are as follows:
Federal

Loss and tax credit carryforwards
Valuation allowance

$
$

68,708
4,739

State
Foreign
(In thousands)

$ 127,425
$ 55,013

$
$

Total

28,309
27,695

$ 224,442
$ 87,447

10. Debt
Debt as of December 31 was as follows:
2009

2008
(In thousands)

7.7% Notes due April 2009
7.875% Debentures due February 2013
7.375% Senior notes due October 2014
6.75% Notes due April 2015
6.75% Notes due April 2016
7.0% Notes due June 2017
7.625% Senior Notes due October 2018
7.5% Notes due April 2027
8.0% Notes due November 2021
Bank credit facility due 2013
Series B Senior Notes due November 2011
Obligations under capital leases
Mortgage notes and other debt, maturities through 2047
Unamortized pricing discounts and other
Total debt
Less current maturities
Total long-term debt

$

—
32,127
245,000
160,250
233,143
295,000
250,000
200,000
150,000
150,000
—
142,946
38,631
(6,608)
1,890,489
(49,957)
$ 1,840,532

$

28,731
55,627
250,000
200,000
250,000
300,000
250,000
200,000
—
—
150,000
109,782
58,976
(4,608)
1,848,508
(27,104)
$ 1,821,404

Current maturities of debt at December 31, 2009 were primarily comprised of our capital lease obligations. Our
consolidated debt had a weighted average interest rate of 6.52% and 6.70% at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Approximately 85% and 87% of our total debt had a fixed interest rate at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The aggregate maturities of our debt for the five years subsequent to December 31, 2009 (in thousands) are as follows:
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015 and thereafter

$

49,957
18,768
15,696
222,253
251,726
1,332,089
$ 1,890,489
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Bank Credit Facility
We entered into a five-year $450 million bank credit facility in November 2006 with a syndicate of financial
institutions, comprised of a $300 million bank credit facility and a $150 million term loan facility, including a sublimit of
$175 million for letters of credit. In the fourth quarter of 2009, we amended our bank credit facility to increase the
availability thereunder from $300 million to $400 million and extended the maturity date by two years to November 2013.
We used the increased availability under our facility to prepay in full our privately placed $150 million aggregate principal
amount of Series B Senior Notes due November 2011.
As of December 31, 2009, we have $150.0 million in outstanding cash advances under the facility and have used it to
support $47.4 million of letters of credit. The bank credit facility provides us with flexibility for working capital, if
needed, and is guaranteed by our domestic subsidiaries. The subsidiary guaranty is a guaranty of payment of the
outstanding amount of the total lending commitment, including letters of credit. The bank credit facility contains certain
financial covenants, including a minimum interest coverage ratio, a maximum leverage ratio, and certain dividend and
share repurchase restrictions. We pay a quarterly fee on the unused commitment, which ranges from 0.25% to 0.50%. As
of December 31, 2009, we have $203 million in borrowing capacity under the facility.
Debt Issuances and Additions
In November 2009, we issued $150.0 million of unsecured 8.0% Senior Notes due 2021. The net proceeds of these
notes are held in escrow accounts, pending the consummation of the Keystone acquisition and related financing
transactions. The Company is entitled to redeem the notes at any time by paying a make-whole premium. The notes are
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Senior Indenture dated as of February 1, 1993, as amended, which includes
covenants limiting, among other things, the creation of liens securing indebtedness and sale-leaseback transactions.
During 2008, we entered into loan arrangements with financial institutions totaling $45.0 million. The proceeds, which
are included in mortgage notes and other debt, were used for deposits related to certain transportation vehicles.
Additionally we drew $54.3 million on our bank credit facility, the proceeds of which were used to pay our 6.50% Notes
due 2008 and for general corporate purposes.
In April 2007, we completed a private offering of $400.0 million aggregate principal unsecured senior notes,
consisting of $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.75% Senior Notes due 2015 and $200.0 million aggregate
principal amount of 7.50% Senior Notes due 2027. We are entitled to redeem the notes at any time by paying a
make-whole premium. The notes are subject to the provisions of our Senior Indenture dated as of February 1, 1993, as
amended, which includes covenants limiting, among other things, the creation of liens securing indebtedness and
sale-leaseback transactions. We used the net proceeds from the offering to fund the closing of the tender offers for our
6.50% Notes due 2008 and 7.70% Notes due 2009, as further discussed below, and for general corporate purposes. We
filed a registration statement with the SEC and exchanged the notes for registered notes with substantially identical terms
in the third quarter of 2007.
Debt Extinguishments and Reductions
Subsequent to December 31, 2009, we repaid $30.0 million of amounts drawn on our bank credit facility. There was
no gain or loss recognized as a result of this repayment.
During 2009, we made debt payments of $269.2 million, including the following scheduled payments and purchases
on the open market:
• $28.7 million balance of our 7.7% Notes due April 2009;
• $150.0 million aggregate principal amount of our Series B Senior Notes due November 2011;
• $23.5 million aggregate principal amount of our 7.875% Debentures due February 2013;
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• $5.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 7.375% Senior Notes due October 2014;
• $39.8 million aggregate principal amount of our 6.75% Notes due April 2015;
• $16.9 million aggregate principal amount of our 6.75% Notes due April 2016; and
• $5.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 7.0% Notes due June 2017.
Certain of the above transactions resulted in the recognition of a $3.1 million gain recorded in Gain (loss) on early
extinguishment of debt during the year ended December 31, 2009, which represents the write-off of unamortized deferred
loan costs of $2.0 million and a $5.1 million net discount on the purchase of the notes.
In the fourth quarter of 2008, we repaid $54.3 million of amounts drawn on our bank credit facility. In the first quarter
of 2008, we repaid $45.2 million aggregate principal amount of our 6.50% Notes due 2008. There was no gain or loss
recognized as a result of this repayment.
In the fourth quarter of 2007, we purchased $13.5 million aggregate principal amount of our 6.875% Notes due 2007.
In addition to this repurchase, we also prepaid $50 million of our Series A Senior Notes due 2011. As a result of this
transaction, we recognized a loss of $0.5 million recorded in Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt in our
consolidated statement of operations, which represents the write-off of unamortized deferred loan costs of $0.5 million.
In the second quarter of 2007, we purchased $149.8 million aggregate principal amount of our 6.50% Notes due 2008
and $173.8 million aggregate principal amount of our 7.70% Notes due 2009 in a tender offer. In connection with the
repurchase of the notes, we recognized a Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt of $12.1 million, which represents
the write-off of unamortized deferred loan costs of $1.1 million, a $1.0 million loss on a related interest rate hedge, and
$10.0 million in premiums paid to extinguish the debt.
In the first quarter of 2007, we repaid $100.0 million aggregate principal amount of our term loan. As a result of this
transaction, we recognized a loss of $2.4 million recorded in Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt in our
consolidated statement of operations, which represents the write-off of unamortized deferred loan costs of $1.7 million and
a $0.7 million premium to early extinguish the debt.
Capital Leases
In 2009, 2008, and 2007, we acquired $64.1 million, $27.5 million, and $31.7 million, respectively, of transportation
equipment using capital leases. See additional information regarding these leases in Note 12.
Additional Debt Disclosures
At December 31, 2009 and 2008, we had deposited $184.1 million and $23.8 million, respectively, in restricted,
interest-bearing accounts that were pledged as collateral for various credit instruments and commercial commitments. Our
restricted cash is included in Deferred charges and other assets in our consolidated balance sheet. Unamortized pricing
discounts, totaling $6.6 million and $4.6 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, primarily relate to our
8.0% Senior Notes due 2021 and our 7.0% Notes due 2017.
We had assets of approximately $2.5 million and $38.1 million pledged as collateral for the mortgage notes and other
debt at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Cash interest payments for the three years ended December 31 were as follows, in thousands:
2009
2008
2007

$ 122,224
$ 131,844
$ 140,298
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Cash interest payments forecasted as of December 31, 2009 for the five years subsequent to December 31, 2009 are as
follows, in thousands:
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015 and thereafter

$
$
$
$
$
$

127,897
129,025
131,220
129,496
117,661
440,740

11. Credit Risk and Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair Value Estimates
The fair value estimates of the following financial instruments have been determined using available market
information and appropriate valuation methodologies. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
and trade payables approximate the fair values of those instruments due to the short-term nature of the instruments. The
fair values of receivables on preneed funeral contracts and cemetery contracts are impracticable to estimate because of the
lack of a trading market and the diverse number of individual contracts with varying terms.
The fair value of our debt instruments at December 31 was as follows:
2009

2008
(In thousands)

7.7% Notes due April 2009
7.875% Debentures due February 2013
7.375% Senior notes due October 2014
6.75% Notes due April 2015
6.75% Notes due April 2016
7.0% Notes due June 2017
7.625% Senior Notes due October 2018
7.5% Notes due April 2027
8.0% Notes due November 2021
Bank credit facility due 2013
Series B Senior Notes due November 2011
Mortgage notes and other debt, maturities through 2047
Total fair value of debt instruments

$

—
31,330
247,450
157,846
222,069
289,100
250,625
179,000
148,500
148,875
—
34,898
$ 1,709,693

$

27,869
49,441
215,000
154,500
190,000
234,000
194,750
129,750
—
—
106,222
43,674
$ 1,345,206

The fair values of our long-term, fixed rate securities were estimated using market prices for those securities, and
therefore they are classified within Level 1 of the Fair Value Measurements hierarchy discussed in Note 2. The revolving
credit agreement and the mortgage and other debt are classified within Level 3 of the Fair Value Measurements hierarchy.
The fair values of these instruments have been estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on our incremental
borrowing rate for similar borrowing arrangements.
Credit Risk Exposure
Our cash deposits, some of which exceed insured limits, are distributed among various market and national banks in
the jurisdictions in which we operate. In addition, we regularly invest excess cash in financial instruments which are not
insured, such as money-market funds and Eurodollar time deposits, that are offered by a variety of
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reputable financial institutions and commercial paper that is offered by corporations with quality credit ratings. We believe
that the credit risk associated with such instruments is minimal.
We grant credit to customers in the normal course of business. The credit risk associated with our funeral, cemetery,
and preneed funeral and preneed cemetery receivables due from customers is generally considered minimal because of the
diversification of the customers served. Furthermore, bad debts have not been significant relative to the volume of
deferred revenues. Customer payments on preneed funeral or preneed cemetery contracts that are either placed into
state-regulated trusts or used to pay premiums on life insurance contracts generally do not subject us to collection risk.
Insurance-funded contracts are subject to supervision by state insurance departments and are protected in the majority of
states by insurance guaranty acts.
12. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases
Our leases principally relate to funeral home facilities and transportation equipment. The majority of our lease
arrangements contain options to (i) purchase the property at fair value on the exercise date, (ii) purchase the property for a
value determined at the inception of the lease, or (iii) renew the lease for the fair rental value at the end of the primary
lease term. Rental expense for operating leases was $22.8 million, $26.9 million, and $30.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. As of December 31, 2009, future minimum lease payments for
non-cancelable operating and capital leases exceeding one year were as follows:
Operating
Capital
(In thousands)

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015 and thereafter
Total

$

$

Less: Interest on capital leases
Total principal payable on capital leases

9,529
7,586
6,728
6,208
5,597
44,106
79,754

$

$

52,069
19,784
16,791
13,790
8,895
52,460
163,789

$

(20,843)
142,946

Management, Consulting, and Non-Competition Agreements
We have entered into management, employment, consulting, and non-competition agreements, generally for five to ten
years, with certain officers and employees and former owners of businesses that we acquired. At
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December 31, 2009, the maximum estimated future cash commitments under agreements with remaining commitment
terms, and with original terms of more than one year, were as follows:
Employment

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015 and thereafter
Total

$

$

2,103
854
851
565
432
242
5,047

Consulting

$

$

540
215
164
39
39
112
1,109

Non-Competition
(In thousands)

$

$

2,966
2,133
1,924
1,531
1,254
5,708
15,516

Total

$

5,609
3,202
2,939
2,135
1,725
6,062
$ 21,672

Representations and Warranties
As of December 31, 2009, we have contingent obligations of $11.3 million (of which $2.5 million is reflected in our
consolidated financial statements as a liability) resulting from our previous international asset sales and joint venture
transactions. In some cases, we have agreed to guarantee certain representations and warranties made in such divestiture
transactions with letters of credit or interest-bearing cash investments. We have interest-bearing cash investments of
$23.9 million included in Deferred charges and other assets collateralizing certain of these contingent obligations. We
believe it is remote that we will be required to fund to third parties claims against these representations and warranties
above the carrying value of the liability.
In 2004, we disposed of our funeral operations in France to a newly formed, third-party company. As a result of this
sale, we recognized certain Euro-denominated contractual obligations related to representations, warranties, and other
indemnifications. The remaining obligations related to these indemnifications was €0.2 million, or $0.3 million at
December 31, 2009.
During the twelve months ended December 31, 2009, we released certain value-added tax (VAT) and social security
indemnifications related to our former French operations as a result of the expiration of the statutory period of limitations.
In addition, we reduced our related litigation reserves as a result of recent favorable court rulings. These transactions, after
consideration of related foreign currency translation effects, resulted in an $18.8 million reduction of the carrying value of
our obligation for the twelve months ended December 31, 2009. These indemnification reserve reductions were recorded
in Gains (losses) on divestitures and impairment charges, net during the twelve months ended December 31, 2009.
Insurance Loss Reserves
We purchase comprehensive general liability, morticians and cemetery professional liability, automobile liability, and
workers’ compensation insurance coverage structured with high deductibles. The high-deductible insurance program
means we are primarily self-insured for claims and associated costs and losses covered by these policies. As of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, we have self-insurance reserves of $57.9 million and $63.6 million, respectively.
Litigation
We are a party to various litigation matters, investigations, and proceedings. For each of our outstanding legal matters,
we evaluate the merits of the case, our exposure to the matter, possible legal or settlement strategies, and the likelihood of
an unfavorable outcome. We intend to vigorously defend ourselves in the lawsuits described herein; however, if we
determine that an unfavorable outcome is probable and can be reasonably estimated, we establish the necessary accruals.
We hold certain insurance policies that may reduce cash outflows with respect to an adverse outcome of certain of these
litigation matters. We accrue such insurance recoveries when they become probable of being paid and can be reasonably
estimated.
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Conley Investment Counsel v. Service Corporation International, et al.; Civil Action 04-MD-1609; in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of Texas, Houston Division (the “2003 Securities Lawsuit”). The 2003
Securities Lawsuit resulted from the transfer and consolidation by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation of three
lawsuits — Edgar Neufeld v. Service Corporation International, et al.; Cause No. CV-S-03-1561-HDM-PAL; in the
United States District Court for the District of Nevada; and Rujira Srisythemp v. Service Corporation International, et al.;
Cause No. CV-S-03-1392-LDG-LRL; in the United States District Court for the District of Nevada; and Joshua
Ackerman v. Service Corporation International, et al.; Cause No. 04-CV-20114; in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of Florida. The 2003 Securities Lawsuit names as defendants SCI and several of SCI’s current and
former executive officers or directors. The 2003 Securities Lawsuit is a purported class action alleging that the defendants
failed to disclose the unlawful treatment of human remains and burial sites at two cemeteries in Fort Lauderdale and West
Palm Beach, Florida. No discovery has occurred, and we cannot quantify our ultimate liability, if any, for the payment of
damages.
Burial Practices Claims. We are named as a defendant in various lawsuits alleging improper burial practices at certain
of our cemetery locations. These lawsuits include the Garcia and Sands lawsuits described in the following paragraphs.
Reyvis Garcia and Alicia Garcia v. Alderwoods Group, Inc., Osiris Holding of Florida, Inc, a Florida corporation,
d/b/a Graceland Memorial Park South, f/k/a Paradise Memorial Gardens, Inc., was filed in December 2004, in the Circuit
Court of the Eleventh Judicial Circuit in and for Miami-Dade County, Florida, Case No.; 04-25646 CA 32. Plaintiffs are
the son and sister of the decedent, Eloisa Garcia, who was buried at Graceland Memorial Park South in March 1986, when
the cemetery was owned by Paradise Memorial Gardens, Inc. Initially, the suit sought damages on the individual claims of
the plaintiffs relating to the burial of Eloisa Garcia. Plaintiffs claimed that due to poor record keeping, spacing issues and
maps, and the fact that the family could not afford to purchase a marker for the grave, the burial location of the decedent
could not be readily located. Subsequently, the decedent’s grave was located and verified. In July 2006, plaintiffs amended
their complaint, seeking to certify a class of all persons buried at this cemetery whose burial sites cannot be located,
claiming that this was due to poor record keeping, maps, and surveys at the cemetery. Plaintiffs subsequently filed a third
amended class action complaint and added two additional named plaintiffs. The plaintiffs are seeking unspecified
monetary damages, as well as equitable and injunctive relief. No class has been certified in this matter. We cannot
quantify our ultimate liability, if any, for the payment of any damages.
F. Charles Sands, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, v. Eden Memorial Park, et al.; Case
No. BC421528; in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles — Central District. This
case was filed in September 2009 against SCI and certain subsidiaries regarding our Eden Memorial Park cemetery in
Mission Hills, California. The plaintiff seeks to certify a class of cemetery plot owners and their families. The plaintiff
claims the cemetery damaged and desecrated burials in order to make room for subsequent burials. Since the case is in its
preliminary stages, we cannot quantify our ultimate liability, if any, for the payment of any damages.
Antitrust Claims. We are named as a defendant in an antitrust case filed in 2005. The case is Cause No
4:05-CV-03394; Funeral Consumers Alliance, Inc. v. Service Corporation International, et al.; in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of Texas — Houston (“Funeral Consumers Case”). This was a purported class
action on behalf of casket consumers throughout the United States alleging that we and several other companies involved
in the funeral industry violated federal antitrust laws and state consumer laws by engaging in various anti-competitive
conduct associated with the sale of caskets. Based on the case proceeding as a class action, the plaintiffs filed an expert
report indicating that the damages sought from all defendants range from approximately $950 million to $1.5 billion,
before trebling. We deny that we engaged in anticompetitive practices related to our casket sales and we have filed reports
of our experts, which vigorously dispute the validity of the plaintiffs’ damages theories and calculations.
To date, we have successfully contested the class action allegations. In November 2008, the Magistrate Judge issued
recommendations that motions for class certification be denied in the Funeral Consumers Case. In March 2009, the
District Court affirmed the Magistrate Judge’s recommendations and denied class certification. In June 2009, the Fifth
Circuit Court of Appeals denied the plaintiffs’ motion requesting permission to appeal the District
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Court’s ruling denying class certification. Also in June 2009, the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals denied plaintiffs’ motion
requesting that the court reconsider its ruling. The District Court has set plaintiffs’ individual claims for trial for the
June 7, 2010 docket.
Wage and Hour Claims. We are named a defendant in various lawsuits alleging violations of federal and state laws
regulating wage and hour overtime pay, including the Prise, Bryant, Bryant, Helm, Stickle, and Welch lawsuits described
in the following paragraphs.
Prise, et al., v. Alderwoods Group, Inc., and Service Corporation International; Cause No. 06-164; in the United
States District Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania (the “Wage and Hour Lawsuit”). The Wage and Hour
Lawsuit was filed by two former Alderwoods (Pennsylvania), Inc. employees in December 2006 and purports to have
been brought under the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”) on behalf of all Alderwoods and SCI-affiliated employees
who performed work for which they were not fully compensated, including work for which overtime pay was owed. The
court has conditionally certified a class of claims as to certain job positions for Alderwoods employees.
Plaintiffs allege causes of action for violations of the FLSA, failure to maintain proper records, breach of contract,
violations of state wage and hour laws, unjust enrichment, fraud and deceit, quantum meruit, negligent misrepresentation,
and negligence. Plaintiffs seek injunctive relief, unpaid wages, liquidated, compensatory, consequential and punitive
damages, attorneys’ fees and costs, and pre- and post-judgment interest. We cannot quantify our ultimate liability, if any,
in this lawsuit.
Bryant, et al. v. Alderwoods Group, Inc., Service Corporation International, et al.; Case No. 3:07-CV-5696-SI; in the
U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California. This lawsuit was filed on November 8, 2007 against SCI and
various subsidiaries and individuals. It too is related to the Wage and Hour Lawsuit, raising similar claims and brought by
the same attorneys. This lawsuit has been transferred to the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania
and is now Case No. 08-CV-00891-JFC. We cannot quantify our ultimate liability, if any, in this lawsuit.
Bryant, et al. v. Service Corporation International, et al.; Case No. RG-07359593; and Helm, et al. v. AWGI & SCI;
Case No. RG-07359602; in the Superior Court of the State of California, County of Almeda. These cases were filed on
December 5, 2007 by counsel for plaintiffs in the Wage and Hour Lawsuit. These cases assert state law claims similar to
the federal claims asserted in the Wage and Hour Lawsuit. These cases were removed to federal court in the U.S. District
Court for the Northern District of California, San Francisco/Oakland Division. The Bryant case is now Case
No. 3:08-CV-01190-SI and the Helm case is now Case No. C 08-01184-SI. On December 29, 2009, the court in the Helm
case denied the plaintiffs’ motion to certify the case as a class action. We cannot quantify our ultimate liability, if any, in
these lawsuits.
Stickle, et al. v. Service Corporation International, et al.; Case No. 08-CV-83; in the U.S. District Court for Arizona,
Phoenix Division. Counsel for plaintiffs in the Wage and Hour Lawsuit filed this case on January 17, 2008, against SCI
and various related entities and individuals asserting FLSA and other ancillary claims based on the alleged failure to pay
for overtime. In September 2009, the Court conditionally certified a class of claims as to certain job positions of SCI
affiliated employees. We cannot quantify our ultimate liability, if any, in this lawsuit.
Shauna Welch v. California Cemetery & Funeral Services, LLC; Case No. BC 396793; in the Superior Court of the
State of California, for the County of Los Angeles. In August 2008, the plaintiff filed a class action on behalf of
employees of a subsidiary in California for alleged violations of the California Labor Code and the Business & Professions
Code. The plaintiff specifically alleges that she and the putative class are unable to negotiate their paychecks without
paying a fee and/or without being subject to a waiting period since paychecks are issued from an out-of-state bank. Subject
to court approval, the parties have agreed to settle this case for an amount which is not material to us.
The ultimate outcome of the matters described above cannot be determined at this time. We intend to vigorously
defend all of the above lawsuits; however, an adverse decision in one or more of such matters could have a material effect
on us, our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.
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13. Equity
(All shares reported in whole numbers)
Share Authorization
We are authorized to issue 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $1 per share par value. No preferred shares were issued
as of December 31, 2009 or 2008. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, 500,000,000 common shares of $1 par value were
authorized. We had 254,017,384 and 249,472,075 shares issued and outstanding, net of 10,000 and 481,000 shares held in
treasury at par at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Our components of Accumulated other comprehensive income are as follows:
Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustment

Balance at December 31, 2006
Activity in 2007
Reduction in net unrealized gains
associated with available-for-sale
securities of the trusts, net of taxes
Reclassification of net unrealized losses
activity attributable to the Deferred
preneed funeral and cemetery receipts
held in trust and Care trusts’ corpus, net
of taxes
Reclassification for losses on
available-for-sale securities realized in
net income
Reclassification for translation adjustment
realized in net gain
Balance at December 31, 2007
Activity in 2008
Reduction in net unrealized gains
associated with available-for-sale
securities of the trusts, net of taxes
Reclassification of net unrealized losses
activity attributable to the Deferred
preneed funeral and cemetery receipts
held in trust and Care trusts’ corpus, net
of taxes
Balance at December 31, 2008
Activity in 2009
Increase in net unrealized gains associated
with available-for- sale securities of the
trusts, net of taxes
Reclassification of net unrealized gains
activity attributable to the Deferred
preneed funeral and cemetery receipts
held in trust and Care trusts’ corpus, net
of taxes
Balance at December 31, 2009

$

$

$

$

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
(Loss) Income

Pension
Unrealized
Related
Gains and
Adjustments
Losses
(In thousands)

76,652
92,003

$

(623)
623

$

(3,731)
(5,699)

$

72,298
86,927

—

—

(105,438)

(105,438)

—

—

105,438

105,438

—

—

9,430

9,430

—
—
—

—
—
—

(16,065)
152,590
(115,941)

$

$

$

(16,065)
152,590
(115,941)

—

—

(605,355)

(605,355)

—
36,649
60,493

—
—
—

605,355
—
—

605,355
36,649
60,493

$

$

$

—

—

323,131

323,131

—
97,142

—
—

(323,131)
—

(323,131)
97,142

$

$

$
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The reclassification for losses on available-for-sale securities adjustment of $9.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007 primarily relates to the sale of a consolidated subsidiary and is included in (Loss) income from
discontinued operations on our consolidated statement of operations. The reclassification for translation adjustment of
$16.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 relates to the sale of our former equity investment in France and is
included in Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries on our consolidated statement of operations.
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars using the current exchange rate. The
U.S. dollar amount that arises from such translation, as well as exchange gains and losses on intercompany balances of a
long-term investment nature, are included in the cumulative currency translation adjustments in Accumulated other
comprehensive income. Income taxes are generally not provided for foreign currency translation.
Share Repurchase Program
Subject to market conditions, normal trading restrictions, and limitations in our debt covenants, we may make
purchases in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions under our share repurchase program. During
2009, we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock. During 2008, we repurchased 17.7 million shares of
common stock at an aggregate cost of $142.2 million including commissions, or an average cost per share of $8.03.
During 2007, we repurchased 38.5 million shares of common stock at an aggregate cost of $505.1 million. In November
2008, our Board of Directors approved an increase in our share repurchase program authorizing the investment of up to an
additional $120 million to repurchase our common stock. The remaining dollar value of shares authorized to be purchased
under the share repurchase program was $123.4 million at December 31, 2009.
Cash Dividends
On November 11, 2009, our Board of Directors approved a cash dividend of $.04 per common share. At December 31,
2009, this dividend totaling $10.2 million was recorded in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and Capital in Excess
of Par Value in our consolidated balance sheet. We paid this dividend subsequent to December 31, 2009. We paid
$40.2 million, $41.5 million, and $34.6 million in cash dividends in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. On February 10,
2010, our Board of Directors approved a cash dividend of $.04 per common share.
14. Share-Based Compensation
Stock Benefit Plans
We maintain benefit plans whereby shares of our common stock may be issued pursuant to the exercise of stock
options or restricted stock granted to officers and key employees. Our Amended 1996 Incentive Plan reserves
34,000,000 shares of common stock for outstanding and future awards of stock options, restricted stock, and other stock
based awards to officers and key employees.
Our benefit plans allow for options to be granted as either non-qualified or incentive stock options. The options
historically have been granted annually, or upon hire, as approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors. The options are granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of our common stock on the date the
grant, as approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. The options are generally exercisable at a
rate of 331/3% each year unless alternative vesting methods are approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors. Restricted stock awards are generally expensed to income ratably over the period during which the restrictions
lapse. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, 7,157,477 and 12,068,455 shares, respectively, were reserved for future option
and restricted stock grants under our stock benefit plans.
We utilize the Black-Scholes option valuation model for estimating the fair value of our stock options. This model
allows the use of a range of assumptions related to volatility, risk-free interest rate, expected holding period, and dividend
yield. The expected volatility utilized in the valuation model is based on the historical volatility of our
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stock price. The dividend yield and expected holding period are based on historical experience and management’s estimate
of future events. The risk-free interest rate is derived from the U.S. Treasury yield curve based on the expected life of the
option in effect at the time of grant. The fair values of our stock options are calculated using the following weighted
average assumptions, based on the methods described above for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007:
Years Ended December 31,
Assumptions

2009

Dividend yield
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected holding period

2008

3.5%
32.3%
1.8%
5.0 years

2007

1.3%
45.9%
2.9%
5.7 years

1.4%
38.9%
4.8%
5.9 years

The following table summarizes certain information with respect to stock option and restricted share compensation for
2009, 2008, and 2007, as included in our consolidated statement of operations for those respective periods:

Total pretax employee share-based compensation expense included in net income
Income tax benefit related to share-based compensation included in net income

2009

December 31,
2008
(In thousands)

2007

$ 9,684
$ 3,705

$ 9,261
$ 3,732

$ 8,787
$ 3,401

Stock Options
The following table sets forth stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2009:
(Shares reported in whole numbers and not in thousands)
Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

Options

Outstanding at December 31, 2008
Granted
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding at December 31, 2009

10,861,889
3,995,080
(3,658,500)
(703,327)
10,495,142

$
$
$
$
$

7.77
4.19
4.78
9.15
7.36

Exercisable at December 31, 2009

5,020,631

$

8.65

No stock options were forfeited during the twelve months ended December 31, 2009. The aggregate intrinsic value for
stock options outstanding and exercisable was $19.1 million and $3.3 million, respectively, at December 31, 2009. Set
forth below is certain information related to stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2009:
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(Shares reported in whole numbers and not in thousands)
Number
Outstanding at
December 31,

Options Outstanding
WeightedAverage
Remaining

Range of Exercise Price

2009

$0.00 — 4.00
4.01 — 6.00
6.01 — 9.00
9.01 — 15.00
$0.00 — 15.00

200,000
4,072,580
2,766,919
3,455,643
10,495,142

Contractual Life

0.6
7.0
3.5
5.5
5.5

Options Exercisable
Number
Exercisable at
WeightedDecember 31,
Average

WeightedAverage
Exercise Price

$
$
$
$
$

2009

2.93
4.19
7.60
11.16
7.36

Exercise Price

200,000
130,690
2,766,919
1,923,022
5,020,631

$
$
$
$
$

2.93
4.34
7.60
11.05
8.65

Other information pertaining to option activity during the years ended December 31 is as follows:
Weighted average grant-date fair value of stock options granted
Total fair value of stock options vested (in thousands)
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercised (in thousands)

2009

2008

2007

$ 0.87
$ 6,439
$ 7,001

$
4.78
$ 5,627
$ 16,559

$
4.35
$ 3,965
$ 47,800

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, cash received from the exercise of stock options was
$17.4 million, $14.8 million, and $52.9 million, respectively. We realized windfall tax deductions of $7.1 million,
$17.9 million, and $49.4 million in excess of previously recorded tax benefits, based on the option value at the time of
grant for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Pursuant to the Stock-Based Compensation
Topic of the ASC, the additional tax benefit associated with the windfall is not recognized until the deduction reduces
taxes payable. We recognized compensation expense of $6.5 million, $6.2 million, and $5.4 million related to stock
options for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. As of December 31, 2009, the unrecognized
compensation expense related to stock options of $5.3 million is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period
of 1.2 years.
Restricted Shares
Restricted share activity was as follows:
(Shares reported in whole numbers)
Weighted-Average
Grant-Date
Fair Value

Restricted
Shares

Nonvested restricted shares at December 31, 2008
Granted
Vested
Nonvested restricted shares at December 31, 2009

591,941
829,400
(319,901)
1,101,440

$
$
$
$

10.69
4.19
9.94
6.01

The fair market value of our restricted stock, as determined on the grant date, is being amortized and charged to
income (with an offsetting credit to Capital in excess of par value) generally over the average period during which the
restrictions lapse. At December 31, 2009, unrecognized compensation expense of $3.8 million related to restricted shares,
which is recorded in Capital in excess of par value on our balance sheet, is expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 1.3 years. We recognized compensation expense of $3.2 million, $3.0 million, and $3.4 million during
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, related to our restricted shares.
99

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

Table of Contents

SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

15. Retirement Plans
We currently have a supplemental retirement plan for certain current and former key employees (SERP), a
supplemental retirement plan for officers and certain key employees (Senior SERP), a retirement plan for certain
non-employee directors (Directors’ Plan), a Retirement Plan for Rose Hills Trustees, and a Rose Hills Supplemental
Retirement Plan (Rose Hills SERP) (collectively, the “Plans”). We also provide a 401(k) employee savings plan. We
terminated the Employee Retirement Plan of Rose Hills in 2008 and a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan
covering certain employees in the United States (U.S. Pension Plan) in 2007. All of our Plans have a measurement date of
December 31.
Effective January 1, 2001, we curtailed our U.S. Pension Plan, SERP, Senior SERP, and Directors’ Plan. Additionally,
the plans assumed in connection with the Alderwoods acquisition are frozen. Because the Plans are frozen, the participants
do not earn incremental benefits from additional years of service, and we have not incurred any additional service cost
since December 31, 2000.
Retirement benefits under the SERP are based on years of service and average monthly compensation, reduced by
benefits under Social Security. The Senior SERP provides retirement benefits based on years of service and position. The
Directors’ Plan provides for an annual benefit to directors following retirement, based on a vesting schedule.
The components of the Plans’ net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31 were as follows:
2009

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation
Actual return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost
Recognized net actuarial loss (gain)
Plan dissolution and other

$ 1,849
—
—
2,197
—
$ 4,046

2008
(In thousands)

$

2,590
(294)
—
(2,512)
1,968
$ 1,752

2007

$

6,559
(5,483)
168
3,052
11,176
$ 15,472
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The Plans’ funded status at December 31 was as follows:
2009

Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Plan termination
Interest cost
Actuarial loss
Benefits paid
Benefit obligation at end of year

$

32,951
—
1,849
2,518
(4,427)
32,891

$ 104,207
(56,433)
2,590
(568)
(16,845)
$ 32,951

—
—
—
4,427
(4,427)
—

$

67,104
(56,433)
(294)
6,468
(16,845)
$
—

$ (32,891)
$ (32,891)

$ (32,951)
$ (32,951)

$
$

$
$

$

Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Plan termination
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid, including expenses
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

$

$

Funded status of plan
Net amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
Funding Summary:
Projected benefit obligations
Accumulated benefit obligation
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet:
Accrued benefit liability

2008
(In thousands)

32,891
32,891

$ (32,891)

32,951
32,951

$ (32,951)

The retirement benefits under the Plans are unfunded obligations of the Company. We have purchased various life
insurance policies on the participants in the Plans with the intent to use the proceeds or any cash value buildup from such
policies to assist in meeting, at least to the extent of such assets, the Plan’s funding requirements. The face value of these
insurance policies at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $54.7 million and $75.1 million, respectively, and the cash
surrender value was $37.6 million and $51.7 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The outstanding
loans against the policies are minimal and there are no restrictions in the policies regarding loans.
The Plans’ weighted-average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation and net benefit cost are as follows:
we base our discount rate used to compute future benefit obligations using an analysis of expected future benefit
payments. The reasonableness of our discount rate is verified by comparing the rate to the rate earned on high-quality
fixed income investments, such as the Moody’s Aa index, plus 50 basis points. The assumed rate of return on plan assets
was not applicable as we recognize gains and losses on plan assets during the year in which they occur. As all Plans are
curtailed, the assumed rate of compensation increase is zero.
2009

Weighted average discount rate used to determine obligations
Weighted average discount rate used to determine net periodic pension cost

5.00%
5.97%

2008

5.95%
5.75%

2007

5.64%
5.53%

Our Employee Retirement Plan of Rose Hills was terminated in 2008. In 2008, we made a contribution of $3.0 million
to purchase annuities for participants of this plan. To effect the termination of the plan, we settled all remaining liabilities
in the fourth quarter of 2008.
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Our non-contributory, defined benefit pension plan covering approximately 34% of our United States employees was
terminated in December 2007. The revaluation of our projected benefit obligation (PBO) upon plan termination resulted in
an additional PBO of $4.7 million. On the asset side, the fund experienced a negative actual return in the fourth quarter of
2007 and paid expenses from the fund, the total of which was $0.5 million. In 2007 we made a contribution of
$38.8 million to fully fund the plan bringing the value of assets to $56.4 million prior to adjusting for benefits paid and
settlement of the obligation. To effect termination of the plan, we settled all remaining obligations in December 2007.
Monthly annuities paid were $0.8 million for the fourth quarter of 2007, lump sums paid were $14.4 million, and the total
annuity purchase for remaining obligations was $41.2 million for a total of $56.4 million. Of this, the lump sums paid and
annuity purchases totaling $55.6 million were considered settlements under the Retirement Benefit Compensation Topic
of the ASC. After all fourth quarter retirement benefit adjustments were made, we had no further PBO or accumulated
other comprehensive income related to our U.S. Pension Plan.
The following benefit payments are expected to be paid in future years related to our Plans:
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
Years 2015 through 2019

$

4,089
3,748
3,611
3,520
3,538
12,430

We have an employee savings plan that qualifies under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code for the exclusive
benefit of our United States employees. Under the plan, participating employees may contribute a portion of their pretax
and/or after-tax income in accordance with specified guidelines up to a maximum of 50%.
During 2009 and 2008, we matched a percentage of the employee contributions through contributions of cash. For
these years, our matching contribution was based upon the following:
Years of Vesting Service

Percentage of Deferred Compensation

0 — 5 years
6 — 10 years
11 or more years

75% of the first 6% of deferred compensation
100% of the first 6% of deferred compensation
125% of the first 6% of deferred compensation

During 2007, we matched a percentage of the employee contributions through contributions of cash. Our matching
contribution was based upon the following:
Years of Vesting Service

Percentage of Deferred Compensation

0 — 5 years
6 — 10 years
11 or more years

75% of the first 6% of deferred compensation
110% of the first 6% of deferred compensation
135% of the first 6% of deferred compensation

The amount of our matched contributions in 2009, 2008, and 2007 was $18.1 million, $18.1 million, and
$17.0 million, respectively.
16. Segment Reporting
Our operations are both product based and geographically based, and the reportable operating segments presented
below include our funeral and cemetery operations. Our geographic areas include United States, Canada, and Germany.
We conduct both funeral and cemetery operations in the United States and Canada and funeral operations in Germany.
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Our reportable segment information is as follows:
Funeral

2009
Revenues from external customers
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangible assets
Gross profit
Amortization of cemetery property
Total assets
Capital expenditures
2008
Revenues from external customers
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangible assets
Gross profit
Amortization of cemetery property
Total assets
Capital expenditures
2007
Revenues from external customers
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangible assets
Gross profit
Amortization of cemetery property
Total assets
Capital expenditures

Reportable
Segments

Cemetery
(In thousands)

$

1,391,826
2,548
85,322
15,462
305,672
—
4,067,754
38,348

$

661,694
847
21,891
6,116
115,512
30,664
4,229,765
38,726

$

2,053,520
3,395
107,213
21,578
421,184
30,664
8,297,519
77,074

$

1,475,736
4,466
87,108
17,171
312,484
—
3,866,526
65,879

$

679,886
1,054
21,981
6,344
106,287
32,690
3,813,676
77,304

$

2,155,622
5,520
109,089
23,515
418,771
32,690
7,680,202
143,183

$

1,525,349
6,897
87,877
18,932
307,786
—
4,238,274
77,625

$

759,954
1,837
23,433
8,497
159,061
35,824
4,262,276
78,777

$

2,285,303
8,734
111,310
27,429
466,847
35,824
8,500,550
156,402
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The following table reconciles certain reportable segment amounts to our corresponding consolidated amounts:
Reportable
Segments

2009
Revenue from external customers
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangible assets
Total assets
Capital expenditures
2008
Revenue from external customers
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangible assets
Total assets
Capital expenditures
2007
Revenue from external customers
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangible assets
Total assets
Capital expenditures

Corporate
(In thousands)

Consolidated

$

2,053,520
3,395
107,213
21,578
8,297,519
77,074

$

—
125,586
3,889
120
593,462
6,716

$

2,053,520
128,981
111,102
21,698
8,890,981
83,790

$

2,155,622
5,520
109,089
23,515
7,680,202
143,183

$

—
128,754
5,068
121
430,681
10,918

$

2,155,622
134,274
114,157
23,636
8,110,883
154,101

$

2,285,303
8,734
111,310
27,429
8,500,550
156,402

$

—
138,120
4,372
121
431,694
609

$

2,285,303
146,854
115,682
27,550
8,932,244
157,011

The following table reconciles gross profits from reportable segments shown above to our consolidated income from
continuing operations before income taxes:
2009

Gross profit from reportable segments
General and administrative expenses
Gains (losses) on divestitures and impairment charges, net
Other operating income (expense)
Operating income
Interest expense
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries
Gain on redemption of securities
Other income, net
Income from continuing operations before income taxes

$

421,184
(102,290)
4,253
740
323,887
(128,981)
3,146
—
—
1,316
$ 199,368

2008
(In thousands)

$

418,771
(87,447)
(36,124)
(2,528)
292,672
(134,274)
—
—
—
4,897
$ 163,295

2007

$

466,847
(135,753)
16,920
(1,848)
346,166
(146,854)
(14,986)
36,607
158,133
7,921
$ 386,987
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Our geographic area information was as follows:
United States

2009
Revenues from external customers
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of cemetery property
Operating income
Gains (losses) on divestitures and impairment
charges, net
Long-lived assets
2008
Revenues from external customers
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of cemetery property
Operating income
(Losses) gains on divestitures and impairment
charges, net
Long-lived assets
2007
Revenues from external customers
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of cemetery property
Operating income
Gains (losses) on divestitures and impairment
charges, net
Long-lived assets

$

1,869,042
128,798
100,380
19,969
27,545
288,108

Canada
Germany
(In thousands)

$

8,906
4,526,789
$

1,942,682
133,961
101,905
21,371
28,317
244,954

2,079,088
146,526
102,339
25,039
31,454
318,348
18,942
4,161,000

$

(4,614)
354,677
$

(32,750)
4,434,810
$

177,665
140
10,273
1,729
3,119
35,462

205,950
313
11,575
2,265
4,373
47,395

199,137
328
12,810
2,511
4,370
27,608

$ 2,053,520
128,981
111,102
21,698
30,664
323,887

(39)
4,022
$

(3,395)
318,409
$

6,813
43
449
—
—
317

Total

6,990
—
677
—
—
323

4,253
4,885,488
$ 2,155,622
134,274
114,157
23,636
32,690
292,672

21
2,753
$

(2,018)
578,925

7,078
—
533
—
—
210

(36,124)
4,755,972
$ 2,285,303
146,854
115,682
27,550
35,824
346,166

(4)
2,788

16,920
4,742,713

17. Supplementary Information
The detail of certain balance sheet accounts is as follows:
December 31,
2009

2008
(In thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash
Commercial paper and temporary investments

$
$

30,728
149,017
179,745

$
$

33,764
94,633
128,397
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December 31,
2009

2008
(In thousands)

Receivables, net:
Notes receivable
Atneed funeral receivables, net of allowances of $8,401 and $15,082, respectively
Atneed cemetery receivables, net of allowances of $5,770 and $4,653, respectively
Other

$

$

1,500
65,735
11,459
13,534
92,228

$

11,405
3,794
6,441
21,640

Other current assets:
Income tax receivable
Prepaid insurance
Other
Cemetery property:
Undeveloped land
Developed land, lawn crypts, and mausoleums
Property and equipment:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Operating equipment
Leasehold improvements
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Deferred charges and other assets:
Prepaid covenants-not-to-compete, net
Preneed backlog intangible assets, net
Amortizable intangible assets, net
Non-amortizable intangible assets, net
Restricted cash
Notes receivable, net of allowances of $3,135 and $2,775, respectively
Cash surrender value of insurance policies
Deferred trust tax asset
Other

$

$

2,355
71,184
13,651
8,955
96,145

$

9,878
2,361
6,276
18,515

$ 1,075,544
413,521
$ 1,489,065

$ 1,066,184
392,797
$ 1,458,981

$

$

485,409
1,414,267
620,208
24,387
2,544,271
(953,197)
$ 1,591,074

473,208
1,371,235
562,241
23,047
2,429,731
(861,856)
$ 1,567,875

$

$

$

46,297
33,807
25,391
57,868
186,871
12,105
72,552
—
87,498
522,389

$

49,807
35,331
27,956
45,932
28,848
14,407
78,423
71,360
100,570
452,634
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December 31,
2009

2008
(In thousands)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation
Accrued dividend
Accrued interest
Accrued property taxes
Self insurance reserves
Bank overdraft.
Other accrued liabilities
Other liabilities:
Accrued pension
Deferred compensation
Customer refund obligation reserve
Tax liability
Indemnification liability
Other

$

88,683
66,060
10,161
24,091
15,053
57,928
18,239
32,606
$ 312,821

$

$

$

32,891
32,293
76,689
189,999
2,542
45,849
$ 380,263

78,609
45,981
9,981
24,958
16,466
63,583
22,044
33,237
$ 294,859
32,951
19,676
95,435
142,457
23,455
42,116
$ 356,090
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Revenues and Costs and Expenses
The detail of certain income statement accounts in thousands is as follows for the years ended December 31:
2009

Merchandise revenues:
Funeral
Cemetery
Total merchandise revenues
Services revenues:
Funeral
Cemetery
Total services revenues
Other revenues
Total revenues

$

Merchandise costs and expenses:
Funeral
Cemetery
Total cost of merchandise
Services costs and expenses:
Funeral
Cemetery
Total cost of services
Overhead and other expenses
Total cost and expenses

450,907
446,020
896,927

2008
(In thousands)

$

881,994
183,303
1,065,297
91,296
$ 2,053,520

$

$

$

226,923
191,491
418,414

419,758
98,921
518,679
695,243
$ 1,632,336

482,988
456,035
939,023
938,204
187,942
1,126,146
90,453
2,155,622
247,017
198,635
445,652
453,904
105,865
559,769
731,430
1,736,851

$

2007

$

515,944
518,438
1,034,382

962,853
207,635
1,170,488
80,433
$ 2,285,303
$

256,754
205,717
462,471

473,368
112,278
585,646
770,339
$ 1,818,456

Certain Non-Cash Financing and Investing Transactions
2009

Dividends accrued but not paid
Financing held in escrow

Years Ended December 31,
2008
2007
(In thousands)

$ 10,161
$ 147,173

$ 9,981
$
—

$ 10,585
$
—

18. Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per common share (EPS) excludes dilution and is computed by dividing Net income attributable to
common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects
the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other obligations to issue common stock were exercised or converted
into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that shared in our earnings.
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A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS for the three years ended December
31 is presented below:
2009
2008
2007
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Amounts attributable to common stockholders:
Income from continuing operations:
Income from continuing operations — basic
After tax interest on convertible debt
Income from continuing operations — diluted
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net income:
Net income — basic
After tax interest on convertible debt
Net income — diluted
Weighted average shares:
Weighted average shares — basic
Stock options
Convertible debt
Weighted average shares — diluted
Income per share from continuing operations:
Basic
Diluted
Income per share from discontinued operations, net of tax:
Basic
Diluted
Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted

$ 123,098
51
$ 123,149

$

$

—

$

$ 123,098
51
$ 123,149

$

97,445
—
97,445

$

(362)

$

251,709
654
121
252,484

$ 243,317
179
$ 243,496
$

4,412

97,083
—
97,083

$ 247,729
179
$ 247,908

258,106
2,877
—
260,983

285,699
5,002
235
290,936

$
$

.49
.49

$
$

.38
.37

$
$

.85
.83

$
$

—
—

$
$

—
—

$
$

.02
.02

$
$

.49
.49

$
$

.38
.37

$
$

.87
.85

The computation of diluted earnings per share excludes outstanding stock options and convertible debt in certain
periods in which the inclusion of such options and debt would be antidilutive to the periods presented. Total options and
convertible debentures not currently included in the computation of diluted EPS are as follows (in shares):
2009

Antidilutive options
Antidilutive convertible debentures
Total common stock equivalents excluded from computations

2008

6,244
—
6,244

3,135
167
3,302

2007

205
52
257

We adopted the FASB’s recent authoritative guidance on determining whether instruments granted in share-based
payment transactions are participating securities, effective January 1, 2009. Our adoption had an immaterial impact on our
reported EPS as reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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19. Divestiture-Related Activities
As divestitures occur in the normal course of business, gains or losses on the sale of such businesses are recognized in
the income statement line item Gains (losses) on divestitures and impairment charges, net. Additionally, as divestitures
occur pursuant to our ongoing asset sale programs, adjustments are made through this income statement line item to reflect
the difference between actual proceeds received from the sale compared to the original estimates.
Gains (losses) on divestitures and impairment charges, net consist of the following for the years ended December 31:
2009

Gains (losses) on divestitures, net
Impairment losses

$

20,787
(16,534)
$
4,253

2008
(In thousands)

$

(4,695)
(31,429)
$ (36,124)

2007

$

30,083
(13,163)
$ 16,920

Sale of Kenyon Operations
In October 2007, we divested 70% of our Kenyon investment for proceeds of $0.7 million. We recognized a pre-tax
gain of $0.4 million in Gains (losses) on divestitures and impairment charges, net in our consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2007.
Sale of Operations in Michigan
In 2006, our Board of Directors approved a plan to divest certain funeral homes and cemeteries in Michigan. In 2007
and 2008, we recorded impairment charges related to these properties of $1.6 million and $13.9 million, respectively. As
of December 31, 2009, these locations remain classified as assets held for sale.
Sale of Operations in Singapore
In 2007, we received proceeds totaling $1.9 million and recorded a receivable of $0.8 million related to this sale. We
recognized an after-tax gain in 2007 of $1.5 million in (Loss) income from discontinued operations in our consolidated
statement of operations as a result of this transaction.
Sale of Operations in Chile
In the first quarter of 2007, we received proceeds totaling CLP 2.5 billion or approximately $4.7 million from the 2005
sale of our cemetery operations in Chile.
Sales of Assets to StoneMor Partners LP
In December 2007, we sold 46 cemeteries and 30 funeral homes to StoneMor Partners LP (StoneMor) for proceeds of
approximately $71.0 million. As a result of this transaction, we recognized a pre-tax gain of $21.1 million in Gains
(losses) on divestitures and impairment charges, net in our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2007. In 2008, we received proceeds totaling $5.9 million from the sale of our StoneMor units acquired in
an earlier divestiture.
Sale of Mayflower National Life Insurance Company
In July 2007, we completed the sale of Mayflower National Life Insurance Company, Alderwoods former insurance
subsidiary, to Assurant Inc. for proceeds of approximately $67.5 million. We recognized a $1.5 million
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gain related to this sale in the third quarter of 2007. The operations of this subsidiary are presented as discontinued
operations in our consolidated statement of operations.
Equity Investment and Redemption of Securities
In October 2007, we sold our remaining equity investment in our French operations for 12.0 million euros, or
$17.0 million and recognized a gain on divestiture of $17.6 million recorded in Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
subsidiaries. Proceeds received from this sale are classified as an operating cash flow in the accompanying statement of
cash flows. In connection with this sale, we also received 101.5 million euros, or $144.0 million, in cash from the
redemption of securities, including the remainder of our convertible preferred equity certificates (CPECs), which were
received in connection with the original disposition of our operations in France in March 2004. The CPECs had a carrying
value of zero. In addition, 10 million euros, or approximately $14.1 million, related to the redemption were deposited into
a euro-denominated escrow account for potential payment for existing indemnification liabilities. We recognized a gain of
$158.1 million related to the redemption of these CPECs. Proceeds of $158.7 million are classified as investing activities
in the accompanying statement of cash flows.
Assets Held for Sale
We committed to a plan to sell certain operating properties as of both December 31, 2009 and 2008. In connection
with these assets held for sale, we recorded impairment losses of approximately $17 million and $28 million, respectively,
in our consolidated statement of operations for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.
Net assets held for sale were as follows:
December 31,
2009

Assets:
Current assets
Preneed funeral receivables, net and trust investments
Preneed cemetery receivables, net and trust investments
Cemetery property, at cost
Property and equipment, net
Deferred charges and other assets
Cemetery perpetual care trust investments
Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred preneed funeral revenues
Deferred preneed cemetery revenues
Other liabilities
Care trusts’ corpus
Total liabilities
Net assets held for sale

$

1,197
377
50,952
2,111
120
10,237
17,104
82,098

501
—
49,346
1,882
17,104
68,833
$ 13,265

2008

$

1,279
3,099
49,985
11,047
1,386
11,748
20,247
98,791

465
2,640
51,730
920
20,247
76,002
$ 22,789
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Discontinued Operations
As part of the Alderwoods transaction, we acquired an insurance subsidiary that we sold on June 30, 2007. The
operations of this subsidiary from November 28, 2006 to June 30, 2007 are presented as discontinued operations in our
consolidated statement of operations. In addition, in the second quarter of 2008, we settled an outstanding contingency
related to the 2005 divestiture of our operations in Argentina. The loss related to this transaction is included in
discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2008.
The results of our discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows (none for
the year ended December 31, 2009):
Years Ended December 31,
2008
2007
(In thousands)

Revenues
(Losses) gains on divestitures and impairment charges, net
Costs and other expenses
Other income
(Loss) income from discontinued operations before income taxes
Benefit (provision) for income taxes
(Loss) income from discontinued operations

$

—
(557)
—
—
(557)
195
$ (362)

$

42,626
1,548
(36,448)
1,504
9,230
(4,818)
$
4,412
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20. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Quarterly financial data for 2009 and 2008 is as follows:
First
Quarter

2009
Revenues
Costs and expenses
Gross profits
Operating income
Income from continuing operations before
income taxes(1)
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling
interests
Net income attributable to common stockholders
Net income attributable to common shareholders
per share(4):
Basic — EPS
Diluted — EPS
2008
Revenues
Costs and expenses
Gross profits
Operating income
Income from continuing operations before
income taxes(1)
Provision for income taxes
Income from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net
of tax(2)
Net income
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling
interests
Net income attributable to common stockholders
Net income attributable to common shareholders
per share(4):
Basic — EPS
Diluted — EPS

$

Second
Third
Quarter
Quarter
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

510,595
(410,475)
100,120
85,564

$

$

497,217
(396,054)
101,163
77,981

$

531,759
(413,683)
118,076
91,272

54,661
(20,281)
34,380

39,902
(16,322)
23,580

49,965
(19,403)
30,562

54,840
(20,269)
34,571

150
34,530

(476)
23,104

600
31,162

(269)
34,302

.14
.14
$

513,949
(412,124)
101,825
69,070

Fourth
Quarter(3)

573,451
(435,854)
137,597
99,370

.09
.09
$

548,782
(441,621)
107,161
83,339

.12
.12
$

516,439
(434,171)
82,268
49,026

.14
.13
$

516,950
(425,205)
91,745
60,937

66,473
(24,969)
41,504

52,169
(20,395)
31,774

15,932
(1,160)
14,772

28,721
(19,193)
9,528

15
41,519

(377)
31,397

—
14,772

—
9,528

—
41,519

—
31,397

(133)
14,639

—
9,528

.16
.16

.12
.12

.06
.06

.04
.04

(1) Includes Gains (losses) on divestitures and impairment charges, net, as described in Note 19.
(2) Includes (Loss) income from discontinued operations as described in Note 19.
(3) In connection with our ongoing efforts to remediate our previously reported material weaknesses and other internal
control deficiencies, we recorded several immaterial adjustments to correct errors related to prior accounting periods
during the year ended December 31, 2009. The net impact of these adjustments was an increase to our pre-tax income
and decrease to our net income attributable to common stockholders in the amount of $0.6 million and $2.4 million,
respectively, for the quarter ended December 31, 2009.
(4) Net income per share is computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Therefore, the sum of the
quarters’ net income per share may not equal the total computed for the year.
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Description

Current provision:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts:
Year ended December 31,
2009
Year ended December 31,
2008
Year ended December 31,
2007

$

Due After One Year:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts:
Year ended December 31,
2009
Year ended December 31,
2008
Year ended December 31,
2007

$

Preneed Funeral and Preneed
Cemetery
Asset allowance for
cancellation:
Year ended December 31,
2009
Year ended December 31,
2008
Year ended December 31,
2007
Deferred Preneed Funeral
and Cemetery
Revenue allowance for
cancellation:
Year ended December 31,
2009
Year ended December 31,
2008
Year ended December 31,
2007
Deferred Tax Valuation
Allowance:
Year ended December 31,
2009
Year ended December 31,
2008
Year ended December 31,
2007

$

Balance at
Beginning

Charged
(Credited) to
Costs and

Charged
(Credited) to
Other

of Period

Expenses

Accounts(1)
(In thousands)

Write-Offs(2)

$

56

$ (16,966)

Period

19,735

$ 11,346

19,475

9,314

305

(9,359)

19,735

25,793

11,489

9

(17,816)

19,475

2,775

$

—

$

720

$

(360)

$

$

14,171

3,135

2,825

—

—

(50)

2,775

3,844

(705)

(314)

—

2,825

58,618

$ 3,249

64,062

1,305

(6,749)

—

58,618

81,572

(3,546)

(13,964)

—

64,062

$ (137,769)

$

Balance at
End of

$

—

$

$

9,335

6,872

$

$

—

$

71,202

—

$ (130,897)

(143,730)

—

5,961

—

(137,769)

(151,341)

—

7,611

—

(143,730)

69,822

$ 17,625

$

—

$

—

$

87,447

68,469

(2,355)

3,708

—

69,822

70,547

8,034

(10,112)

—

68,469

(1) Primarily relates to acquisitions and dispositions of operations.
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9a. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO),
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), as of the end of
the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on this evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2009 were effective to ensure that information we are required to
disclose in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Rule 13-a-15(f)). SCI’s internal control over financial reporting is a process, under the supervision of our CEO
and CFO, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
Our management, with the participation of our CEO and CFO, has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, our
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2009.
The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Remediation of Prior Material Weakness in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
As reported in our Form 10-K as of December 31, 2008, our management previously identified and disclosed a
material weakness in internal control over financial reporting relating to accounting for income taxes. A material weakness
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis. In response to the identified material weakness, our management, with oversight from our Audit Committee,
dedicated significant internal and external resources to enhance our internal control over financial reporting and remediate
the previously disclosed material weakness over the course of 2009. In connection with these efforts, our management
hired additional experienced tax personnel and made certain process and technology improvements designed to better
integrate tax information, optimize our tax organizational structure and reduce the level of manual processes in the area of
income taxes.
Based on the actions taken by our management and the testing and assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls
related to our accounting for income taxes, our management has concluded that the previously identified and disclosed
material weakness no longer exists as of December 31, 2009.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2009
that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.
PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Information required by PART III (Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14) has been omitted as we intend to file with the
Commission not later than 120 days after the end of our fiscal year a definitive proxy statement that includes such
information. Such information is set forth in such proxy statement (i) with respect to Item 10, under the captions “Proxy
Voting: Questions and Answers,” “Election of Directors,” “Other Matters — Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance” and “Report of the Audit Committee,” (ii) with respect to Items 11 and 13, under the captions
“Election of Directors,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Compensation Committee Report,” “Certain
Information with Respect to Officers and Directors,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and
“Certain Transactions”, (iii) with respect to Item 12, under the caption “Voting Securities and Principal Holders”, and
(iv) with respect to Item 14, under the caption “Proposal to Approve the Selection of Independent Accountants — Audit
Fees and All Other Fees”. The information as specified in the preceding sentence is incorporated herein by reference;
provided however, notwithstanding anything set forth in this Form 10-K, the information under the captions
“Compensation Committee Report” and “Report of the Audit Committee” in such proxy statement, is not incorporated by
reference into this Form 10-K.
The information regarding our executive officers called for by Item 401 of Regulation S-K and the information
regarding our code of ethics called for by Item 406 of Regulation S-K has been included in PART I of this report. The
information regarding our equity compensation plan information called for by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K is set forth
below.
Equity Compensation Plan Information at December 31, 2009:

Plan Category

Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders
Equity compensation
plans not approved by
security holders(1)
Total

Number of Securities to be
Issued upon Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under
Equity Compensation Plans
(Excluding Securities
Reflected in Column (a))

(a)

(b)

(c)

9,416,307

$

7.35

7,157,477

1,078,835
10,495,142

$
$

7.43
7.36

1,290,998(2)
8,448,475

(1) Includes options outstanding under the 1996 Nonqualified Incentive Plan under which nonqualified stock options
were granted to employees who are not officers or directors. We have 1,078,835 total options outstanding under the
1996 Non-qualified Incentive Plan. No shares of our common stock are available for any future grants under this
plan. See Note 14 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,
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for a further description of 1996 Nonqualified Incentive Plan. This plan has not been submitted for shareholder
approval.
(2) Includes an estimated 1,290,998 shares available under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Under such plan, a dollar
value of shares (not an amount of shares) are registered. The above estimate was determined by dividing (i) the
remaining unissued dollar value of registered shares at December 31, 2009, which was $10.6 million, by (ii) the
closing price of $8.19 per share of common stock at December 31, 2009.
The Employee Stock Purchase Plan enables Company employees in North America to invest via payroll deductions up
to $500 (or $600 Canadian) per month in our common stock. Contributions are utilized to purchase the stock in the open
market. With respect to Canadian employees who meet certain requirements, we will provide annually a match equal to
25% of the amount of the employee’s contribution subject to a maximum contribution per participant of $1,800 Canadian.
This plan has not been submitted for shareholder approval.
Certifications
In 2009, the Company submitted to the New York Stock Exchange the Section 12(a) certification by the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer regarding compliance with the Exchange’s corporate governance listing standards. The
Sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 302 certifications regarding the quality of the Company’s public disclosure are attached as
Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to this report on Form 10-K.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule
(a)(1)-(2) Financial Statements and Schedule:
The financial statements and schedule are listed in the accompanying Index to Financial Statements and Related
Schedule on page 47 of this report.
(3) Exhibits:
The exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhibit Index on pages 122-124 are filed as part of this report.
(b) Included in (a) above.
(c) Included in (a) above.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant, Service
Corporation International, has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL

By:

/s/ GREGORY T. SANGALIS
(Gregory T. Sangalis,
Senior Vice President, General
Counsel, and Secretary)

Dated: February 25, 2010
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

Chairman of the Board

February 25, 2010

President, Chief Executive Officer, and
Director (Principal Executive Officer)

February 25, 2010

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, and Treasurer (Principal
Financial Officer)

February 25, 2010

Vice President and Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

February 25, 2010

Director

February 25, 2010

Director

February 25, 2010

Director

February 25, 2010

Director

February 25, 2010

Director

February 25, 2010

/s/ R. L. WALTRIP*
(R. L. Waltrip)
/s/ THOMAS L. RYAN*
(Thomas L. Ryan)
/s/ ERIC D. TANZBERGER*
(Eric D. Tanzberger)
/s/ TAMMY R. MOORE*
(Tammy R. Moore)
/s/ ALAN R. BUCKWALTER, III*
(Alan R. Buckwalter, III)
/s/ ANTHONY L. COELHO*
(Anthony L. Coelho)
/s/ A. J. FOYT, JR.*
(A. J. Foyt, Jr.)
/s/ MALCOLM GILLIS*
(Malcolm Gillis)
/s/ VICTOR L. LUND*
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(Victor L. Lund)
/s/ JOHN W. MECOM, JR.*

Director

February 25, 2010

(John W. Mecom, Jr.)
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Signature

/s/ CLIFTON H. MORRIS, JR.*

Title

Date

Director

February 25, 2010

Director

February 25, 2010

Director

February 25, 2010

(Clifton H. Morris, Jr.)
/s/ W. BLAIR WALTRIP*
(W. Blair Waltrip)
/s/ EDWARD E. WILLIAMS*
(Edward E. Williams)
*By

/s/ GREGORY T. SANGALIS

February 25, 2010

(Gregory T. Sangalis, as
Attorney-In-Fact For each of the
Persons indicated)
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EXHIBIT INDEX
PURSUANT TO ITEM 601 OF REG. S-K
Exhibit
Number

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
4.1
4.2

10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4

10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9
10.10
10.11

Description

— Restated Articles of Incorporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registration Statement
No. 333-10867 on Form S-3).
— Articles of Amendment to Restated Articles of Incorporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 1996).
— Statement of Resolution Establishing Series of Shares of Series D Junior Participating Preferred Stock,
dated July 27, 1998. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
June 30, 1998).
— Bylaws, as amended. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K dated November 16, 2007).
— Senior Indenture dated as of February 1, 1993 by and between the Company and The Bank of New York,
as trustee. (Incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-4 filed September 2, 2004 (File
No. 333-118763)).
— Agreement of Resignation, Appointment of Acceptance, dated October 21, 2005, among the Company,
The Bank of New York and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., appointing a successor trustee
for the Senior Indenture dated as of February 1, 1993. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2005).
— Retirement Plan For Non-Employee Directors. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1991).
— First Amendment to Retirement Plan For Non-Employee Directors. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000).
— Agreement dated May 14, 1992 between the Company, R. L. Waltrip and related parties relating to life
insurance. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1992).
— Employment Agreement, dated December 28, 2006, between SCI Executive Services, Inc. and R.L.
Waltrip (including Non-Competition Agreement and Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated
November 11, 1991, among the Company, R. L. Waltrip and Claire Waltrip). (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006).
— Amendment to Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated November 30, 2007, between SCI
Executive Services, Inc. and R. L. Waltrip. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007).
— Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated January 1, 2004, between SCI Executive Services,
Inc. and Thomas L. Ryan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2003).
— Addendum to Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated December 1, 2005, between SCI
Executive Services, Inc. and Thomas L. Ryan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005).
— Amendment to Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated November 30, 2007, between SCI
Executive Services, Inc. and Thomas L. Ryan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Form 10-K
for fiscal year ended December 31, 2007).
— Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated January 1, 2004, between SCI Executive Services,
Inc. and Michael R. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2003).
— Addendum to Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated December 1, 2005, between SCI
Executive Services, Inc. and Michael R. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005).
— Amendment to Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated November 30, 2007, between SCI
Executive Services, Inc. and Michael R. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007).
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Exhibit
Number

10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26
10.27
10.28
10.29
10.30
10.31
10.32

Description

— Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated December 28, 2006 between SCI Executive
Services, Inc. and Eric D. Tanzberger. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2006).
— Amendment to Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated November 30, 2007, between SCI
Executive Services, Inc. and Eric D. Tanzberger. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007).
— Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated December 28, 2006, between SCI Executive
Services, Inc. and Sumner J. Waring, III. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2006).
— Amendment to Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated November 30, 2007, between SCI
Executive Services, Inc. and Sumner J. Waring, III.
— Form of Employment and Noncompetition Agreement pertaining to non-senior officers. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003).
— Form of Addendum to Employment and Noncompetition Agreement pertaining to the preceding exhibit.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005).
— Form of Amendment to Employment and Noncompetition Agreement dated November 30, 2007,
between SCI Executive Services, Inc. and non-senior officers. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007).
— Amended 1996 Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to Proxy Statement dated
April 6, 2007).
— Split Dollar Life Insurance Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1995).
— Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for Senior Officers (as Amended and Restated Effective as of
January 1, 1998). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998).
— First Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for Senior Officers. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000).
— SCI 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan as Amended and Restated. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7
to Registration Statement No. 333-119681).
— First Amendment to the SCI 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2004).
— Second Amendment to the SCI 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan, and Third Amendment to the SCI
401(k) Retirement Savings Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2004).
— Fourth Amendment to the SCI 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.27 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006).
— Fifth Amendment to the SCI 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.30 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007).
— Sixth Amendment to the SCI 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.30 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).
— Amended and Restated Director Fee Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Annex A to Proxy Statement
dated April 17, 2006).
— Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Registration Statement
No. 2-62484 on Form S-8).
— Amendment No. 1 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 15.1 to
Registration Statement No. 2-62484 on Form S-8).
— Amendment No. 2 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 28.3 to
Registration Statement No. 33-25061 on Form S-8).
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Number

10.33
10.34
10.35
10.36
10.37
10.38
10.39
10.40
10.41
10.42
10.43
10.44

12.1
21.1
23.1
24.1
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2

Description

— Amendment No. 3 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 28.4 to
Registration Statement No. 33-35708 on Form S-8).
— Amendment No. 4 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
— Amendment No. 5 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999).
— Amendment No. 6 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002).
— Amendment No. 7 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002).
— Agreement between Merrill Lynch Canada Inc. and Service Corporation International. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 28.5 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement No. 33-8907 on
Form S-8).
— First Amendment to Agreement between Merrill Lynch Canada Inc. and Service Corporation
International. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 21, 1993).
— Employee Stock Purchase Plan Administration Agreement dated July 25, 2001 between Service
Corporation International (Canada) Limited and Fastrak Systems Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.48 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002).
— Form of Indemnification Agreement for officers and directors. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2004).
— Form of Executive Deferred Compensation Plan as Amended and Restated Effective December 8, 2009.
— Form of Performance Unit Grant Award Agreement. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).
— Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement, dated November 18, 2009 among Service
Corporation International, the lenders party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative
Agent. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 24,
2009).
— Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
— Subsidiaries of the Company.
— Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP).
— Powers of Attorney.
— Certification of Thomas L. Ryan as Principal Executive Officer in satisfaction of Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
— Certification of Eric D. Tanzberger as Principal Financial Officer in satisfaction of Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
— Certification of Periodic Financial Reports by Thomas L. Ryan as Principal Executive Officer in
satisfaction of Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002.
— Certification of Periodic Financial Reports by Eric D. Tanzberger as Principal Financial Officer in
satisfaction of Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

In the above list, the management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements are set forth in Exhibits 10.1
through 10.43.
Pursuant to Item 601(b)(4) of Regulation S-K, there are not filed as exhibits to this report certain instruments with
respect to long-term debt under which the total amount of securities authorized thereunder does not exceed 10 percent of
the total assets of Registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Registrant agrees to furnish a copy of any such
instrument to the Commission upon request.
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Exhibit 10.15
AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT
AND NONCOMPETITION AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDMENT to the Employment and Noncompetition Agreement (this “Amendment”) between SCI Executive Services,
Inc., a Delaware Corporation (the “Company”), and the undersigned executive of the Company (the “Employee”).
WHEREAS, the Company and Employee have previously entered into an Employment and Noncompetition Agreement (the
“Agreement”); and
WHEREAS, this Amendment is intended to (i) supplement and modify such Agreement (including, if applicable, any amendments
or addendums thereto) in order to comply with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and (ii) extend the
term of the Agreement; and
WHEREAS, the parties would like to make certain changes to the terms of the Agreement;
NOW THEREFORE, Employee agrees with the Company, in consideration for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged and accepted, to amend the Agreement as follows, effective as of the date this
Amendment is executed as written below:
1. Section 1.5(d). Section 1.5(d) is hereby amended by revising clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) to be and to read as follows:
“(i) bi-weekly salary continuation payments calculated based on Employee’s rate of salary as in effect immediately prior to
Employee’s termination, which shall continue for a period equal to two years from such date of termination, each of which shall
be treated as a separate payment obligation of the Company, (ii) any applicable Pro Rated bonus and (iii) continuation of
Employee’s Group Health and Dental coverage and Exec-U-Care program (including pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus
Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986 (“Cobra”) to the extent applicable) for a period of eighteen months beginning the month
following such date of termination, with Employee paying such amount of premiums as would have been applicable if Employee
had remained an employee of the Company.”
2. Section 1.5(f). The paragraph numbered (3) in Section 1.5(f) is hereby amended to be and read as follows:
“(3) Continuation of Employee’s Group Health and Dental coverage and Exec-U-Care program (including pursuant to COBRA
to the extent applicable) for a period of eighteen months beginning the month following such date of termination, with Employee
paying such amount of premiums as would have been applicable if Employee had remained an employee of the Company.”
3. Section 4.14. The definition of “Pro Rated Bonus” in Section 4.14 shall be amended by revising its final sentence to be and to
read as follows:
“The Pro Rated Bonus, if any, payable to Employee shall be paid during the period between January 1 st and March 14th of the
calendar year immediately following the date Employee ceases to be employed by the Company.”
4. The Term of the Agreement is hereby extended to December 31, 2008.
Page 1 of 2
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Except as is provided in this Amendment, the Agreement shall remain unchanged and continue in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of this 30 th day of November, 2007.
SCI EXECUTIVE SERVICES, INC.
By: /s/ Curtis G. Briggs
Curtis G. Briggs, Vice President
EMPLOYEE
/s/ Sumner J. Waring, III
Sumner J. Waring, III
Page 2 of 2
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EXHIBIT 10.34
AMENDMENT NO. 4
SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN
This Amendment is executed by Service Corporation International (“Company”) effective as of January 1, 1994.
W I T N E S S E T H:
WHEREAS, the Company executed the Service Corporation International Stock Purchase Plan on August 22, 1979, Amendment
No. 1 thereto on June 5, 1981, Amendment No. 2 thereto on October 19, 1988, and Amendment No. 3 thereto on June 19, 1990 (as
amended, the “plan”), which continues in force and effect, and is made a part hereof by reference; and
WHEREAS, the Company is desirous of amending Sections 1 and 4 and Subsections 1.03, 1.05, 1.06, 3.01, 3.02, 5.01, 7.02, 8.02
and 8.03 of the Plan effective as of January 1, 1994;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the Company hereby amends the Plan in the following respect:
1. Section 1 of the Plan is amended to include the following new Subsections:
“1.12 Plan Year: A 52 or 53-week period ending on the last Friday of December; provided that the first Plan Year shall begin on
January 1, 1994 and end on December 30, 1994.
1.13 Identified Shares: With respect to any Plan Participant, the shares of common stock of the Company then held in the
Participant’s account that:
(a) were acquired by Merrill Lynch on behalf of the Participant subsequent to December 31, 1993, pursuant to (i) contributions
by the Participant as provided in Subsection 3.01 hereof, (ii) contributions by the Company as provided in Subsection 3.02
hereof made, including Discretionary Contributions forwarded to Merrill Lynch, or (iii) the reinvestment of cash dividends
paid with respect to shares that constituted Identified Shares at the time of such payment; or
(b) represent stock dividends (other than Significant Stock Dividends) paid with respect to shares that constituted Identified
Shares at the time of such payment.
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1.14 Share Increase: With respect to any Plan Participant, the excess, if any, of the number of Identified Shares in his account at
the end of the Plan Year over the greatest number of Identified Shares in his account at the end of any of the three preceding Plan
Years; provided that, for purposes of computing the Share Increase, the number of Identified Shares held at the end of each Plan
Year preceding the first Plan Year ending December 30, 1994, shall be deemed to be zero.
1.15 Share Increase Value: With respect to any Plan Participant, the product of (x) such Participant’s Share Increase for the Plan
Year and (y) the average per share cost of common stock of the Company purchased with employee contributions during the Plan
Year.
1.16 Significant Stock Dividend: A stock dividend or split representing in excess of five percent (5%) of the shares on which the
dividend or split is declared.”
2. Subsection 1.03 is hereby amended to read as follows in its entirety:
“1.03 Employing Company: The Company and any wholly owned or controlled (either directly or indirectly) U.S. or Canadian
subsidiary corporation.
3. Subsection 1.05 is hereby amended to read as follows in its entirety:
“1.05 Employee: Any employee of an Employing Company who is of legal age, other than Directors and officers of the
Company, and who is classified as a Regular Full-Time Employee as defined in the Company’s Employee Manual.”
4. Subsection 1.06 is hereby amended to read as follows in its entirety:
“1.06 Participant: An Employee who has participated in the Plan through payroll deductions at any time during the relevant Plan
Year.”
5. Subsection 3.01 is hereby amended to read as follows in its entirety:
“A Participant who is an Employee of a U.S. Employing Company may elect to contribute under the Plan, by means of regular
payroll deductions from his Earnings, no less than $10.00 (U.S.) per month, and any amount, in multiples of $5.00 (U.S.), in excess
thereof, except that the maximum monthly contribution under the Plan is $500.00 (U.S.). A Participant who is an Employee of a
Canadian Employing Company may elect to contribute under the Plan, by means of regular payroll deductions from his Earnings,
no less than $12.00 (Cdn.) per month, and any amount, in multiples of $3.00 (Cdn.), in excess thereof, except that the maximum
monthly contribution under the Plan is $600.00 (Cdn.); provided, that such minimum and maximum contributions may be
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adjusted at the beginning of any Plan Year if necessary to more closely approximate the currency exchange equivalent of the U.S.
minimum and maximum contributions. Such elections shall be made on the form provided by the Company.
A Participant may at any time increase or decrease the rate or amount of his contribution to the Plan by delivering proper written
notice to the Company; provided that such increase or decrease shall be in the amount of $5.00 (U.S.) ($3.00 (Cdn.) for any
Employee of a Canadian Employing Company) or a multiple thereof. A Participant may also terminate his participation at any time
by delivering proper written notice of revocation of his deduction authorization to the Company. Such revision or termination shall
be effective as soon as practicable after receipt of such notice by the Company, but shall not apply to any deduction or purchase
theretofore made. Participation shall be automatically suspended during a Leave of Absence and active participation may resume
upon the expiration of such Leave of Absence if the Participant returns to work.”
6. Subsection 3.02 is hereby amended to read as follows in its entirety:
“3.02 Company Contributions: On or before January 15 of each year during which this Plan shall remain in effect, beginning
with January 15, 1995, Merrill Lynch will deliver to the Company a schedule and diskette in Lotus format listing all Plan
Participants as of the end of the immediately preceding Plan Year who have submitted forms that authorize Merrill Lynch to release
Share Increase information to the Company, together with the Share Increase for each such Participant as of such date. Within
30 days of the receipt of such schedule, the Company shall calculate the Share Increase Value for each Participant listed who was
an Employee at the end of such Plan Year (including an Employee who is on an authorized leave of absence) and shall make a
contribution (“Regular Contribution”) under the Plan on behalf of each such Participant in an amount equal to 25% of his respective
Share Increase Value, subject to a maximum Regular Contribution of $1,500 (U.S.) per Participant ($1,800 (Cdn.) per Participant
that is an Employee of a Canadian Employing Company) per Plan Year.
In addition to the Regular Contribution, the Company may, in any year and in its sole discretion, authorize and make an
additional contribution (“Discretionary Contribution”) on behalf of each Participant who received a Regular Contribution in an
amount equal to a designated percentage of such Participant’s Share Increase Value.
No part of the Company’s Regular or Discretionary Contributions, once forwarded to Merrill Lynch, shall be recoverable by the
Company nor shall such contributions be used by Merrill Lynch for purposes other than the exclusive benefit of Plan Participants.”
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7. Section 4 is hereby amended to read as follows in its entirety:
“Within 30 days of the receipt of contributions from Participants in the form of payroll deductions, such Participant
contributions shall be forwarded by the Company to Merrill Lynch, together with a schedule indicating the amount of contributions
made by each Participant.
Within 30 days of the receipt by the Company of the schedule of Plan Participants referred to in Subsection 3.02 above, an
amount equal to the aggregate of the Company’s Regular Contributions for such Plan Year shall be forwarded by the Company to
Merrill Lynch, together with a schedule indicating the portion thereof that has been allocated to the account of each Participant.
In the event the Company authorizes a Discretionary Contribution for a particular year, the Company shall (i) forward to Merrill
Lynch an amount equal to the aggregate of such Discretionary Contributions, together with a schedule indicating the portion thereof
that has been allocated to the account of each Participant entitled to a Discretionary Contribution, in the same manner provided in
the preceding paragraph for Regular Contributions, (ii) directly distribute as compensation to each Participant entitled to a
Discretionary Contribution a cash amount equal to the Discretionary Contribution calculated for such Participant or (iii) effect the
contribution pursuant to any combination of (i) and (ii) above.
As soon as practicable and within 15 days after the receipt of funds representing Participant contributions, Company Regular
Contributions or Company Discretionary Contributions as provided above, Merrill Lynch shall purchase on the open market as
many shares of common stock of the Company as the total amount of such funds may allow.”
8. Subsection 5.01 is hereby amended to read as follows in its entirety:
“5.01 Accounts: Merrill Lynch shall open and maintain for each Plan Participant an individual investment program account that
enables Merrill Lynch to identify and separately account for Identified Shares (including the purchase, receipt, distribution or sale
of Identified Shares as provided in this Plan) held by such Participant.”
9. Subsection 7.02 is hereby amended to read as follows in its entirety:
“7.02 Expenses: Expenses of instituting and maintaining the Plan shall be paid by the Company except as herein provided. The
Company shall pay Merrill Lynch for commissions and other charges in connection with purchases made with amounts contributed
pursuant to Subsections 3.01 and 3.02 hereof or in connection with the reinvestment of dividends.
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Commissions and other charges on sales and purchases with funds other than contributions pursuant to Subsections 3.01 and
3.02 hereof or other than the reinvestment of dividends shall be payable by the Participant and will be at the minimum rates as then
in effect, as posted by the broker from time to time.”
10. Subsection 7.03 is hereby amended to read as follows in its entirety:
“7.03 Statements: As soon as practicable after the close of each calendar quarter, Merrill Lynch shall forward to each Participant
a statement indicating the number of shares purchased or sold for the Participant under the Plan, the price at which such shares were
purchased or sold, commissions, if any, payable by the Participant and the current status of his or her account.”
11. Subsection 8.02 is hereby amended to insert the following as a new second sentence:
“It shall be presumed that the Participant wishes first a distribution of shares that are not Identified Shares, to the extent possible,
and Merrill Lynch shall mail to such Participant a certificate representing shares that are not Identified Shares, to the extent
possible, with the balance, if any, of the number of shares so requested to be Identified Shares.”
12. Subsection 8.03 is hereby amended to insert the following as a new second sentence:
“It shall be presumed that the Participant wishes first to sell shares that are not Identified Shares, to the extent possible, and Merrill
Lynch shall sell shares that are not Identified Shares, to the extent possible, with the balance, if any, of the number of shares so sold
to be Identified Shares.”
13. Sections of the Plan not specifically amended hereby shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has executed this amendment to the Plan this 21st day of December, 1993, effective as
of January 1, 1994.
SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
By:

/s/ Jack L. Stoner
Jack L. Stoner
Senior Vice President Administration
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Exhibit 10.42
Service Corporation International
Executive Deferred Compensation Plan
Amended and Restated Effective December 8, 2009
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SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
Executive Deferred Compensation Plan
Amended and Restated December 8, 2009
Purpose
The Plan was originally adopted effective as of January 1, 2005. The purpose of this Plan is to provide specified benefits to
Directors and a select group of management or highly compensated Employees who contribute materially to the continued growth,
development and future business success of Service Corporation International, a Texas corporation, and its subsidiaries, if any, that
sponsor this Plan. This Plan shall be unfunded for tax purposes and for purposes of Title I of ERISA.
The Plan was previously amended and restated in its entirety to comply with all applicable laws, including Code Section 409A and
related Treasury guidance and Regulations, and shall be operated and interpreted in accordance with this intention. The Plan is now
again amended and restated in its entirety to revise its vesting provisions and to permit class year distribution elections for periods
commencing on and after January 1, 2010. The provisions of this Plan, as amended and restated, shall apply to any Participant with at
least one hour of service on or after December 8, 2009.
ARTICLE 1
Definitions
For the purposes of this Plan, unless otherwise clearly apparent from the context, the following phrases or terms shall have the
following indicated meanings:
1.1 “Account Balance” shall mean, with respect to a Participant, an entry on the records of the Employer equal to the sum of the
Participant’s Annual Accounts. The Account Balance shall be a bookkeeping entry only and shall be utilized solely as a device
for the measurement and determination of the amounts to be paid to a Participant, or his or her designated Beneficiary, pursuant
to this Plan.
If a Participant is both an Employee and a Director and participates in the Plan in each capacity, then separate Account Balances
(and separate Annual Accounts, if applicable) shall be established for such Participant as a device for the measurement and
determination of the (i) amounts deferred under the Plan that are attributable to the Participant’s status as an Employee, and
(ii) amounts deferred under the Plan that are attributable to the Participant’s status as a Director.
1.2 “Annual Account” shall mean, with respect to a Participant, an entry on the records of the Employer equal to (i) the sum of the
Participant’s Annual Deferral Amount, Company Contribution Amount and Company Restoration Matching Amount for any one
Plan Year, plus (ii) amounts credited or debited to such amounts pursuant to this Plan, less (iii) all distributions made to the
Participant or his or her Beneficiary pursuant to this Plan that relate to the Annual Account for such Plan Year. The Annual
Account shall be a bookkeeping entry only and shall be utilized solely as a device for the measurement and determination of the
amounts to be paid to a Participant, or his or her designated Beneficiary, pursuant to this Plan. The distribution elections made for
a Participant’s Annual Account for each Plan Year, including each election made for
1
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periods prior to January 1, 2010, shall apply until such elections are changed pursuant to Sections 4.2, 6.2(b), 7.2(b) or 8.2, as
applicable.
1.3 “Annual Deferral Amount” shall mean that portion of a Participant’s Base Salary, Bonus, Director Fees and LTIP Amounts that
a Participant defers in accordance with Article 3 for any one Plan Year, without regard to whether such amounts are withheld and
credited during such Plan Year.
1.4 “Annual Installment Method” shall mean the method used to determine the amount of each payment due to a Participant who
has elected to receive a benefit over a period of years in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Plan. The amount of
each annual payment due to the Participant shall be calculated by multiplying the balance of the Participant’s benefit by a
fraction, the numerator of which is one and the denominator of which is the remaining number of annual payments due to the
Participant. The amount of the first annual payment shall be calculated as of the close of business on or around the Participant’s
Benefit Distribution Date, and the amount of each subsequent annual payment shall be calculated on or around each anniversary
of such Benefit Distribution Date. For purposes of this Plan, the right to receive a benefit payment in annual installments shall be
treated as the entitlement to a single payment.
1.5 “Base Salary” shall mean the annual cash compensation relating to services performed during any calendar year, excluding
distributions from nonqualifled deferred compensation plans, bonuses, commissions, overtime, fringe benefits, stock options,
relocation expenses, incentive payments, non-monetary awards, director fees and other fees, and automobile and other allowances
paid to a Participant for employment services rendered (whether or not such allowances are included in the Employee’s gross
income). Base Salary shall be calculated before reduction for compensation voluntarily deferred or contributed by the Participant
pursuant to all qualified or nonqualified plans of any Employer and shall be calculated to include amounts not otherwise included
in the Participant’s gross income under Code Sections 125, 402(e)(3), 402(h), or 403(b) pursuant to plans established by any
Employer; provided, however, that all such amounts will be included in compensation only to the extent that had there been no
such plan, the amount would have been payable in cash to the Employee.
1.6 “Beneficiary” shall mean one or more persons, trusts, estates or other entities, designated in accordance with Article 10, that are
entitled to receive benefits under this Plan upon the death of a Participant.
1.7 “Beneficiary Designation Form” shall mean the form established from time to time by the Committee that a Participant
completes, signs and returns to the Committee to designate one or more Beneficiaries.
1.8 “Benefit Distribution Date” shall mean the date upon which all or an objectively determinable portion of a Participant’s vested
benefits will become eligible for distribution. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, a Participant’s Benefit Distribution Date
shall be determined based on the earliest to occur of an event or scheduled date set forth in Articles 4 through 9, as applicable.
1.9 “Board” shall mean the board of directors of the Company.
2
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1.10 “Bonus” shall mean any compensation, in addition to Base Salary, and LTIP Amounts, earned by a Participant under any
Employer’s annual bonus and cash incentive plans.
1.11 “Change in Control” shall mean the occurrence of a “change in the ownership,” a “change in the effective control” or a
“change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets” of a corporation, as determined in accordance with this Section.
In order for an event described below to constitute a Change in Control with respect to a Participant, except as otherwise
provided in Subsection (b)(ii), the applicable event must relate to the corporation for which the Participant is providing services,
the corporation that is liable for payment of the Participant’s Account Balance (or all corporations liable for payment if more
than one), as identified by the Committee in accordance with Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-3(i)(5)(ii)(A)(2), or such other corporation
identified by the Committee in accordance with Treas. Reg. § 1 .409A-3 (i)(5)(ii)(A)(3).
In determining whether an event shall be considered a “change in the ownership,” a “change in the effective control” or a “change
in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets” of a corporation, the following provisions shall apply:
(a) A “change in the ownership” of the applicable corporation shall occur on the date on which any one person, or more than one
person acting as a group, acquires ownership of stock of such corporation that, together with stock held by such person or
group, constitutes more than 50% of the total fair market value or total voting power of the stock of such corporation, as
determined in accordance with Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-3(i)(5)(v). If a person or group is considered either to own more than
50% of the total fair market value or total voting power of the stock of such corporation, or to have effective control of such
corporation within the meaning of Subsection (b), and such person or group acquires additional stock of such corporation, the
acquisition of additional stock by such person or group shall not be considered to cause a “change in the ownership” of such
corporation.
(b) A “change in the effective control” of the applicable corporation shall occur on either of the following dates:
(i) The date on which any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, acquires (or has acquired during the
12-month period ending on the date of the most recent acquisition by such person or persons) ownership of stock of such
corporation possessing 30% or more of the total voting power of the stock of such corporation, as determined in
accordance with Treas. Reg. § 1 .409A-3 (i)(5)(vi). If a person or group is considered to possess 30% or more of the total
voting power of the stock of a corporation, and such person or group acquires additional stock of such corporation, the
acquisition of additional stock by such person or group shall not be considered to cause a “change in the effective
control” of such corporation; or
(ii) The date on which a majority of the members of the applicable corporation’s board of directors is replaced during any
12-month period by directors whose appointment or election is not endorsed by a majority of the members of such
corporation’s board of directors before the date of the appointment or election, as determined in accordance with Treas.
Reg. §1 .409A-3(i)(5)(vi). In determining whether the event described in the preceding sentence has occurred, the
applicable corporation to which the event must relate shall only include a corporation
3
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identified in accordance with Treas. Reg. § 1 .409A-3 (i)(5)(ii) for which no other corporation is a majority shareholder.
(c) A “change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets” of the applicable corporation shall occur on the date on
which any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, acquires (or has acquired during the 12-month period
ending on the date of the most recent acquisition by such person or persons) assets from the corporation that have a total gross
fair market value equal to or more than 40% of the total gross fair market value of all of the assets of the corporation
immediately before such acquisition or acquisitions, as determined in accordance with Treas. Reg. § 1 .409A-3 (i)(5)(vii). A
transfer of assets shall not be treated as a “change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets” when such transfer is
made to an entity that is controlled by the shareholders of the transferor corporation, as determined in accordance with Treas.
Reg. § 1 .409A-3(i)(5)(vii)(B).
1.12 “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as it may be amended from time to time.
1.13 “Committee” shall mean the committee described in Article 13.
1.14 “Company” shall mean Service Corporation International, a Texas corporation, and any successor to all or substantially all of
the Company’s assets or business.
1.15 “Company Contribution Amount” shall mean, for any one Plan Year, the amount determined in accordance with Section 3.4.
1.16 “Company Restoration Matching Amount” shall mean, for any one Plan Year, the amount determined in accordance with
Section 3.5.
1.17 “Death Benefit” shall have the meaning provided in Section 9.1.
1.18 “Director” shall mean any member of the board of directors of any Employer.
1.19 “Director Fees” shall mean the annual fees earned by a Director from any Employer, including retainer fees and meetings fees,
as compensation for serving on the board of directors.
1.20 “Disability” or “Disabled” shall mean that a Participant is either (i) unable to engage in any substantial gainful activity by
reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment that can be expected to result in death or can be expected
to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months, or (ii) by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental
impairment that can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months,
receiving income replacement benefits for a period of not less than 3 months under an accident and health plan covering
employees of the Participant’s Employer. For purposes of this Plan, a Participant shall be deemed Disabled if determined to be
totally disabled by the Social Security Administration. A Participant shall also be deemed Disabled if determined to be disabled
in accordance with the applicable disability insurance program of such Participant’s Employer, provided that the definition of
“disability” applied under such disability insurance program complies with the requirements of this Section.
1.21 “Disability Benefit” shall have the meaning provided in Section 8.1.
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1.22 “Election Form” shall mean the form, which may be in electronic format, established from time to time by the Committee that
a Participant completes, signs and returns to the Committee to make an election under the Plan.
1.23 “Employee” shall mean a person who is an employee of an Employer.
1.24 “Employer(s)” shall be defined as follows:
(a) Except as otherwise provided in Subsection (b), the term “Employer” shall mean the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
(now in existence or hereafter formed or acquired) that have been selected by the Board to participate in the Plan and have
adopted the Plan as a sponsor.
(b) For the purpose of determining whether a Participant has experienced a Separation from Service, the term “Employer” shall
mean:
(i)

The entity for which the Participant performs services and with respect to which the legally binding right to
compensation deferred or contributed under this Plan arises; and

(ii) All other entities with which the entity described above would be aggregated and treated as a single employer under
Code Section 414(b) (controlled group of corporations) and Code Section 4 14(c) (a group of trades or businesses,
whether or not incorporated, under common control), as applicable. In order to identify the group of entities described in
the preceding sentence, the Committee shall use an ownership threshold of at least 50% as a substitute for the 80%
minimum ownership threshold that appears in, and otherwise must be used when applying, the applicable provisions of
(A) Code Section 1563 for determining a controlled group of corporations under Code Section 414(b) , and (B) Treas.
Reg. §l. 414(c)-2 for determining the trades or businesses that are under common control under Code Section 4 14(c) .
1.25 “ERISA” shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as it may be amended from time to time.
1.26 “401(k) Plan” shall mean the SCI Retirement Savings Plan, as it may be amended from time to time, or any successor thereto.
1.27 “LTIP Amounts” shall mean any portion of the compensation attributable to a Plan Year that is earned by a Participant under
the Company’s Performance Unit Plan or any other “performance-based compensation plan within the meaning of Code
Section 409A and so designated by the Committee.
1.28 “Participant” shall mean any Employee or Director (i) who is selected to participate in the Plan, (ii) whose executed Plan
Agreement, Election Form and Beneficiary Designation Form are accepted by the Committee, and (iii) whose Plan Agreement
has not terminated.
1.29 “Performance-Based Compensation” shall mean compensation the entitlement to or amount of which is contingent on the
satisfaction of pre-established organizational or individual
5
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performance criteria relating to a performance period of at least 12 consecutive months, as determined by the Committee in
accordance with Treas. Reg. §1.409A-1(e).
1.30 “Plan” shall mean the Service Corporation International Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, which shall be evidenced by
this instrument, as it may be amended from time to time, and by any other documents that together with this instrument define a
Participant’s rights to amounts credited to his or her Account Balance.
1.31 “Plan Agreement” shall mean a written agreement in the form prescribed by or acceptable to the Committee that evidences a
Participant’s agreement to the terms of the Plan and which may establish additional terms or conditions of Plan participation for
a Participant. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, the most recent Plan Agreement accepted with respect to a
Participant shall supersede any prior Plan Agreements for such Participant. Plan Agreements may vary among Participants and
may provide additional benefits not set forth in the Plan or limit the benefits otherwise provided under the Plan.
1.32 “Plan Year” shall mean a period beginning on January 1 of each calendar year and continuing through December 31 of such
calendar year.
1.33 “Retirement,“Retire(s)” or “Retired” shall mean with respect to a Participant who is an. Employee, a Separation from Service
on or after the attainment of age sixty (60) with five (5) Years of Service, and shall mean with respect to a Participant who is a
Director, a Separation from Service. If a Participant is both an Employee and a Director and participates in the Plan in each
capacity, (i) the determination of whether the Participant qualifies for Retirement as an Employee shall be made when the
Participant experiences a Separation from Service as an Employee and such determination shall only apply to the applicable
Account Balance established in accordance with Section 1.1 for amounts deferred under the Plan as an Employee, and (ii) the
determination of whether the Participant qualifies for Retirement as a Director shall be made at the time the Participant
experiences a Separation from Service as a Director and such determination shall only apply to the applicable Account Balance
established in accordance with Section 1.1 for amounts deferred under the Plan as a Director.
1.34 “Separation from Service” shall mean a termination of services provided by a Participant to his or her Employer, whether
voluntarily or involuntarily, other than by reason of death or Disability, as determined by the Committee in accordance with
Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-1 (h). In determining whether a Participant has experienced a Separation from Service, the following
provisions shall apply:
(a) For a Participant who provides services to an Employer as an Employee, except as otherwise provided in Subsection
(c) below, a Separation from Service shall occur when such Participant has experienced a termination of employment with
such Employer. A Participant shall be considered to have experienced a termination of employment when the facts and
circumstances indicate that the Participant and his or her Employer reasonably anticipate that either (i) no further services will
be performed for the Employer after a certain date, or (ii) that the level of bona fide services the Participant will perform for
the Employer after such date (whether as an Employee or as an independent contractor) will permanently decrease to no more
than 20% of the average level of bona fide services performed by such Participant (whether as an Employee or an independent
contractor) over the immediately preceding 36-month period (or the full period of
6
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services to the Employer if the Participant has been providing services to the Employer less than 36 months).
If a Participant is on military leave, sick leave, or other bona fide leave of absence, the employment relationship between the
Participant and the Employer shall be treated as continuing intact, provided that the period of such leave does not exceed six
months, or if longer, so long as the Participant retains a right to reemployment with the Employer under an applicable statute
or by contract. If the period of a military leave, sick leave, or other bona fide leave of absence exceeds six months and the
Participant does not retain a right to reemployment under an applicable statute or by contract, the employment relationship
shall be considered to be terminated for purposes of this Plan as of the first day immediately following the end of such six
month period. In applying the provisions of this paragraph, a leave of absence shall be considered a bona fide leave of absence
only if there is a reasonable expectation that the Participant will return to perform services for the Employer.
(b) For a Participant who provides services to an Employer as a Director, a Separation from Service shall occur on the date the
Participant ceases to serve on the Board of Directors of the Employer and each of its subsidiaries and affiliates.
(c) For a Participant who provides services to an Employer as both an Employee and a Director, a Separation from Service
generally shall not occur until the Participant has ceased providing services for such Employer as both as an Employee and as
a Director, as determined in accordance with the provisions set forth in Subsections (a) and (b) above, respectively.
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions in this Subsection (c), if a Participant provides services for an Employer as both an
Employee and as a Director, to the extent permitted by Treas. Reg. § 1 .409A- 1 (h)(5) the services provided by such
Participant as a Director shall not be taken into account in determining whether the Participant has experienced a Separation
from Service as an Employee, and the services provided by such Participant as an Employee shall not be taken into account in
determining whether the Participant has experienced a Separation from Service as a Director.
1.35 “Specified Employee” shall mean any Participant who is determined to be a “key employee” (as defined under Code Section
416(i) without regard to paragraph (5) thereof) for the applicable period, as determined annually by the Committee in
accordance with Treas. Reg. §1.409A-1(i). In determining whether a Participant is a Specified Employee, the following
provisions shall apply:
(a) The Committee’s identification of the individuals who fall within the definition of “key employee” under Code Section 416(i)
(without regard to paragraph (5) thereof) shall be based upon the 12-month period ending on each December 31st (referred to
below as the “identification date”). In applying the applicable provisions of Code Section 416(i) to identify such individuals,
“compensation” shall be determined in accordance with Treas. Reg. §1.415(c)-2(a) without regard to (i) any safe harbor
provided in Treas. Reg. § 1.415(c)-2(d), (ii) any of the special timing rules provided in Treas. Reg $1.415(c)-2(e), and
(iii) any of the special rules provided in Treas. Reg. §1.415(c)-2(g); and
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(b) Each Participant who is among the individuals identified as a “key employee” in accordance with Subsection (a) shall be
treated as a Specified Employee for purposes of this Plan if such Participant experiences a Separation from Service during the
12-month period that begins on the April 1 st following the applicable identification date.
1.36 “Termination Benefit” shall have the meaning provided in Section 7.1.
1.37 “Trust” shall mean one or more trusts established by the Company in accordance with Article 16.
1.38 “Unforeseeable Emergency” shall mean a severe financial hardship of the Participant resulting from (i) an illness or accident
of the Participant, the Participant’s spouse, the Participant’s Beneficiary or the Participant’s dependent (as defined in Code
Section 152 without regard to paragraphs (b)(1), (b)(2) and (d)(1)(b) thereof), (ii) a loss of the Participant’s property due to
casualty, or (iii) such other similar extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of events beyond the
control of the Participant, all as determined by the Committee based on the relevant facts and circumstances.
1.39 “Years of Service” shall mean the total number of full years in which a Participant has been employed by one or more
Employers. For purposes of this definition, a year of employment shall be a 365 day period (or 366 day period in the case of a
leap year) that, for the first year of employment, commences on the Employee’s date of hiring and that, for any subsequent year,
commences on an anniversary of that hiring date. A partial year of employment shall not be treated as a Year of Service.
ARTICLE 2
Selection, Enrollment, Eligibility
2.1 Selection by Committee. Participation in the Plan shall be limited to Directors and, as determined by the Committee in its sole
discretion, a select group of management or highly compensated Employees. From that group, the Committee shall select, in its
sole discretion, those individuals who may actually participate in this Plan.
2.2 Enrollment and Eligibility Requirements; Commencement of Participation.
(a) As a condition to participation, each Director or selected Employee shall complete, execute and return to the Committee a
Plan Agreement, an Election Form and a Beneficiary Designation Form by the deadline(s) established by the Committee in
accordance with the applicable provisions of this Plan. In addition, the Committee shall establish from time to time such other
enrollment requirements as it determines, in its sole discretion, are necessary.
(b) Each Director or selected Employee who is eligible to participate in the Plan shall commence participation in the Plan on the
date that the Committee determines that the Director or Employee has met all enrollment requirements set forth in this Plan
and require by the Committee, including returning all require documents to the committee Within the specified time period.
8
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(c) If a Director or an Employee fails to meet all requirements established by the Committee within the period required, that
Director or Employee shall not be eligible to participate in the Plan during such Plan Year.
ARTICLE 3
Deferral Commitments/Company Contribution Amounts/
Company Restoration Matching Amounts/Vesting/Crediting/Taxes
3.1 Annual Deferral Amount. For each Plan Year, a Participant may elect to defer, as his or her Annual Deferral Amount, Base
Salary, Bonus, LTIP Amounts and/or Director Fees up to the following maximum percentages for each deferral elected:
Deferral

Base Salary
Bonus
LTIP Amounts
Director Fees

Maximum Percentage

80%
90%
90%
100%

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Participant first becomes a Participant after the first day of a Plan Year, then to the extent
required by Section 3.2 and Code Section 409A and related Treasury Regulations, the maximum amount of the Participant’s Base
Salary, Bonus, LTIP Amounts or Director Fees that may be deferred by the Participant for the Plan Year shall be determined by
applying the percentages set forth above to the portion of such compensation attributable to services performed after the date that
the Participant’s deferral election is made.
3.2 Timing of Deferral Elections; Effect of Election Form.
(a) General Timing Rule for Deferral Elections. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 3.2, in order for a Participant to
make a valid election to defer Base Salary, Bonus, Director Fees and/or LTIP Amounts, the Participant must submit an
Election Form on or before the deadline established by the Committee, which in no event shall be later than the December
31st preceding the Plan Year in which such compensation will be earned.
Any deferral election made in accordance with this Section 3.2(a) shall be irrevocable; provided, however, that if the
Committee permits or requires Participants to make a deferral election by the deadline described above for an amount that
qualifies as Performance-Based Compensation, the Committee may permit a Participant to subsequently change his or her
deferral election for such compensation by submitting a new Election Form in accordance with Section 3.2(d) below.
(b) Timing of Deferral Elections for Newly Eligible Plan Participants. A Director or selected Employee who first becomes
eligible to participate in the Plan on or after the beginning of a Plan Year, as determined in accordance with Treas. Reg.
§1.409A-2(a)(7)(ii) and the “plan aggregation” rules provided in Treas. Reg. § 1 .409A-l(c)(2), may be permitted to make an
election to defer the portion of Base Salary, Bonus, Director Fees and/or LTIP Amounts attributable to services to be
performed after such election,
9
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provided that the Participant submits an Election Form on or before the deadline established by the Committee, which in no
event shall be later than 30 days after the Participant first becomes eligible to participate in the Plan.
If a deferral election made in accordance with this Section 3.2(b) relates to compensation earned based upon a specified
performance period, the amount eligible for deferral shall be equal to (i) the total amount of compensation for the performance
period, multiplied by (ii) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days remaining in the service period after the
Participant’s deferral election is made, and the denominator of which is the total number of days in the performance period.
Any deferral election made in accordance with this Section 3.2(b) shall become irrevocable no later than the 30th day after the
date the Director or selected Employee becomes eligible to participate in the Plan.
(c) Timing of Deferral Elections for Fiscal Year Compensation. In the event that the fiscal year of an Employer is different
than the taxable year of a Participant, the Committee may determine that a deferral election may be made for “fiscal year
compensation” (as defined below), by submitting an Election Form on or before the deadline established by the Committee,
which in no event shall be later than the last day of the Employer’s fiscal year immediately preceding the fiscal year in which
the services related to such compensation will begin to be performed. For purposes of this Section, the term “fiscal year
compensation” shall only include Bonus and LTIP Amounts relating to a service period coextensive with one or more
consecutive fiscal years of the Employer, of which no amount is paid or payable during the Employer’s fiscal year(s) that
constitute the service period.
A deferral election made in accordance with this Section 3.2(c) shall be irrevocable; provided, however, that if the Committee
permits or requires Participants to make a deferral election by the deadline described in this Section 3.2(c) for an amount that
qualifies as Performance-Based Compensation, the Committee may permit a Participant to subsequently change his or her
deferral election for such compensation by submitting a new Election Form in accordance with Section 3.2(d) below.
(d) Timing of Deferral Elections for Performance-Based Compensation. Subject to the limitations described below, the
Committee may determine that an irrevocable deferral election for an amount that qualifies as Performance-Based
Compensation may be made by submitting an Election Form on or before the deadline established by the Committee, which
in no event shall be later than 6 months before the end of the performance period.
In order for a Participant to be eligible to make a deferral election for Performance-Based Compensation in accordance with
the deadline established pursuant to this Section 3.2(d), the Participant must have performed services continuously from the
later of (i) the beginning of the performance period for such compensation, or (ii) the date upon which the performance
criteria for such compensation are established, through the date upon which the Participant makes the deferral election for
such compensation. In no event shall a deferral election submitted under this Section 3.2(d) be permitted to apply to any
amount of Performance-Based Compensation that has become readily ascertainable.
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(e) Timing Rule for Deferral of Compensation Subject to Risk of Forfeiture. With respect to compensation (i) to which a
Participant has a legally binding right to payment in a subsequent year, and (ii) that is subject to a forfeiture condition
requiring the Participant’s continued services for a period of at least 12 months from the date the Participant obtains the
legally binding right, the Committee may determine that an irrevocable deferral election for such compensation may be made
by timely delivering an Election Form to the Committee in accordance with its rules and procedures, no later than the 30th
day after the Participant obtains the legally binding right to the compensation, provided that the election is made at least
12 months in advance of the earliest date at which the forfeiture condition could lapse, as determined in accordance with
Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-2(a)(5).
Any deferral election(s) made in accordance with this Section 3.2(e) shall become irrevocable no later than the 30th day after
the Participant obtains the legally binding right to the compensation subject to such deferral election(s).
3.3 Withholding and Crediting of Annual Deferral Amounts. For each Plan Year, the Base Salary portion of the Annual Deferral
Amount shall be withheld from each regularly scheduled Base Salary payroll in equal amounts, as adjusted from time to time for
increases and decreases in Base Salary. The Bonus, LTIP Amounts and/or Director Fees portion of the Annual Deferral Amount
shall be withheld at the time the Bonus, LTIP Amounts or Director Fees are or otherwise would be paid to the Participant,
whether or not this occurs during the Plan Year itself. Annual Deferral Amounts shall be credited to the Participant’s Annual
Account for such Plan Year at the time such amounts would otherwise have been paid to the Participant
3.4 Company Contribution Amount.
(a) For each Plan Year, an Employer may be required to credit amounts to a Participant’s Annual Account in accordance with
employment or other agreements entered into between the Participant and the Employer, which amounts shall be part of the
Participant’s Company Contribution Amount for that Plan Year. Such amounts shall be credited to the Participant’s Annual
Account for the applicable Plan Year on the date or dates prescribed by such agreements.
(b) For each Plan Year, an Employer, in its sole discretion, may, but is not required to, credit any amount it desires to any
Participant’s Annual Account under this Plan, which amount shall be part of the Participant’s Company Contribution Amount
for that Plan Year. The amount so credited to a Participant may be smaller or larger than the amount credited to any other
Participant, and the amount credited to any Participant for a Plan Year may be zero, even though one or more other
Participants receive a Company Contribution Amount for that Plan Year. The Company Contribution Amount described in
this Section 3.4(b), if any, shall be credited to the Participant’s Annual Account for the applicable Plan Year on a date or dates
to be determined by the Committee.
(c) If not otherwise specified in the Participant’s employment or other agreement entered into between the Participant and the
Employer, the amount (or the method or formula for determining the amount) of a Participant’s Company Contribution
Amount shall be set forth in writing in one or more documents, which shall be deemed to be incorporated into
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this Plan in accordance with Section 1.30, no later than the date on which such Company Contribution Amount is
credited to the applicable Annual Account of the Participant.
3.5 Company Restoration Matching Amount. A Participant’s Company Restoration Matching Amount for any Plan Year shall be
an amount determined by the Committee to make up for certain limits applicable to the 401(k) Plan or other qualified plan for
such Plan Year, as identified by the Committee, or for such other purposes as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion.
The amount so credited to a Participant under this Plan for any Plan Year (i) may be smaller or larger than the amount credited to
any other Participant, and (ii) may differ from the amount credited to such Participant in the preceding Plan Year. The
Participant’s Company Restoration Matching Amount, if any, shall be credited to the Participant’s Annual Account for the
applicable Plan Year on a date or dates to be determined by the Committee. The amount (or the method or formula for
determining the amount) of a Participant’s Company Restoration Matching Amount shall be set forth in writing in one or more
documents, which shall be deemed to be incorporated into this Plan in accordance with Section 1.30, no later than the date on
which such Company Restoration Matching Amount is credited to the applicable Annual Account of the Participant.
3.6 Vesting.
(a) A Participant shall at all times be 100% vested in the portion of his or her Account Balance attributable to Annual Deferral
Amounts, plus amounts credited or debited on such amounts pursuant to Section 3.7.
(b) A Participant shall be vested in the portion of his or her Account Balance attributable to any Company Contribution Amounts,
plus amounts credited or debited on such amounts pursuant to Section 3.7, in accordance with the vesting schedule(s) set forth
in his or her Plan Agreement, employment agreement or any other agreement entered into between the Participant and his or
her Employer. If not addressed in such agreements, a Participant shall vest in the portion of his or her Account Balance
attributable to any Company Contribution Amounts as provided in Subsection (c) below.
(c) A Participant shall be vested in the portion of his or her Account Balance attributable to any Company Restoration Matching
Amounts, plus amounts credited or debited on such amounts pursuant to Section 3.7, only to the extent that the Participant
would be vested in such amounts under the provisions of the 401(k) Plan, as determined by the Committee in its sole
discretion.
(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 3.6, in the event of (i) a Change in Control, (ii) a
Participant’s Disability, (iii) a Participant’s Separation from Service resulting from involuntary termination by the Company
for any reason other than cause, or (iv) a Participant’s death prior to Separation from Service, any amounts that are not vested
in accordance with Sections 3.6(b) or 3.6(c) above, shall immediately become 100% vested.
(e) Notwithstanding Section 3.6(d) above, the vesting schedules described in Sections 3.6(b) or 3.6(c) above shall not be
accelerated upon a Change in Control to the extent that the Committee determines that such acceleration would cause the
deduction limitations of Section 280G of the Code to become effective. In the event of such a determination, the
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Participant may request independent verification of the Committee’s calculations with respect to the application of
Section 280G. In such case, the Committee must provide to the Participant within 90 days of such a request an opinion from a
nationally recognized accounting firm selected by the Participant (the “Accounting Firm”). The opinion shall state the
Accounting Firm’s opinion that any limitation in the vested percentage hereunder is necessary to avoid the limits of
Section 280G and contain supporting calculations. The cost of such opinion shall be paid for by the Company.
(f) Section 3.6(e) shall not prevent the acceleration of the vesting schedules described in Sections 3.6(b) and (c) if such
Participant is entitled to a “gross-up” payment, to eliminate the effect of the Code section 4999 excise tax, pursuant to his or
her employment agreement or other agreement entered into between such Participant and the Employer.
(g) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 3.6, in the event of a Participant’s Separation from Service
resulting from (i) voluntary resignation on or after attainment of age 60 with 10 years of service or (ii) voluntary resignation
on or after attainment of age 55 with 20 years of service, any amounts that are not vested in accordance with Sections 3.6(b),
3.6(c) or 3.6(d) above, shall immediately become 100% vested if the Committee, in its sole discretion exercised during a
meeting or by unanimous written consent prior to the date of retirement, causes such amounts to vest.
3.7 Crediting/Debiting of Account Balances. In accordance with, and subject to, the rules and procedures that are established from
time to time by the Committee, in its sole discretion, amounts shall be credited or debited to a Participant’s Account Balance in
accordance with the following rules:
(a) Measurement Funds. The Participant may elect one or more of the measurement funds selected by the Committee, in its sole
discretion, which are based on certain mutual funds (the “Measurement Funds”), for the purpose of crediting or debiting
additional amounts to his or her Account Balance. As necessary, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, discontinue,
substitute or add a Measurement Fund. Each such action will take effect as of the first day of the first calendar quarter that
begins at least 30 days after the day on which the Committee gives Participants advance written notice of such change.
(b) Election of Measurement Funds. A Participant, in connection with his or her initial deferral election in accordance with
Section 3.2 above, shall elect, on the Election Form, one or more Measurement Fund(s) (as described in Section 3.7(a) above)
to be used to determine the amounts to be credited or debited to his or her Account Balance. If a Participant does not elect any
of the Measurement Funds as described in the previous sentence, the Participant’s Account Balance shall automatically be
allocated into the lowest-risk Measurement Fund, as determined by the Committee, in its sole discretion. The Participant may
(but is not required to) elect, by submitting an Election Form to the Committee that is accepted by the Committee, to add or
delete one or more Measurement Fund(s) to be used to determine the amounts to be credited or debited to his or her Account
Balance, or to change the portion of his or her Account Balance allocated to each previously or newly elected Measurement
Fund. If an election is made in accordance with the previous sentence, it shall apply as of the first business day deemed
reasonably practicable by the Committee, in its sole discretion, and shall continue thereafter for each subsequent day in which
the Participant participates in the Plan, unless changed in
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accordance with the previous sentence. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may impose
limitations on the frequency with which one or more of the Measurement Funds elected in accordance with this Section 3.7(b)
maybe added or deleted by such Participant; furthermore, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may impose limitations on the
frequency with which the Participant may change the portion of his or her Account Balance allocated to each previously or
newly elected Measurement Fund.
(c) Proportionate Allocation. In making any election described in Section 3.7(b) above, the Participant shall specify on the
Election Form, in increments of one percent (1%), the percentage of his or her Account Balance or Measurement Fund, as
applicable, to be allocated/reallocated.
(d) Crediting or Debiting Method. The performance of each Measurement Fund (either positive or negative) will be determined
on a daily basis based on the manner in which such Participant’s Account Balance has been hypothetically allocated among
the Measurement Funds by the Participant.
(e) No Actual Investment. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan that may be interpreted to the contrary, the
Measurement Funds are to be used for measurement purposes only, and a Participant’s election of any such Measurement
Fund, the allocation of his or her Account Balance thereto, the calculation of additional amounts and the crediting or debiting
of such amounts to a Participant’s Account Balance shall not be considered or construed in any manner as an actual
investment of his or her Account Balance in any such Measurement Fund. In the event that the Company or the Trustee (as
that term is defined in the Trust), in its own discretion, decides to invest funds in any or all of the investments on which the
Measurement Funds are based, no Participant shall have any rights in or to such investments themselves. Without limiting the
foregoing, a Participant’s Account Balance shall at all times be a bookkeeping entry only and shall not represent any
investment made on his or her behalf by the Company or the Trust; the Participant shall at all times remain an unsecured
creditor of the Company.
3.8 FICA and Other Taxes.
(a) Annual Deferral Amounts. For each Plan Year in which an Annual Deferral Amount is being withheld from a Participant,
the Participant’s Employer(s) shall withhold from that portion of the Participant’s Base Salary, Bonus, and/or LTIP Amounts
that is not being deferred, in a manner determined by the Employer(s), the Participant’s share of FICA and other employment
taxes on such Annual Deferral Amount. If necessary, the Committee may reduce the Annual Deferral Amount in order to
comply with applicable withholding requirements.
(b) Company Restoration Matching Amounts and Company Contribution Amounts. When a Participant becomes vested in
a portion of his or her Account Balance attributable to any Company Restoration Matching Amounts and/or Company
Contribution Amounts, the Participant’s Employer(s) shall withhold from that portion of the Participant’s Base Salary, Bonus,
and/or LTIP Amounts that is not deferred, in a manner determined by the Employer(s), the Participant’s share of FICA and
other employment taxes on such amounts. If necessary, the Committee may reduce the vested
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portion of the Participant’s Company Restoration Matching Amount or Company Contribution Amount, as applicable, in
order to comply with applicable withholding amounts.
(c) Distributions. The Participant’s Employer(s), or the trustee of the Trust, shall withhold from any payments made to a
Participant under this Plan all federal, state and local income, employment and other taxes required to be withheld by the
Employer(s), or the trustee of the Trust, in connection with such payments, in amounts and in a manner to be determined in
the sole discretion of the Employer(s) and the trustee of the Trust.
(d) Right to Offset Against Account Balance. To the extent determined necessary by the Committee in its sole discretion, the
Company reserves the right to direct that the Participant’s Account Balance be reduced to satisfy any and all federal, state and
local income, employment and other taxes required to be paid in connection with earnings of the Measurement Funds
hypothetically allocated to the Participant’s Account Balance.
ARTICLE 4
Scheduled Distribution; Unforeseeable Emergencies
4.1 Scheduled Distributions. In connection with each election to defer an Annual Deferral Amount, a Participant may elect to
receive all or a portion of such Annual Deferral Amount, plus amounts credited or debited on that amount pursuant to Section 3.7,
in the form of a lump sum payment, calculated as of the close of business on or around the Benefit Distribution Date designated
by the Participant in accordance with this Section (a “Scheduled Distribution”). The Benefit Distribution Date for the amount
subject to a Scheduled Distribution election shall be the first day of any Plan Year designated by the Participant, which may be no
sooner than three Plan Years after the end of the Plan Year to which the Participant’s deferral election relates, unless otherwise
provided on an Election Form approved by the Committee.
Subject to the other terms and conditions of this Plan, each Scheduled Distribution elected shall be paid out during a 60 day
period commencing immediately after the Benefit Distribution Date. By way of example, if a Scheduled Distribution is elected
for Annual Deferral Amounts that relate to services performed in the Plan Year commencing January 1, 2009, the earliest Benefit
Distribution Date that may be designated by a Participant would be January 1, 2013, and the Scheduled Distribution would be
paid out during the 60 day period commencing immediately after such Benefit Distribution Date.
4.2 Postponing Scheduled Distributions. A Participant may elect to postpone a Scheduled Distribution described in Section 4.1
above, and have such amount paid out during a 60 day period commencing immediately after an allowable alternative Benefit
Distribution Date designated in accordance with this Section 4.2. In order to make such an election, the Participant must submit
an Election Form to the Committee in accordance with the following criteria:
(a) The election of the new Benefit Distribution Date shall have no effect until at least 12 months after the date on which the
election is made;
(b) The new Benefit Distribution Date selected by the Participant for such Scheduled Distribution must be the first day of a Plan
Year that is no sooner than five years after the previously designated Benefit Distribution Date; and
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(c) The election must be made at least 12 months prior to the Participant’s previously designated Benefit Distribution Date for
such Scheduled Distribution.
For purposes of applying the provisions of this Section 4.2, a Participant’s election to postpone a Scheduled Distribution shall not
be considered to be made until the date on which the election becomes irrevocable. Such an election shall become irrevocable no
later than the date that is 12 months prior to the Participant’s previously designated Benefit Distribution Date for such Scheduled
Distribution.
4.3 Other Benefits Take Precedence Over Scheduled Distributions. Should an event occur prior to any Benefit Distribution Date
designated for a Scheduled Distribution that would trigger a benefit under Articles 5 through 9, as applicable, all amounts subject
to a Scheduled Distribution election shall be paid in accordance with the other applicable provisions of the Plan and not in
accordance with this Article 4.
4.4 Unforeseeable Emergencies.
(a) If a Participant experiences an Unforeseeable Emergency prior to the occurrence of a distribution event described in Articles
5 through 9, as applicable, the Participant may petition the Committee to receive a partial or full payout from the Plan. The
payout, if any, from the Plan shall not exceed the lesser of(i) the Participant’s vested Account Balance, calculated as of the
close of business on or around the Benefit Distribution Date for such payout, as determined by the Committee in accordance
with provisions set forth below, or (ii) the amount necessary to satisfy the Unforeseeable Emergency, plus amounts necessary
to pay Federal, state, or local income taxes or penalties reasonably anticipated as a result of the distribution. A Participant
shall not be eligible to receive a payout from the Plan to the extent that the Unforeseeable Emergency is or may be relieved
(A) through reimbursement or compensation by insurance or otherwise, (B) by liquidation of the Participant’s assets, to the
extent the liquidation of such assets would not itself cause severe financial hardship or (C) by cessation of deferrals under this
Plan.
If the Committee, in its sole discretion, approves a Participant’s petition for payout from the Plan, the Participant’s Benefit
Distribution Date for such payout shall be the date on which such Committee approval occurs and such payout shall be
distributed to the Participant in a lump sum no later than 60 days after such Benefit Distribution Date. In addition, in the event
of such approval the Participant’s outstanding deferral elections under the Plan shall be cancelled.
(b) A Participant’s deferral elections under this Plan shall also be cancelled to the extent the Committee determines that such
action is required for the Participant to obtain a hardship distribution from an Employer’s 401(k) Plan pursuant to Treas. Reg.
§1.401(k)-1(d)(3).
ARTICLE 5
Change in Control Benefit
5.1 Changes in Control Benefit. A Participant, in connection with his or her commencement of participation in the Plan, shall have
an opportunity to irrevocably elect to receive his or her vested Account Balance in the form of a lump sum payment in the event
that a Change in Control occurs prior to the Participant’s Separation from Service, Disability or death (the “Change in
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Control Benefit”). The Benefit Distribution Date for the Change in Control Benefit, if any, shall be the date on which the Change
in Control occurs.
If a Participant elects not to receive a Change in Control Benefit, or fails to make an election in connection with his or her
commencement of participation in the Plan, the Participant’s Account Balance shall be paid in accordance with the other
applicable provisions of the Plan.
5.2 Payment of Change in Control Benefit. The Change in Control Benefit, if any, shall be calculated as of the close of business on
or around the Participant’s Benefit Distribution Date, as determined by the Committee, and paid to the Participant no later than
60 days after the Participant’s Benefit Distribution Date.
ARTICLE 6
Retirement Benefit
6.1 Retirement Benefit. If a Participant experiences a Separation from Service that qualifies as a Retirement, the Participant shall be
eligible to receive his or her vested Account Balance in either a lump sum or annual installment payments, as elected by the
Participant in accordance with Section 6.2 (the “Retirement Benefit”). A Participant’s Retirement Benefit shall be calculated as of
the close of business on or around the applicable Benefit Distribution Date for such benefit, which shall be (i) the first day after
the end of the six-month period immediately following the date on which the Participant experiences such Separation from
Service if the Participant is a Specified Employee, and (ii) for all other Participants, the date on which the Participant experiences
a Separation from Service; provided, however, if a Participant changes the form of distribution for the Retirement Benefit in
accordance with Section 6.2(b), the Benefit Distribution Date for the Retirement Benefit shall be determined in accordance with
such Section 6.2(b).
6.2 Payment of Retirement Benefit.
(a) For periods commencing January 1, 2009 and ending December 31, 2009, a Participant, in connection with his or her
commencement of participation in the Plan, shall elect on an Election Form to receive the Retirement Benefit in a lump sum
or pursuant to an Annual Installment Method of up to 15 years. Effective January 1, 2010, in connection with a Participant’s
election to defer an Annual Deferral Amount, the Participant shall elect the form in which the Retirement Benefit from his or
her Annual Account for such Plan Year will be paid. The Participant may elect to receive the Retirement Benefit paid from
each Annual Account in the form of a lump sum or pursuant to an Annual Installment Method up to 15 years. If a Participant
does not make any election with respect to the payment of an Annual Account, then the Participant shall be deemed to have
elected to receive the Retirement Benefit paid from such Annual Account as a lump sum.
(b) A Participant may change the form of payment for the Retirement Benefit by submitting an Election Form to the Committee
in accordance with the following criteria:
(i) The election shall not take effect until at least 12 months after the date on which the election is made;
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(ii) The new Benefit Distribution Date for the Participant’s Retirement Benefit shall be five years after the Benefit
Distribution Date that would otherwise have been applicable to such benefit; and
(iii) The election must be made at least 12 months prior to the Benefit Distribution Date that would otherwise have been
applicable to the Participant’s Retirement Benefit.
For purposes of applying the provisions of this Section 6.2(b), a Participant’s election to change the form of payment for the
Retirement Benefit shall not be considered to be made until the date on which the election becomes irrevocable. Such an
election shall become irrevocable no later than the date that is 12 months prior to the Benefit Distribution Date that would
otherwise have been applicable to the Participant’s Retirement Benefit. Subject to the requirements of this Section 6.2(b), the
Election Form most recently accepted by the Committee that has become effective shall govern the form of payout of the
Participant’s Retirement Benefit.
(c) The lump sum payment shall be made, or installment payments shall commence, no later than 60 days after the Participant’s
Benefit Distribution Date. Remaining installments, if any, shall be paid no later than 60 days after each anniversary of the
Participant’s Benefit Distribution Date.
ARTICLE 7
Termination Benefit
7.1 Termination Benefit. If a Participant experiences a Separation from Service that does not qualify as a Retirement, the Participant
shall receive his or her vested Account Balance in the form of a lump sum payment or pursuant to an Annual Installment Method
of up to five years (the “Termination Benefit”). A Participant’s Termination Benefit shall be calculated as of the close of business
on or around the Benefit Distribution Date for such benefit, which shall be (i) the first day after the end of the six-month period
immediately following the date on which the Participant experiences such Separation from Service if the Participant is a Specified
Employee, and (ii) for all other Participants, the date on which the Participant experiences a Separation from Service; provided,
however, if a Participant changes the form of distribution for the Termination Benefit in accordance with Section 7.2(b), the
Benefit Distribution Date for the Termination Benefit shall be determined in accordance with such Section 7.2(b)..
7.2 Payment of Termination Benefit.
(a) For periods commencing January 1, 2009 and ending December 31, 2009, a Participant, in connection with his or her
commencement of participation in the Plan, shall elect on an Election Form to receive the Termination Benefit in a lump sum
or pursuant to an Annual Installment Method of up to five years. Effective January 1, 2010, in connection with a Participant’s
election to defer an Annual Deferral Amount, the Participant shall elect the form in which the Termination Benefit from his or
her Annual Account for such Plan Year will be paid. The Participant may elect to receive the Termination Benefit paid from
each Annual Account in the form of a lump sum or pursuant to an Annual Installment Method up to five years. If a Participant
does not make any election with respect to the
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payment of the Termination Benefit, then such Participant shall be deemed to have elected to receive the Termination Benefit
as a lump sum.
(b) A Participant may change the form of payment for the Termination Benefit by submitting an Election Form to the Committee
in accordance with the following criteria:
(i)

The election shall not take effect until at least 12 months after the date on which the election is made;

(ii) The new Benefit Distribution Date for the Participant’s Termination Benefit shall be five years after the Benefit
Distribution Date that would otherwise have been applicable to such benefit; and
(iii) The election must be made at least 12 months prior to the Benefit Distribution Date that would otherwise have been
applicable to the Participant’s Termination Benefit.
For purposes of applying the provisions of this Section 7.2(b), a Participant’s election to change the form of payment for the
Termination Benefit shall not be considered to be made until the date on which the election becomes irrevocable. Such an
election shall become irrevocable no later than the date that is 12 months prior to the Benefit Distribution Date that would
otherwise have been applicable to the Participant’s Termination Benefit. Subject to the requirements of this Section 7.2(b), the
Election Form most recently accepted by the Committee that has become effective shall govern the form of payout of the
Participant’s Termination Benefit.
(c) The lump sum payment shall be made, or installment payments shall commence, no later than 60 days after the Participant’s
Benefit Distribution Date. Remaining installments, if any, shall be paid no later than 60 days after each anniversary of the
Participant’s Benefit Distribution Date.
ARTICLE 8
Disability Benefit
8.1 Disability Benefit. If a Participant becomes Disabled prior to the occurrence of a distribution event described in Articles 5
through 7, as applicable, the Participant shall receive his or her vested Account Balance in the form of a lump sum or installment
payment as provided in Section 8.2 below (the “Disability Benefit”). The Disability Benefit shall be calculated as of the close of
business on or around the Participant’s Benefit Distribution Date for such benefit, which shall be the date on which the
Participant becomes Disabled.
8.2 Payment of Disability Benefit. The Disability Benefit shall be paid to the Participant no later than 60 days after the Participant’s
Benefit Distribution Date.
(a) For periods commencing January 1, 2009 and ending December 31, 2009, a Participant, in connection with his or her
commencement of participation in the plan, shall elect on an Election Form to receive the Disability Benefit in a lump sum or
pursuant to an Annual Installment Method of up to five years. Effective January 1, 2010, in connection with a Participant’s
election to defer an Annual Deferral Amount, the Participant shall elect the form in which the Disability Benefit from his or
her Annual Account for such Plan Year
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will be paid. The Participant may elect to receive the Disability Benefit paid from each Annual Account in the form of a lump
sum or pursuant to an Annual Installment Method up to five years. If a Participant does not make any election with respect to
the payment of the Disability Benefit, then such Participant shall be deemed to have elected to receive the Disability Benefit
as a lump sum.
(b) A Participant may change the form of payment for the Disability Benefit by submitting an Election Form to the Committee in
accordance with the following criteria:
(i) The election shall not take effect until at least 12 months after the date on which the election is made; and
(ii) The election must be made at least 12 months prior to the Benefit Distribution Date that would otherwise have been
applicable to the Participant’s Disability Benefit.
For purposes of applying the provisions of this Section 8.2(b), a Participant’s election to change the form of payment for the
Disability Benefit shall not be considered to be made until the date on which the election becomes irrevocable. Such an
election shall become irrevocable no later than the date that is 12 months prior to the Benefit Distribution Date that would
otherwise have been applicable to the Participant’s Disability Benefit. Subject to the requirements of this Section 8.2(b), the
Election Form most recently accepted by the Committee that has become effective shall govern the form of payout of the
Participant’s Disability Benefit.
ARTICLE 9
Death Benefit
9.1 Death Benefit. In the event of a Participant’s death prior to the complete distribution of his or her vested Account Balance, the
Participant’s Beneficiary(ies) shall receive the Participant’s unpaid vested Account Balance in a lump sum payment (the “Death
Benefit”). The Death Benefit shall be calculated as of the close of business on or around the Benefit Distribution Date for such
benefit, which shall be the date of the Participant’s death.
9.2 Payment of Death Benefit. The Death Benefit shall be paid to the Participant’s Beneficiary(ies) no later than 60 days after the
Participant’s Benefit Distribution Date.
ARTICLE 10
Beneficiary Designation
10.1 Beneficiary. Each Participant shall have the right, at any time, to designate his or her Beneficiary(ies) (both primary as well as
contingent) to receive any benefits payable under the Plan to a beneficiary upon the death of a Participant. The Beneficiary
designated under this Plan may be the same as or different from the Beneficiary designation under any other plan of an
Employer in which the Participant participates.
10.2 Beneficiary Designation; Change; Spousal Consent. A Participant shall designate his or her Beneficiary by completing and
signing the Beneficiary Designation Form, and returning it to the Committee or its designated agent. A Participant shall have the
right to change a Beneficiary by completing, signing and otherwise complying with the terms of the Beneficiary Designation
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Form and the Committee’s rules and procedures, as in effect from time to time. If the Participant names someone other than his
or her spouse as a Beneficiary, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, determine that spousal consent is required to be
provided in a form designated by the Committee, executed by such Participant’s spouse and returned to the Committee. Upon
the acceptance by the Committee of a new Beneficiary Designation Form, all Beneficiary designations previously filed shall be
canceled. The Committee shall be entitled to rely on the last Beneficiary Designation Form filed by the Participant and accepted
by the Committee prior to his or her death.
10.3 Acknowledgment. No designation or change in designation of a Beneficiary shall be effective until received and acknowledged
in writing by the Committee or its designated agent.
10.4 No Beneficiary Designation. If a Participant fails to designate a Beneficiary as provided in Sections 10.1, 10.2 and 10.3 above
or, if all designated Beneficiaries predecease the Participant or die prior to complete distribution of the Participant’s benefits,
then the Participant’s designated Beneficiary shall be deemed to be his or her surviving spouse. If the Participant has no
surviving spouse, the benefits remaining under the Plan to be paid to a Beneficiary shall be payable to the executor or personal
representative of the Participant’s estate.
10.5 Doubt as to Beneficiary. If the Committee has any doubt as to the proper Beneficiary to receive payments pursuant to this Plan,
the Committee shall have the right, exercisable in its discretion, to cause the Participant’s Employer to withhold such payments
until this matter is resolved to the Committee’s satisfaction.
10.6 Discharge of Obligations. The payment of benefits under the Plan to a Beneficiary shall fully and completely discharge all
Employers and the Committee from all further obligations under this Plan with respect to the Participant, and that Participant’s
Plan Agreement shall terminate upon such full payment of benefits.
ARTICLE 11
Leave of Absence
11.1 Paid Leave of Absence. If a Participant is authorized by the Participant’s Employer to take a paid leave of absence from the
employment of the Employer, and such leave of absence does not constitute a Separation from Service, (i) the Participant shall
continue to be considered eligible for the benefits provided under the Plan, and (ii) the Annual Deferral Amount shall continue
to be withheld during such paid leave of absence in accordance with Section 3.2.
11.2 Unpaid Leave of Absence. If a Participant is authorized by the Participant’s Employer to take an unpaid leave of absence from
the employment of the Employer for any reason, and such leave of absence does not constitute a Separation from Service, such
Participant shall continue to be eligible for the benefits provided under the Plan. During the unpaid leave of absence, the
Participant shall not be allowed to make any additional deferral elections. However, if the Participant returns to employment, the
Participant may elect to defer an Annual Deferral Amount for the Plan Year following his or her return to employment and for
every Plan Year thereafter while a Participant in the Plan, provided such deferral elections are otherwise allowed and an Election
Form is delivered to and accepted by the Committee for each such election in accordance with Section 3.2 above.
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ARTICLE 12
Termination of Plan, Amendment or Modification
12.1 Termination of Plan. Although each Employer anticipates that it will continue the Plan for an indefinite period of time, there is
no guarantee that any Employer will continue the Plan or will not terminate the Plan at any time in the future. Accordingly, each
Employer reserves the right to terminate the Plan with respect to all of its Participants. In the event of a Plan termination no new
deferral elections shall be permitted for the affected Participants and such Participants shall no longer be eligible to receive new
company contributions. However, after the Plan termination the Account Balances of such Participants shall continue to be
credited with Annual Deferral Amounts attributable to a deferral election that was in effect prior to the Plan termination to the
extent deemed necessary to comply with Code Section 409A and related Treasury Regulations, and additional amounts shall
continue to credited or debited to such Participants’ Account Balances pursuant to Section 3.7. The Measurement Funds
available to Participants following the termsination of the Plan shall be comparable in number and type to those Measurement
Funds available to Participants in the Plan Year preceding the Plan Year in which the Plan termination is effective. In addition,
following a Plan termination, Participant Account Balances shall remain in the Plan and shall not be distributed until such
amounts become eligible for distribution in accordance with the other applicable provisions of the Plan. Notwithstanding the
preceding sentence, to the extent permitted by Treas. Reg. §1.409A-3(j)(4)(ix), the Employer may provide that upon termination
of the Plan, all Account Balances of the Participants shall be distributed, subject to and in accordance with any rules established
by such Employer deemed necessary to comply with the applicable requirements and limitations of Treas. Reg.
§1.409A-3(j)(4)(ix).
12.2 Amendment. Any Employer may, at anytime, amend or modify the Plan in whole or in part with respect to that Employer.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) no amendment or modification shall be effective to decrease the value of a Participant’s
vested Account Balance in existence at the time the amendment or modification is made, and (ii) no amendment or modification
of this Section 12.2 or Section 13.2 of the Plan shall be effective.
12.3 Plan Agreement. Despite the provisions of Sections 12.1 and 12.2 above, if a Participant’s Plan Agreement contains benefits or
limitations that are not in this Plan document, the Employer may only amend or terminate such provisions with the written
consent of the Participant.
12.4 Effect of Payment. The full payment of the Participant’s vested Account Balance in accordance with the applicable provisions
of the Plan shall completely discharge all obligations to a Participant and his or her designated Beneficiaries under this Plan, and
the Participant’s Plan Agreement shall terminate.
ARTICLE 13
Administration
13.1 Committee Duties. Except as otherwise provided in this Article 13, this Plan shall be administered by a Committee, which shall
consist of the Board, or such committee as the Board shall appoint. Members of the Committee may be Participants under this
Plan. The Committee shall also have the discretion and authority to (i) make, amend, interpret and enforce all appropriate rules
and regulations for the administration of this Plan, and (ii) decide or resolve any and all questions, including benefit entitlement
determinations and interpretations of this Plan, as may arise in connection with the Plan. Any individual serving on the
Committee who is a
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Participant shall not vote or act on any matter relating solely to himself or herself. When making a determination or calculation,
the Committee shall be entitled to rely on information furnished by a Participant or the Company.
13.2 Administration Upon Change In Control. Within 120 days following a Change in Control, the individuals who comprised the
Committee immediately prior to the Change in Control (whether or not such individuals are members of the Committee
following the Change in Control) may, by written consent of the majority of such individuals, appoint an independent third party
administrator (the “Administrator”) to perform any or all of the Committee’s duties described in Section 13.1 above, including
without limitation, the power to determine any questions arising in connection with the administration or interpretation of the
Plan, and the power to make benefit entitlement determinations. Upon and after the effective date of such appointment, (i) the
Company must pay all reasonable administrative expenses and fees of the Administrator, and (ii) the Administrator may only be
terminated ‘with the written consent of the majority of Participants with an Account Balance in the Plan as of the date of such
proposed termination.
13.3 Agents. In the administration of this Plan, the Committee or the Administrator, as applicable, may, from time to time, employ
agents and delegate to them such administrative duties as it sees fit (including acting through a duly appointed representative)
and may from time to time consult with counsel.
13.4 Binding Effect of Decisions. The decision or action of the Committee or Administrator, as applicable, with respect to any
question arising out of or in connection with the administration, interpretation and application of the Plan and the rules and
regulations promulgated hereunder shall be final and conclusive and binding upon all persons having any interest in the Plan.
13.5 Indemnity of Committee. All Employers shall indemnify and hold harmless the members of the Committee, any Employee to
whom the duties of the Committee may be delegated, and the Administrator against any and all claims, losses, damages,
expenses or liabilities arising from any action or failure to act with respect to this Plan, except in the case of willful misconduct
by the Committee, any of its members, any such Employee or the Administrator.
13.6 Employer Information. To enable the Committee and/or Administrator to perform its functions, the Company and each
Employer shall supply full and timely information to the Committee and/or Administrator, as the case may be, on all matters
relating to the Plan, the Trust, the Participants and their Beneficiaries, the Account Balances of the Participants, the
compensation of its Participants, the date and circumstances of the Separation from Service, Disability or death of its
Participants, and such other pertinent information as the Committee or Administrator may reasonably require.
ARTICLE 14
Other Benefits and Agreements
14.1 Coordination with Other Benefits. The benefits provided for a Participant and Participant’s Beneficiary under the Plan are in
addition to any other benefits available to such Participant under any other plan or programe for employees of the Participant’s
Employer. The Plan shall supplement and shall not supersede, modify or amend any other such plan or program except as may
otherwise be expressly provided.
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ARTICLE 15
Claims Procedures
15.1 Presentation of Claim. Any Participant or Beneficiary of a deceased Participant (such Participant or Beneficiary being referred
to below as a “Claimant”) may deliver to the Committee a written claim for a determination with respect to the amounts
distributable to such Claimant from the Plan. If such a claim relates to the contents of a notice received by the Claimant, the
claim must be made within 60 days after such notice was received by the Claimant. All other claims must be made within
180 days of the date on which the event that caused the claim to arise occurred. The claim must state with particularity the
determination desired by the Claimant.
15.2 Notification of Decision. The Committee shall consider a Claimant’s claim within a reasonable time, but no later than 90 days
after receiving the claim. If the Committee determines that special circumstances require an extension of time for processing the
claim, written notice of the extension shall be furnished to the Claimant prior to the termination of the initial 90 day period. In
no event shall such extension exceed a period of 90 days from the end of the initial period. The extension notice shall indicate
the special circumstances requiring an extension of time and the date by which the Committee expects to render the benefit
determination. The Committee shall notify the Claimant in writing:
(a) that the Claimant’s requested determination has been made, and that the claim has been allowed in full; or
(b) that the Committee has reached a conclusion contrary, in whole or in part, to the Claimant’s requested determination, and
such notice must set forth in a manner calculated to be understood by the Claimant:
(i)

the specific reason(s) for the denial of the claim, or any part of it;

(ii) specific reference(s) to pertinent provisions of the Plan upon which such denial was based;
(iii) a description of any additional material or information necessary for the Claimant to perfect the claim, and an
explanation of why such material or information is necessary;
(iv) an explanation of the claim review procedure set forth in Section 15.3 below; and
(v) a statement of the Claimant’s right to bring a civil action under ERISA Section 502(a) following an adverse benefit
determination on review.
15.3 Review of a Denied Claim. On or before 60 days after receiving a notice from the Committee that a claim has been denied, in
whole or in part, a Claimant (or the Claimant’s duly authorized representative) may file with the Committee a written request for
a review of the denial of the claim. The Claimant (or the Claimant’s duly authorized representative):
(a) may, upon request and free of charge, have reasonable access to, and copies of, all documents, records and other information
relevant (as defined in applicable ERISA regulations) to the claim for benefits;
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(b) may submit written comments or other documents; and/or
(c) may request a hearing, which the Committee, in its sole discretion, may grant.
15.4 Decision on Review. The Committee shall render its decision on review promptly, and no later than 60 days after the
Committee receives the Claimant’s written request for a review of the denial of the claim. If the Committee determines that
special circumstances require an extension of time for processing the claim, written notice of the extension shall be furnished to
the Claimant prior to the termination of the initial 60 day period. In no event shall such extension exceed a period of 60 days
from the end of the initial period. The extension notice shall indicate the special circumstances requiring an extension of time
and the date by which the Committee expects to render the benefit determination. In rendering its decision, the Committee shall
take into account all comments, documents, records and other information submitted by the Claimant relating to the claim,
without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial benefit determination. The decision must
be written in a manner calculated to be understood by the Claimant, and it must contain:
(a) specific reasons for the decision;
(b) specific reference(s) to the pertinent Plan provisions upon which the decision was based;
(c) a statement that the Claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of, all
documents, records and other information relevant (as defined in applicable ERISA regulations) to the Claimant’s claim for
benefits; and
(d) a statement of the Claimant’s right to bring a civil action under ERISA Section 502(a).
15.5 Legal Action. A Claimant’s compliance with the foregoing provisions of this Article 15 is a mandatory prerequisite to a
Claimant’s right to commence any legal action with respect to any claim for benefits under this Plan.
ARTICLE 16
Trust
16.1 Establishment of the Trust. In order to provide assets from which to fulfill its obligations to the Participants and their
Beneficiaries under the Plan, the Company may establish a trust by a trust agreement with a third party, the trustee, to which
each Employer may, in its discretion, contribute cash or other property, including securities issued by the Company, to provide
for the benefit payments under the Plan (the “Trust”).
16.2 Interrelationship of the Plan and the Trust. The provisions of the Plan and the Plan Agreement shall govern the rights of a
Participant to receive distributions pursuant to the Plan. The provisions of the Trust shall govern the rights of the Employers,
Participants and the creditors of the Employers to the assets transferred to the Trust. Each Employer shall at all times remain
liable to carry out its obligations under the Plan.
16.3 Distributions From the Trust. Each Employer’s obligations under the Plan may be satisfied with Trust assets distributed
pursuant to the terms of the Trust, and any such distribution shall reduce the Employer’s obligations under this Plan.
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ARTICLE 17
Miscellaneous
17.1 Status of Plan. The Plan is intended to be a plan that is not qualified within the meaning of Code Section 401(a) and that “is
unfunded and is maintained by an employer primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for a select group of
management or highly compensated employees” within the meaning of ERISA Sections 201(2), 301(a)(3) and 401(a)(1). The
Plan shall be administered and interpreted (i) to the extent possible in a manner consistent with the intent described in the
preceding sentence, and (ii) in accordance with Code Section 409A and related Treasury guidance and Regulations.
17.2 Unsecured General Creditor. Participants and their Beneficiaries, heirs, successors and assigns shall have no legal or equitable
rights, interests or claims in any property or assets of an Employer. For purposes of the payment of benefits under this Plan, any
and all of an Employer’s assets shall be, and remain, the general, unpledged unrestricted assets of the Employer. An Employer’s
obligation under the Plan shall be merely that of an unfunded and unsecured promise to pay money in the future.
17.3 Employer’s Liability. An Employer’s liability for the payment of benefits shall be defined only by the Plan and the Plan
Agreement, as entered into between the Employer and a Participant. An Employer shall have no obligation to a Participant under
the Plan except as expressly provided in the Plan and his or her Plan Agreement.
17.4 Nonassignability. Neither a Participant nor any other person shall have any right to commute, sell, assign, transfer, pledge,
anticipate, mortgage or otherwise encumber, transfer, hypothecate, alienate or convey in advance of actual receipt, the amounts,
if any, payable hereunder, or any part thereof, which are, and all rights to which are expressly declared to be, unassignable and
non-transferable. No part of the amounts payable shall, prior to actual payment, be subject to seizure, attachment, garnishment
or sequestration for the payment of any debts, judgments, alimony or separate maintenance owed by a Participant or any other
person, be transferable by operation of law in the event of a Participant’s or any other person’s bankruptcy or insolvency or be
transferable to a spouse as a result of a property settlement or otherwise.
17.5 Not a Contract of Employment. The terms and conditions of this Plan shall not be deemed to constitute a contract of
employment between any Employer and the Participant. Such employment is hereby acknowledged to be an “at will”
employment relationship that can be terminated at any time for any reason, or no reason, with or without cause, and with or
without notice, unless expressly provided in a written employment agreement. Nothing in this Plan shall be deemed to give a
Participant the right to be retained in the service of any Employer, either as an Employee or a Director, or to interfere with the
right of any Employer to discipline or discharge the Participant at any time.
17.6 Furnishing Information. A Participant or his or her Beneficiary will cooperate with the Committee by furnishing any
and all information requested by the Committee and take such other actions as may be requested in order to facilitate
the administration of the Plan and the payments of benefits hereunder, including but not limited to taking such
physical examinations as the Committee may deem necessary.
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17.7 Terms. Whenever any words are used herein in the masculine, they shall be construed as though they were in the feminine in all
cases where they would so apply; and whenever any words are used herein in the singular or in the plural, they shall be
construed as though they were used in the plural or the singular, as the case may be, in all cases where they would so apply.
17.8 Captions. The captions of the articles, sections and paragraphs of this Plan are for convenience only and shall not control or
affect the meaning or construction of any of its provisions.
17.9 Governing Law. Subject to ERISA, the provisions of this Plan shall be construed and interpreted according to the internal laws
of the State of Texas without regard to its conflicts of laws principles.
17.10 Notice. Any notice or filing required or permitted to be given to the Committee under this Plan shall be sufficient if in writing
and hand-delivered, or sent by registered or certified mail, to the address below:
Service Corporation International
Attn: Vice President, Human Resources
1929 Allen Parkway
Houston, Texas 77019
Such notice shall be deemed given as of the date of delivery or, if delivery is made by mail, as of the date shown on the postmark
on the receipt for registration or certification.
Any notice or filing required or permitted to be given to a Participant under this Plan shall be sufficient if in writing and
hand-delivered, or sent by mail, to the last known address of the Participant.
17.11 Successors. The provisions of this Plan shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Participant’s Employer and its successors and
assigns and the Participant and the Participant’s designated Beneficiaries.
17.12 Spouse’s Interest. The interest in the benefits hereunder of a spouse of a Participant who has predeceased the Participant shall
automatically pass to the Participant and shall not be transferable by such spouse in any manner, including but not limited to
such spouse’s will, nor shall such interest pass under the laws of intestate succession.
17.13 Validity. In case any provision of this Plan shall be illegal or invalid for any reason, said illegality or invalidity shall not affect
the remaining parts hereof, but this Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had never been
inserted herein.
17.14 Incompetent. If the Committee determines in its discretion that a benefit under this Plan is to be paid to a minor, a person
declared incompetent or to a person incapable of handling the disposition of that person’s property, the Committee may direct
payment of such benefit to the guardian, legal representative or person having the care and custody of such minor, incompetent
or incapable person. The Committee may require proof of minority, incompetence, incapacity or guardianship, as it may deem
appropriate prior to distribution of the benefit. Any payment of a benefit shall be a payment for the account of the Participant
and the Participant’s Beneficiary, as
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the case may be, and shall be a complete discharge of any liability under the Plan for such payment amount.
17.15 Domestic Relations Orders. If necessary to comply with a domestic relations order, as defined in Code Section 4l4(p)(l)(B),
pursuant to which a court has determined that a spouse or former spouse of a Participant has an interest in the Participant’s
benefits under the Plan, the Committee shall have the right to immediately distribute the spouse’s or former spouse’s interest in
the Participant’s benefits under the Plan to such spouse or former spouse.
17.16 Distribution in the Event of Income Inclusion Under Code Section 409A. If any portion of a Participant’s Account Balance
under this Plan is required to be included in income by the Participant prior to receipt due to a failure of this Plan to comply
with the requirements of Code Section 409A and related Treasury Regulations, the Committee may determine that such
Participant shall receive a distribution from the Plan in an amount equal to the lesser of (i) the portion of his or her Account
Balance required to be included in income as a result of the failure of the Plan to comply with the requirements of Code
Section 409A and related Treasury Regulations, or (ii) the unpaid vested Account Balance.
17.17 Deduction Limitation on Benefit Payments. If an Employer reasonably anticipates that the Employer’s deduction with
respect to any distribution from this Plan would be limited or eliminated by application of Code Section 162(m), then to the
extent permitted by Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-2(b)(7)(i), payment shall be delayed as deemed necessary to ensure that the entire
amount of any distribution from this Plan is deductible. Any amounts for which distribution is delayed pursuant to this Section
shall continue to be credited/debited with additional amounts in accordance with Section 3.7. The delayed amounts (and any
amounts credited thereon) shall be distributed to the Participant (or his or her Beneficiary in the event of the Participant’s
death) at the earliest date the Employer reasonably anticipates that the deduction of the payment of the amount will not be
limited or eliminated by application of Code Section 162(m). In the event that such date is determined to be after a
Participant’s Separation from Service and the Participant to whom the payment relates is determined to be a Specified
Employee, then to the extent deemed necessary to comply with Treas. Reg. §1.409A-3(i)(2), the delayed payment shall not be
made before the end of the six-month period following such Participant’s Separation from Service.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has signed this Plan document as of 8 th December, 2009.
SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL,
a Texas corporation
By:

/s/ Jane D. Jones
Jane D. Jones
Title: Vice President, Human Resources
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Exhibit 12.1
SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Pretax income from continuing operations
Add fixed charges as adjusted (from below)
Fixed charges:
Interest expense:
Corporate
Amortization of debt cost
1/3 of rental expense
Fixed charges
Ratio (earnings divided by fixed charges)

Twelve Months Ended December 31,
2007
2006
(Thousands, except ratio amounts)

2009

2008

$ 199,368
135,341
$ 334,709

$ 163,295
141,924
$ 305,219

$ 386,987
155,643
$ 542,630

$ 97,449
129,794
$ 227,243

$ 87,127
121,464
$ 208,591

$ 121,406
7,575
6,360
$ 135,341

$ 130,701
3,573
7,650
$ 141,924

$ 140,593
6,261
8,789
$ 155,643

$ 107,071
16,328
6,395
$ 129,794

$ 92,945
10,788
17,731
$ 121,464

2.47

2.15

3.49

1.75

1.72
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Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
February 20, 2010
ownership

ALABAMA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Alabama subsidiary
SCI Alabama Funeral Services, LLC
SCI Georgia Funeral Services, Inc. (DE Corp) Alabama subsidiary
ECI Alabama Services, LLC
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Alabama subsidiary
Advanced Planning (Alabama), Inc.
ALASKA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Alaska subsidiary
SCI Alaska Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Alaska subsidiary
Alderwoods (Alaska), Inc.
ARIZONA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Arizona subsidiary
SCI Arizona Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Arizona subsidiary
Alderwoods (Arizona), Inc.
Osiris Holding Corporation (DE Corp) Arizona subsidiary
Alderwoods (Arizona), Inc.
Phoenix Memorial Park Association
ARKANSAS
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Arkansas subsidiary
SCI Arkansas Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Arkansas subsidiary
Alderwoods (Arkansas), Inc.
CALIFORNIA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) California subsidiaries
SCI California Funeral Services, Inc.
Mount Vernon Memorial Park
SCI Special, Inc. (DE Corp)
SCI Administrative Services, LLC (DE LLC)
SCI Management L.P. — (DE LP) California subsidiary
SCI Western Market Support Center, Inc.
SCI Capital Corporation (DE Corp)
Investment Capital Corporation (TX Corp)
Wilson Financial Group, Inc. (DE Corp)
Wilson Holdings, Inc. (TX Corp) California subsidiaries
Cooley & Riolo Mortuary, Inc.
Thompson Funeral Home, Inc.
WFG-Fuller Funerals, Inc.
Wilson-Bannon Mortuary, Inc.
Wilson Camellia Memorial Lawn, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) California subsidiaries
Alderwoods Group (California), Inc.
Advance Funeral Insurance Services
Alderwoods (Texas), Inc.
Directors Succession Planning, Inc.
Directors Succession Planning II, Inc.
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100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
55.00%
45.00%
100%

100%
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100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Earthman Holdings, Inc. (TX Corp) California subsidiary
Earthman LP, Inc.
Rose Hills Holdings Corp. (DE Corp)
Rose Hills Company (DE Corp) California subsidiary
RH Mortuary Corporation
RH Cemetery Corp. (DE Corp) California subsidiary
Workman Mill Investment Company
DSP General Partner, Inc. (TX Corp) California subsidiary
DSP General Partner II, Inc.
S & H Properties and Enterprises, Inc. (WA Corp) California subsidiaries
Universal Memorial Centers V, Inc.
Universal Memorial Centers VI, Inc.
COLORADO
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Colorado subsidiary
SCI Colorado Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Colorado subsidiary
Alderwoods (Colorado), Inc.
CONNECTICUT
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Connecticut subsidiary
SCI Connecticut Funeral Services, LLC
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Connecticut subsidiary
Alderwoods (Connecticut), Inc.
Alderwoods (New York), Inc. (NY Corp) Connecticut subsidiary
Alderwoods (Connecticut), Inc.
DELAWARE
Christian Funeral Services, Inc.
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC)
Affiliated Family Funeral Service, Inc. (MA Corp) Delaware subsidiaries
ECI-Rapino Memorial Home, Inc.
ECI Services of Maine, Inc.
ECI Services of New Hampshire, Inc.
ECI Services of South Dakota, Inc.
ECI Services of Vermont, Inc.
Lake View Management Company, Inc.
Memorial Guardian Plans, Inc.
SCI California Funeral Services, Inc. (CA Corp) Delaware subsidiaries
California Cemetery and Funeral Services, LLC
ECI Capital Corporation
California Cemetery and Funeral Services, LLC
SCI Georgia Funeral Services, Inc.
ECI Alabama Services, LLC (AL LLC) Delaware subsidiary
ECI-Chapel Hill, Inc.
SCI Indiana Funeral Services, Inc.
SCI Iowa Funeral Services, Inc. (IA Corp) Delaware subsidiary
SCI Iowa Finance Company
SCI Maryland Funeral Services, Inc. (MD Corp) Delaware subsidiary
ECI Cemetery Services of Maryland, LLC
SCI Pennsylvania Funeral Services, Inc. (PA Corp) Delaware subsidiary
Saul-Gabauer Funeral Home, Inc.
SCI Texas Funeral Services, Inc.
CemCare, Inc.
PSI Funding, Inc.
SCI Virginia Funeral Services, Inc. (VA Corp) Delaware subsidiary
SCI Loan Services, LLC
2
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100%
51.80%
48.20%
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49%
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100%
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100%
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100%
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Salvatore Air Transportation Corp.
SCI Executive Services, Inc.
SCI Financial Services, Inc.
Making Everlasting Memories, L.L.C.
SCI Investment Services, Inc.
SCI International, LLC
SCI Cerberus, LLC
Service Corporation International (Canada) Limited (CAN Corp) DE subsidiary SCI Funeral & Cemetery
Purchasing Cooperative, Inc.
SCI Special, Inc.
SCI Administrative Services, LLC - General Partner of
SCI Management L.P.
Remembrance Memorial Traditions, LLC - Limited Partner of
SCI Management L.P.
Dignity Memorial Network, Inc.
SCI Western Market Support Center, Inc. (CA Corp)
SCI Funeral & Cemetery Purchasing Cooperative, Inc.
SCI EOps HQ, Inc. (NY Corp)
SCI Eastern Market Support Center, L.P. (TX LP)
SCI Funeral & Cemetery Purchasing Cooperative,Inc.
SCI Houston Hub, Inc. (TX Corp)
SCI Houston Market Support Center, L.P. (TX LP)
SCI Funeral & Cemetery Purchasing Cooperative, Inc.
SCI Capital Corporation
Piney Grove, LLC
Stormy Sky, LLC
Investment Capital Corporation (TX Corp) Delaware subsidiary Wilson Financial Group, Inc.
Amistad Corporation
Wilson Holdings, Inc. (TX Corp) Delaware subsidiary M.J. Edwards Hillside Chapel, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC
Alderwoods (Alabama), Inc.
Alderwoods (Mississippi), Inc.
Alderwoods Life Insurance Group, Inc.
American Burial and Cremation Centers, Inc.
H. P. Brandt Funeral Home, Inc.
Osiris Holding Corporation
Rose Hills Holdings Corp.
Rose Hills Company
RH Cemetery Corp.
Alderwoods (Partner), Inc. (KY Corp) General Partner of Alderwooods (Texas), L.P.
Alderwoods (Texas), Inc. (CA Corp) Limited Partner of Alderwoods (Texas), L.P.
Earthman Holdings, Inc. (TX Corp) Earthman LP, Inc. (CA Corp) Limited Partner of Alderwoods (Texas), L.P.
DSP General Partner, Inc. (TX Corp) General Partner of Directors (Texas), L.P.
DSP General Partner II, Inc. (CA Corp) Limited Partner of Directors (Texas), L.P.
Directors Succession Planning, Inc. (CA Corp)
Directors Succession Planning II, Inc. (CA Corp) Limited Partner of Directors (Texas), L.P.
3
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) DC subsidiaries
Joseph Gawler’s Sons, LLC
Witzke Funeral Homes, Inc.
FLORIDA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Florida subsidiaries
SCI Funeral Services of Florida, Inc.
Florida Marker, LLC
Fountainhead Memorial Park, LLC
WPALM, Inc.
SCI Special, Inc. (DE Corp)
SCI Capital Corporation (DE Corp)
Investment Capital Corporation (TX Corp)
Wilson Financial Group, Inc. (DE Corp)
Wilson Holdings, Inc. (TX Corp) Florida subsidiary
A.B. Coleman Mortuary, Inc.
Holmes Funeral Directors, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Florida subsidiaries
Garden Sanctuary Acquisition, Inc.
RG Memorial Chapels, Inc.
MHI Group, LLC
Funeral Services Acquisition Group, LLC
Security Trust Plans, Inc.
Naples Memorial Gardens, Inc.
Osiris Holding Corporation (DE Corp) Florida subsidiary
Osiris Holding of Florida, Inc.
Alderwoods (Minnesota), Inc. (MN Corp) Florida subsidiaries
Coral Ridge Funeral Home and Cemetery, Inc.
Kadek Enterprises of Florida, Inc.
GEORGIA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Georgia subsidiaries
SCI Georgia Funeral Services, Inc. (DE Corp) Georgia subsidiaries
ECI Cemetery Services of Georgia, LLC
SCI Georgia Land, Inc.
Parkhill Cemetery, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Georgia subsidiaries
Advanced Planning of Georgia, Inc.
Alderwoods (Georgia) Holdings, Inc.
Southeastern Funeral Homes, Inc.
Alderwoods (Georgia), Inc.
Carothers Holding Company, Inc. (NC Corp) Georgia subsidiary
Alderwoods (Georgia), Inc.
Poteet Holdings, Inc.
Alderwoods (Georgia), Inc.
SCI Special, Inc. (DE Corp)
SCI Capital Corporation (DE Corp)
Investment Capital Corporation (TX Corp)
Wilson Financial Group, Inc. (DE Corp)
Wilson Holdings, Inc. (TX Corp) Georgia subsidiary
College Park Cemetery, Inc.
Crest Lawn Memorial Park, Inc.
Forest Lawn Memorial Gardens, Inc.
Kennedy Memorial Gardens, Inc.
Sherwood Memorial Park & Mausoleum, Inc.
4
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HAWAII
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Hawaii subsidiaries
Hawaiian Memorial Life Plan,Ltd.

100%

IDAHO
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Idaho subsidiary
Alderwoods (Idaho), Inc.

100%

ILLINOIS
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Illinois subsidiary
SCI Illinois Services, Inc.
Lake View Memorial Gardens, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Illinois subsidiaries
Alderwoods (Illinois), Inc.
Alderwoods (Chicago Central), Inc.
Woodlawn Memorial Park, Inc.
Chapel Hill Memorial Gardens & Funeral Home Ltd.
Chicago Cemetery Corporation
Mount Auburn Memorial Park, Inc.
Alderwoods (Chicago North), Inc.
RG Memorial Chapels, Inc. (FL Corp) Illinois subsidiary
Alderwoods (Chicago North), Inc.
Pineview Memorial Park, Inc.
Ridgewood Cemetery Company, Inc.
Ruzich Funeral Home, Inc.
Woodlawn Cemetery of Chicago, Inc.
Osiris Holding Corporation (DE Corp) Illinois subsidiary
Elmwood Acquisition Corporation
Oakwoods Cemetery Association
INDIANA
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Indiana subsidiaries
Advance Planning of America, Inc.
Alderwoods (Indiana), Inc.
Alderwoods (Tennessee), Inc. (TN Corp) Indiana subsidiary
Alderwoods (Indiana), Inc.
IOWA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC
SCI Iowa Funeral Services, Inc.

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
43.65%
56.25%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
88.50%
11.50%
100%
100%

KANSAS
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Kansas subsidiary
SCI Kansas Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Kansas subsidiary
Alderwoods (Kansas), Inc.

100%

KENTUCKY
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Kentucky subsidiary
SCI Kentucky Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Kentucky subsidiaries
Alderwoods (Partner), Inc.

99%
100%

LOUISIANA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Louisiana subsidiary
SCI Louisiana Funeral Services, Inc.
New Orleans Limousine Service, Inc.

100%
100%

100%
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MARYLAND
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Maryland subsidiaries
SCI Maryland Funeral Services, Inc.
BAMFH, Inc.
Burgee — Henss — Seitz Funeral Home, Inc.
Charles S. Zeiler & Son, Inc.
Danzansky— Goldberg Memorial Chapels, Inc.
Edward Sagel Funeral Direction, Inc.
Fleck Funeral Home, Inc.
Gary L. Kaufman Funeral Home at
Meadowridge Memorial Park, Inc.
Gary L. Kaufman Funeral Home Southwest, Inc.
George Washington Cemetery Company, LLC
Funeral Home of Dulaney Valley, Inc.
Loring Byers Funeral Directors, Inc.
Miller— Dippel Funeral Home, Inc.
Moran— Ashton Funeral Home, Inc.
National Cremation Service, Inc.
Sterling —Ashton— Schwab Funeral Home, Inc.
Sterling —Ashton— Schwab— Witzke Funeral Home of Catonsville, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Maryland subsidiary
Alderwoods (Maryland), Inc.
MASSACHUSETTS
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Massachusetts subsidiaries
Affiliated Family Funeral Service, Inc.
AFFS Boston, Inc.
AFFS North, Inc.
AFFS Norwood, Inc.
AFFS Quincy, Inc.
AFFS South Coast East, Inc.
AFFS South Coast West, Inc.
AFFS West, Inc.
Perlman Funeral Home, Inc.
Stanetsky Memorial Chapels, Inc.
Sullivan Funeral Homes, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Massachusetts subsidiaries
Cuffe McGinn Funeral Home, Inc.
Doane Beal & Ames, Inc.
Ernest A. Richardson Funeral Home, Inc.
Gaffey Funeral Home, Inc.
JCM Holdings, Inc.
Alderwoods (Massachusetts), Inc.
Doba— Haby Insurance Agency, Inc.
MICHIGAN
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Michigan subsidiary
SCI Michigan Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Michigan subsidiary
Alderwoods (Michigan), Inc.
Alderwoods (Delaware), Inc. (DE Corp) Michigan subsidiaries
AMG, Inc.
WMP, Inc.
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MINNESOTA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Minnesota subsidiaries
SCI Minnesota Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DELLC) Minnesota subsidiary
Alderwoods (Minnesota), Inc.
MISSISSIPPI
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Mississippi subsidiary
SCI Mississippi Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Mississippi subsidiaries
Family Care, Inc.
Alderwoods (Mississippi), Inc. (DE Corp) Mississippi subsidiaries
Stephens Burial Association, Inc.
Stephens Funeral Benefit Association, Inc.
Stephens Funeral Fund, Inc.
MISSOURI
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Missouri subsidiaries
SCI Missouri Funeral Services, Inc.
Memorial Guardian Plans, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Missouri subsidiary
Alderwoods (Missouri), Inc.

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

MONTANA
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Montana subsidiary
Alderwoods (Montana), Inc.

100%

NEBRASKA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Nebraska subsidiary
SCI Nebraska Funeral Services, Inc.

100%

NEVADA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC)
SCI Texas Funeral Services, Inc. (DE Corp) Nevada subsidiary
SCI Texas Finance Company
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Nevada subsidiary
Alderwoods (Nevada), Inc.
Knauss Enterprises Limited Liability Company
Palm Mortuary, Inc.
NEW HAMPSHIRE
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) New Hampshire subsidiaries
McHugh Funeral Home, Inc.
Robert Douglas Goundrey Funeral Home, Inc.
St. Laurent Funeral Home, Inc.
Alderwoods (Massachusetts), Inc. New Hampshire subsidiary
ZS Acquisition, Inc.
NEW JERSEY
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) New Jersey subsidiaries
SCI New Jersey Funeral Services, Inc.
Garden State Crematory, Inc.
Wien & Wien, Inc.
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NEW MEXICO
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) New Mexico subsidiary
SCI New Mexico Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) New Mexico subsidiary
Alderwoods (New Mexico), Inc.
NEW YORK
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) New York subsidiaries
SCI Funeral Services of New York, Inc.
Alderwoods (New York), LLC
Chas. Peter Nagel, LLC
I. J. Morris, LLC
New York Funeral Chapels, LLC
New York Marker, LLC
Thomas M. Quinn & Sons, LLC
SCI Special, Inc. (DE Corp)
SCI Administrative Services, LLC (DE LLC)
SCI Management L.P.— (DE LP) New York subsidiary
SCI EOps HQ, Inc.
NORTH CAROLINA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) North Carolina subsidiary
SCI North Carolina Funeral Services, Inc.
SCI Special, Inc. (DE Corp)
SCI Capital Corporation (DE Corp)
Investment Capital Corporation (TX Corp)
Wilson Financial Group, Inc. (DE Corp)
Wilson Holdings, Inc. (TX Corp) N. Carolina subsidiary
Hamilton Funeral Chapel, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) North Carolina subsidiaries
Alderwoods (North Carolina), LLC
Westminster Gardens, Inc.
Carothers Holding Company, LLC
Alderwoods (North Carolina), LLC
MFH, L.L.C.
Lineberry Group, Inc.
Alderwoods (North Carolina), LLC
Alderwoods (Georgia) Holdings, Inc. (GA Corp) North Carolina subsidiary
Reeves, Inc.
OHIO
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Ohio subsidiaries
SCI Ohio Funeral Services, Inc.
The Knollwood Cemetery Company
SCI Special, Inc. (DE Corp)
SCI Capital Corporation (DE Corp)
Investment Capital Corporation (TX Corp)
Wilson Financial Group, Inc. (DE Corp)
Wilson Holdings, Inc. (TX Corp) Ohio subisidiary
Dale Funeral Home, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Ohio subsidiaries
Alderwoods (Ohio) Cemetery Management, Inc.
Alderwoods (Ohio) Funeral Home, Inc.
Bennett— Emmert— Szakovits Funeral Home, Inc.
8
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OKLAHOMA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Oklahoma subsidiaries
SCI Oklahoma Funeral Services, Inc.
Memorial Gardens Association
Rose Hill Burial Park, a Trust
Sunset Memorial Park Cemetery Trust
Memorial Park Association, a Trust Estate
Sunny Lane Cemetery, a Property Trust
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Oklahoma subsidiary
Alderwoods (Oklahoma), Inc.
OREGON
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Oregon subsidiaries
SCI Oregon Funeral Services, Inc.
Uniservice Corporation
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Oregon subsidiaries
Alderwoods (Oregon), Inc.
S & H Properties and Enterprises, Inc. (WA Corp) Oregon subsidiaries
Universal Memorial Centers I, Inc.
Universal Memorial Centers II, Inc.
Universal Memorial Centers III, Inc.
PENNSYLVANIA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Pennsylvania subsidiaries
SCI Pennsylvania Funeral Services, Inc.
Auman Funeral Home, Inc.
Ed Melenyzer Co.
Funeral Service Pennsylvania, LLC
Laughlin Funeral Home, Ltd.
Robert L. Hendricks Funeral Home, Inc.
Rohland Funeral Home
Harold B. Mulligan Co., Inc.
Theo. C. Auman, Inc.
Auman’s, Inc.
Francis F. Seidel, Inc.
Memorial Guardian Plans, Inc.(DE Corp) Pennsylvania subsidiary
Ensure Agency of Pennsylvania, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Pennsylvania subsidiaries
Alderwoods (Pennsylvania), Inc.
Bright Undertaking Company
H. Samson, Inc.
Knee Funeral Home of Wilkinsburg, Inc.
Nineteen Thirty Five Holdings, Inc.
Osiris Holding Corporation (DE Corp) Pennsylvania subsidiary
Oak Woods Management Company
RHODE ISLAND
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Rhode Island subsidiary
SCI Rhode Island Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Rhode Island subsidiary
Alderwoods (Rhode Island), Inc.
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SOUTH CAROLINA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa Corp) South Carolina subsidiary
SCI South Carolina Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) South Carolina subsidiaries
Alderwoods (South Carolina), Inc.
Carothers Holding Company, Inc. (NC Corp) North Carolina subsidiary
Alderwoods (South Carolina), Inc.
Alderwoods (Georgia) Holdings, Inc. (GA Corp) North Carolina subsidiary
Graceland Cemetery Development Co.
TENNESSEE
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Tennessee subsidiaries
SCI Tennessee Funeral Services, LLC
SCI Special, Inc. (DE Corp)
SCI Capital Corporation (DE Corp)
Investment Capital Corporation (TX Corp)
Wilson Financial Group, Inc. (DE Corp) Tennessee subsidiary
Southern Funeral Home, Inc.
Amistad Corporation (DE Corp) Tennessee subsidiary
Franklin Strickland Funeral Home, Inc.
Wilson Holdings, Inc. (TX Corp) Tennessee subsidiaries
M. J. Edwards & Sons Funeral Home, Inc.
M. J. Edwards Whitehaven Funeral Chapel, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Tennessee subsidiaries
Alderwoods (Tennessee), LLC
Eagle Financial Associates, Inc.
TEXAS
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Texas subsidiaries
TMJ Land, Inc.
SCI Texas Funeral Services, Inc. (DE Corp) Texas subsidiaries
FHC Realty, Inc.
WFG Liquidation Corporation
SCI Special, Inc. (DE Corp)
SCI Capital Corporation (DE Corp) Texas subsidiary
Investment Capital Corporation
Wilson Financial Group, Inc. (DE Corp) Texas subsidiary
Wilson Holdings, Inc.
Carl Barnes Funeral Home, Inc.
Cedar Crest Funeral Home, Inc.
Fuller — Sheffield Funeral Services, Inc.
Lincoln Funeral Home, Inc.
Mainland Funeral Home, Inc.
Morris — Bates Funeral Home, Inc.
Paradise Funeral Home, Inc.
Paradise Investment Corporation
Paradise Cemetery South, Inc.
Warford Walker Mortuary, Inc.
WFG — Cristo Rey Funeral Home, Inc.
WFG — Lockwood Funeral Home, Inc.
WFG — Nat Clark, Inc.
Wilson — Lincoln Cemetery, Inc.
Carver Memorial Park, Inc.
SCI Administrative Services, LLC (DE LLC)
SCI Management L.P. (DE LP) — Texas subsidiaries — Limited Partner of
SCI Eastern Market Support Center, L.P.
SCI Houston Market Support Center, L.P.
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SCI Management L.P. (DE LP) Texas subsidiaries
SCI EOps HQ, Inc. (NY Corp) — General Partner of
SCI Eastern Market Support Center, L.P.
SCI Houston Hub, Inc. — General Partner of
SCI Houston Market Support Center, L.P.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Texas subsidiaries
Alderwoods (Texas) Cemetery, Inc.
DSP General Partner, Inc.
Tyler Memorial Funeral Home and Chapel, Inc.
Dunwood Cemetery Service Company
Earthman Holdings, Inc.
Alderwoods (Texas), Inc. (CA Corp) Texas subsidiary
Funeral Service, Inc.
Directors (Texas), L.P. (DE Limited Partnership) Texas subsidiary
Pioneer Funeral Plans, Inc.
Alderwoods (Georgia) Holdings, Inc. (GA Corp) Texas subsidiary
Waco Memorial Park, Inc.
UTAH
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Utah subsidiaries
SCI Utah Funeral Services, Inc.
Evans & Early Mortuary, LLC
Wasatch Land and Improvement Company

1%
100%
1%
100%
100%
100%
80%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

VIRGINIA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Virginia subsidiary
SCI Virginia Funeral Services, Inc.
Memorial Guardian Plans, Inc. (DE Corp) Virginia subsidiary
Sentinel Security Plans, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Virginia subsidiary
Alderwoods (Virginia), Inc.
Carothers Holding Company, Inc. (NC Corp) Virginia subsidiary
Alderwoods (Virginia), Inc.
Lineberry Group, Inc. (NC Corp) Virginia subsidiary
Alderwoods (Virginia), Inc.
WASHINGTON
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Washington subsidiary
SCI Washington Funeral Services, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Washington subsidiaries
Alderwoods (Washington), Inc.
S & H Properties and Enterprises, Inc.
Vancouver Funeral Chapel, Inc.
Evergreen Funeral Home and Cemetery, Inc.
Green Service Corporation

100%
100%
52.90%
0.50%
46.60%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

WEST VIRGINIA
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) West Virginia subsidiaries
SCI West Virginia Funeral Services, Inc.
Rosedale Cemetery Company
Rosedale Funeral Chapel, Inc.
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) West Virginia subsidiary
Alderwoods (West Virginia), Inc.
WISCONSIN
SCI Funeral Services, LLC (Iowa LLC) Wisconsin subsidiary
SCI Wisconsin Funeral Services, Inc.

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
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Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Wisconsin subsidiaries
Alderwoods (Wisconsin), Inc.
Osiris Holding Corporation (DE Corp)Wisconsin subsidiary
Alderwoods (Wisconsin), Inc.
Northern Land Company, Inc.

99%
1%
100%
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International
BELGIUM
SCI International, LLC (DE Corp) Belgium subsidiaries
Camilla Belgium N.V.
Diana Belgium N.V.

100%
100%

BRAZIL
SCI International, Limited (DE Corp)
SCI Latin America Ltd. (Cayman Co) Brazil subsidiary Service Corporation International Brazil Limitada

100%

CANADA
Service Corporation International (Canada) Limited — (Federal) — ownership as follows:
SCI International, LLC
ECI Capital Corporation
SCI Cerberus LLC
Service Corporation International Canada Funding Limited Partnership

1 share
1 share
8,900 shares
1,098 shares

Service Corporation International (Canada) Limited — (Canada subsidiaries) SSPI (Canada), Inc.
(Federal)
Service Corporation International (Canada) Limited — (U.S. subsidiary) SCI Funeral & Cemetery
Purchasing Cooperative, Inc. (DE Corp
SCI Alliance Acquisition Corporation (Ontario)
SCI International, LLC (DE LLC) Canada subsidiaries
3056269 Nova Scotia Company
Service Corporation International Canada Funding Limited Partnership
3056271 Nova Scotia Company
Service Corporation International Canada Funding Limited Partnership

100%
1%
100%
99%

Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Canada subsidiaries
Alderwoods Group Canada Inc. — (Federal)
247663 Alberta Ltd. — (Alberta)
Advance Funeral Planning Ltd. — (Saskatchewan)
Community Crematorium Services Limited — (Saskatchewan)
Gregory’s Williams Lake Funeral Home Ltd. — (British Columbia)
Guayco Investments Inc./Investissements Guayco — (Quebec)
Les Salons Funeraires Guay Inc. — (Quebec)
Jayne’s Funeral Home (1984) Limited — (Nova Scotia)
P. Contu Funeral Chapels Ltd. — (Manitoba)
Nafcanco ULC — (Nova Scotia)

100%
90%
100%
50%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
25%
100%

BARBADOS
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC)
Alderwoods Group Canada Inc. (Ontario Corp) Barbados subsidiaries
Loewen International Holdings Ltd.
Loewen Financial Corporation
Loewen Insurance Holdings Inc.
Loewen Trading Corporation

100%
100%
100%
100%

CAYMAN ISLANDS
SCI International, LLC (DE LLC) Cayman Islands subsidiaries
SCI Latin America Ltd
SCI Cayman II Ltd.

100%
100%
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GERMANY
SCI International, LLC (DE LLC) Germany subsidiaries
SCI D GmbH
Norddeutsche Bestattungsgesellschaft mbH
Bestattungsinstitut Barbel Brand GmbH
Breidenstein Bestattungen GmbH
Thomas Amm GmbH

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

LUXEMBOURG
SCI International, LLC (DE LLC) Luxembourg subsidiary
SCI Luxembourg SARL

100%

MALAYSIA
SCI International, LLC (DE LLC) Malaysia subsidiaries
Enlightened Transition Sdn Bhd
Bahua Funeral Services Sdn Bhd
NETHERLANDS
Service Corporation International (BVI) Ltd. (VI Corp) Netherlands subsidiaries
Roverber Holding & Finance BV
Service Corporation International Netherlands Cooperatief U.A.
SCI International, LLC (DE LLC) Netherlands subsidiary
Service Corporation International Netherlands Cooperatief U.A.

100%
33.33%

100%
1%
99%

PUERTO RICO
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) Puerto Rico subsidiary
SCI Puerto Rico Funeral and Cemetery Services, Inc.

100%

SWITZERLAND
SCI International, LLC (DE LLC) Switzerland subsidiaries
Osefi Holdings SA

100%

UNITED KINGDOM
SCI Special, Inc.
SCI Administrative Services, LLC (DE LLC) United Kingdom subsidiary
SCI UK Investments Limited
Alderwoods Group, LLC (DE LLC) United Kingdom subsidiary
Alderwoods UK Holdings Ltd.
VIRGIN ISLANDS
Service Corporation International (BVI) Ltd.
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-67800, 333-50084,
333-33101, 333-68683, 333-19863, 333-82475, 333-119681 and 333-142843) of Service Corporation International of our report dated
February 25, 2010 relating to the consolidated financial statements, financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Houston, Texas
February 25, 2010
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Exhibit 24.1
POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ R. L. Waltrip
R. L. WALTRIP
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ Thomas L. Ryan
THOMAS L. RYAN
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ Eric D. Tanzberger
ERIC D. TANZBERGER

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ Tammy R. Moore
TAMMY R. MOORE

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ Alan R. Buckwalter, III
ALAN R. BUCKWALTER, III

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ Anthony L. Coelho
ANTHONY L. COELHO

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ A. J. Foyt, Jr.
A. J. FOYT, JR.

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ Malcolm Gillis
MALCOLM GILLIS

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ Victor L. Lund
VICTOR L. LUND

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ John W. Mecom, Jr.
JOHN W. MECOM, JR.

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ Clifton H. Morris, Jr.
CLIFTON H. MORRIS, JR.

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ W. Blair Waltrip
W. BLAIR WALTRIP

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, an officer or director, or both, of Service Corporation
International, a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby constitute and appoint Eric D. Tanzberger and Gregory T. Sangalis
his true and lawful attorneys and agents (each with authority to act alone), with power and authority to sign for and on behalf of the
undersigned the name of the undersigned as officer or director, or both, of the Company to the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year of the Company ending December 31, 2009 and to any
amendments thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to any instrument or document filed as a part of, as an
exhibit to or in connection with said Report or amendments; and the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and
deed all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents this 10th day of February, 2010.
/s/ Edward E. Williams
EDWARD E. WILLIAMS

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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Exhibit 31.1
Service Corporation International
a Texas corporation
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Section 302 Certification
I, Thomas L. Ryan, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Service Corporation International, a Texas corporation (the “registrant”);

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

5.

a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d)

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent function):
a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial
information; and

b)

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 25, 2010

/s/ Thomas L. Ryan
Thomas L. Ryan
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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Exhibit 31.2
Service Corporation International
a Texas corporation
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
Section 302 Certification
I, Eric D. Tanzberger, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Service Corporation International, a Texas corporation (the “registrant”);

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

5.

a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d)

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent function):
a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial
information; and

b)

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 25, 2010

/s/ Eric D. Tanzberger
Eric D. Tanzberger
Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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Exhibit 32.1
Certification of Chief Executive Officer
I, Thomas L. Ryan, of Service Corporation International, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2009 (the “Periodic Report”) which this
statement accompanies fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended; and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of Service Corporation International.
Dated: February 25, 2010

/s/ Thomas L. Ryan
Thomas L. Ryan
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Source: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, 10-K, February 26, 2010
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Exhibit 32.2
Certification of Principal Financial Officer
I, Eric D. Tanzberger, of Service Corporation International, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2009 (the “Periodic Report”) which this
statement accompanies fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended; and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of Service Corporation International.
Dated: February 25, 2010

/s/ Eric D. Tanzberger
Eric D. Tanzberger
Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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